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Elephants Crossing the Water

By Tang Kok Soo
Mixed media
121 x 160 cm

Mr Tang Kok Soo's Elephants Crossing the Water is the inspiration for the design of this year’s
Annual Report. The abstract painting of a herd of elephants crossing a river received the Gold
Award for the Established Artist Category in the 2016 UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore)
Competition.

With each step forward, the steady and strong-willed elephants make their journey as one,
advancing with purpose and determination whatever the terrain. Elephants Crossing the Water
symbolises strength in unity and celebrates the focus and wherewithal needed to stay the course.

The UOB Painting of the Year Competition, in its 35" year in 2016, promotes awareness and
appreciation of art, and challenges Southeast Asian artists to produce works that inspire.

[
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About United Overseas Bank (China)
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (UOB (China)) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited
(UOB), a leading bank in Asia. UOB (China) is headquartered
in Shanghai and was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China on 18 December 2007.

From our first representative office in Beijing in 1984, we have
grown our network to 16 branches and sub-branches in major
Chinese cities.

We have also been building on our strengths. In 2006,
UOB was the first bank from Southeast Asia authorised to
settle capital accounts in Shanghai. We received a retail
RMB licence and Shanghai Gold Exchange (SGE) trading
membership in 2008 and 2011 respectively. In 2012, we were
awarded a Qualified Domestic Institutional Investors licence,
and were one of four foreign banks to participate in bullion
trading on the SGE interbank platform.

UOB (China) is one of the first foreign banks to obtain a
local mutual fund licence in China, in 2013. The following
year, we established a sub-branch in the Shanghai Free Trade
Zone, and obtained a trial market maker licence for inter-
bank gold bilateral transactions and a market maker licence
for direct trading between RMB and the Singapore dollar in
the interbank foreign exchange market. We also obtained the
gold import and export licence in 2015. These achievements
have enabled us to widen our product and service offering to
our customers operating in China.

As we continue to grow our business, we remain committed
to sharing our successes with the community. Since 2012,
we have held the annual UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk to raise
funds for underprivileged children and to support various
education initiatives in China.

In 2015, UOB Group increased the registered capital of UOB
(China) by RMB2.5 billion to RMB5.5 billion.

UOB (China) is rated ‘A+ with stable outlook by Fitch Ratings
and AAA by China Chengxin International Credit Rating with
a stable outlook.

For more information about UOB (China), please visit
www.UOBChina.com.cn
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Who We Are

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 branches and offices
in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Europe and
North America. In Asia, we operate through our head office
in Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia,
Malaysia and Thailand, as well as branches and offices.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the Great
Depression, UOB opened its doors to offer banking services
for the merchant community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a series
of strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the
world’s top banks: ‘Aal’ by Moody’s and ‘AA-" by Standard &
Poor’s and Fitch Ratings.

Over more than eight decades, generations of UOB
employees have carried through the entrepreneurial spirit,
focus on long-term value creation and an unwavering
commitment to do what is right for our customers and our
colleagues.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services
provider and we are committed to making a difference in the
lives of our stakeholders and in the communities in which we
operate. Just as we are dedicated to helping our customers
manage their finances wisely and grow their businesses,
UOB is steadfast in our support of social development,
particularly in the areas of art, children and education.

What We Do

UOB provides a wide range of financial services globally
through our three core business segments — Group Retail,
Group Wholesale Banking and Global Markets. Our offering
includes personal financial services, private banking, business
banking, commercial and corporate banking, transaction
banking, investment banking, corporate finance, capital
market activities, treasury services, brokerage and clearing
services. Through our subsidiaries, we also provide asset
management, venture capital management and insurance
services.
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B M & Where We Operate
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AN Singapore 74
OkEIE Malaysia 47
ENERBEI Indonesia 180
Z=E Thailand 155
X3 Brunei 2
JEBE  Philippines 1
4 Myanmar 2
A  Vietnam 1
HE China 21
hEE# Hong Kong 3
HEAE Taiwan 3
HZ& Japan 2
#E  South Korea 1
ENE  India D)
BARFI  Australia 4
BE United Kingdom 1
i&£E  France 1
X£E UsA 3
fmZX Canada 3
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Financial Highlights

s gl
ZERR Operating result AR™MFIT RMB'000 %
BEWEANEIT Total operating income 943,404 1,020,748 (7.6)
ElEA Total operating expenses 844,665 862,359 21
RERERR Impairment charges 49704 89,096 (44.2)
FLETFIE Profit before tax 56,817 77,671 (26.8)
BrEflE Balance sheet AERMFIT RMB00O %
BB Total assets 52,386,412 43156914 214
W &HEHR Financial indicators % % %
HRFTERE R Return on equity 07 15 (0.9)
RFHE 2 Return on average total assets 01 02 (0J)
3% 9 N4 Expenses/income ratio 863 773 9.0
F I B A b 2 migﬁ: and commission income/total operating 143 12.0 23
FHEE (AR ) Loan-to-Deposit ratio (RMB) 85.7 825 32
mEEEER Liquidity coverage ratio 165.8 184.3 (18.5)
FAFER Leverage ratio 103 127 (2.4)
TREME Non-performing loan ratio 13 12 01
WEBEER Non-performing loan coverage 163.0 153.6 94
RARFEREIERR Capital adequacy ratio
B —REBERERER Core Tier 1CAR 18.2 229 (4.7)
—RERTRE Tier 1 CAR 182 229 (4.7)
RAETRE Total CAR 187 235 (4.8)
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Stability and Steady Progress Amid Volatility

In a period of uncertainty and upheaval, UOB (China) has
remained as sure-footed as the elephants on the cover of
this year's Annual Report. Despite the waves of uncertainty
caused by volatile commodity markets as well as slowing
global and domestic economic growth, we have stayed
resilient with our strong balance sheet and steady financial
results. We have always believed in balancing growth with
stability, creating value for our stakeholders and being able
to support our customers through economic cycles.

2016 Financial Performance

In 2016, we achieved operating income of RMB943.4 million,
down 7.6 per cent from a year ago, due mainly to lower net
interest income, lower gains on fair value changes and higher
foreign exchange losses.

Our interest margin narrowed as a result of the continuous
lowering of market interest rate and the implementation of
value-added tax in 2016. This led to a 7.2 per cent drop in net
interest income year on year to RMB647.2 million.

Gross fee income grew 11.8 per cent, driven mainly by trade-
related fees, and net fee income was up 10.9 per cent to
RMB135.3 million. Investment income also rose 49.9 per cent
from a year ago to RMB178.4 million as realised losses from
derivatives decreased.

Operating expenses were down by 6.0 per cent due to our
disciplined spending, a decrease in business tax expenses
arising from the government’s value-added tax reform and
lower impairment losses. We registered net profit after tax
of RMB43.3 million, down 46.1 per cent from 2015.

Our asset quality remained sound. The non-performing
loans (NPL) ratio rose marginally to 1.3 per cent from 1.2 per
cent a year ago. We monitor our portfolio vigilantly and are
confident of the resilience of our asset quality and adequacy
of our provisions.
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In the face of market uncertainties, we maintained a prudent
lending stance, with a slight 2.7 per cent increase in our loan
balance to RMB23.9 billion in 2016. We continued to improve
our funding base with deposits increasing 12.2 per cent to
RMB25.2 billion. Our liquidity position remained healthy with
our liquidity coverage ratio standing at 165.8 per cent, well
above the regulatory minimum requirement of 100 per cent.

Our capital position is strong with the Common Equity Tier
1 and Total Capital Adequacy Ratios at 18.2 per cent and 18.7
per cent respectively as at 31 December 2016, also well above
the regulatory minimum requirements.

We were rated A+ by Fitch Ratings and AAA by China
Chengxin International Credit Rating with a stable outlook.

Connecting Our Customers to Business Opportunities

In 2016, we continued to build on our strengths in connecting
businesses with opportunities domestically and across the
region, and in providing the right solutions for our customers.

UOB Group's integrated regional network provides a strong
foundation on which the Bank can serve our customers
seamlessly as they expand overseas. We have continued
to enhance our cross-border capabilities and in-market
solutions in line with our customers’ needs for increasing
regional connectivity on the back of the Belt and Road
initiative.

In 2016, our Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) Advisory Unit, a
one-stop shop dedicated to helping our customers access
regional opportunities, continued to build our ecosystem of
strategic alliances with local regulatory and industry bodies
to help companies with their regional expansion ambitions.
We signed three Memoranda of Understanding (MOU)
in Chongging to facilitate our customers’ meeting their
regionalisation, trade and investment objectives.

These arrangements are in addition to UOB's agreements with
the China Council for the Promotion of International Trade
(CCPIT). As the only Singapore-headquartered bank to have
signed strategic alliances with CCPIT, we are best-placed to
connect our customers comprehensively with opportunities
in and beyond China.

During the year, we also enhanced our service capabilities to
facilitate our customers’ cross-border trade and investment
activities. Our Free Trade Accounting Unit in the Shanghai
Free Trade Zone, approved and authorised by the People's
Bank of China Shanghai Head Office, enables our corporate
clients to take advantage of favourable initiatives on capital
account liberalisation.

We will continue to deepen our relationships with clients

through sectoral focus and industry specialisation. The past
year saw strong growth in the businesses from financial

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016 | 9
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institutions and structured trade and commodity clients,
as we strengthened our product capabilities in the areas of
cash management, interest rate and currency derivatives,
investment solutions, trade finance and specialised finance
structures.

Connecting with Consumers’ Lifestyles

In addition, we continue to anticipate and to serve the
financial needs of our customers in line with their lifestyle
preferences. We recognise in particular, their mobile-reliant
lifestyles and have introduced a remote queue service
via our official WeChat account. This service enables our
customers to make appointments in advance before visiting
our Shanghai Main Branch for banking services.

Our Asian perspective, honed over time, gives us a strong
appreciation of our customers’ financial goals and objectives.
Understanding that their children’s education is a priority
for many Chinese parents, we introduced a series of
development programmes in partnership with the Students
of the Advancement of Global Entrepreneurship China, the
local arm of a global non-profit educational organisation
that promotes business and social entrepreneurship among
the youth, to help our customers prepare for a well-rounded
education for their children.

Connecting Our People with Growth Opportunities

In 2016, we continued to strengthen the capabilities of our
people to meet their career development needs through
training programmes.

We also enhanced our talent development efforts with
the addition of new workshops at the UOB Leadership
Academy to help employees sharpen their competencies and
leadership skills.

While we attract people with aptitude for their specific
roles, we also focus on ensuring they also possess and
demonstrate the right attitude — one that is based on our
values of honour, enterprise, unity and commitment. At
every stage in an employee’s career with us — from hiring and
training to progression, reward and recognition — we review
and reinforce the strength with which the individual upholds
the values of UOB.

Ultimately, we want our customers to experience a quality
of service that is distinctively that of UOB — the spirit of a
handshake, where they can always count on our word. Our
inaugural Group-wide Customer Commitments Awards,
which was held in Singapore, recognised the role models
from across the organisation who live up to our values
and who meet our customer commitments: to treat our
customers fairly, to provide them with the right solutions,
to know them personally and to be there for them when it
matters.
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Connecting Communities through Art, Children and
Education

Our steady business development in China comes with other
responsibilities beyond those to our customers. We are
deeply committed to supporting communities through art,
children and education which we believe are essential for the
progress of a country, its economy and its people.

In 2016, we contributed to the community through
sponsorships, donations and scholarships by the Bank, and
funds raised by our employees. Our initiatives included
our annual Heartbeat Run/Walk where we raised funds
for beneficiaries in China to improve the lives of children
including those with financial difficulties or special needs.
Our volunteers visited schools in remote areas to deliver our
care and increase engagement with the students. For more
than 30 years, UOB (China) has pursued a sustainable business
as we have supported customers, employees, communities
and economies.

2017 Outlook

Looking ahead, we expect a less predictable global
environment such as policy uncertainties in the US. In China,
slower domestic economic growth is likely to persist as a
result of the country’s economic transition.

However, we remain confident of China’s economic growth
prospects as the country strengthens its connectivity with
the world through the Belt and Road initiative, and continues
to transform into a more diversified economy.

The current environment also presents unique opportunities
for long-term players such as UOB (China). Backed by UOB
Group's deep and strong connectivity across the region, we
are well-placed to support customers in their trade and
investment. Our commitment in China is further manifest in
our wholly-owned UOB Plaza in Shanghai’s Lujiazui area. The
18-storey building also houses our new Shanghai Main Branch.
We remain steadfast in developing further our capabilities,
including digital initiatives and strategic partnerships, to
anticipate and to meet our customers’ needs, for banking and
other services across market cycles.

Like the herd of elephants on our annual report cover with
their firmness of purpose and stability in unity, we will draw
upon the combined and time-tested strengths of UOB Group
and UOB (China) — our integrated network, deep customer
insights and strong balance sheet — to face new challenges
and to seize the opportunities ahead with purpose, vigour
and determination.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016 | 11
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Board Changes

Succession planning is one of the key responsibilities of the
Board. In this regard, | would like to thank Professor Cham
Tao Soon for his continued guidance as he stepped down as
independent director in December 2016 and was appointed
as Deputy Supervisor of the Bank with effect from 1 January
2017. We also welcome Mr Liu Erh Fei who was appointed as
independent director in January 2017.

The Board would also like to thank Mr Eric Lian Voon Fui for
his contributions as President and CEO and as a director. We
welcome the new President and CEQ, Mr Peter Foo Moo Tan,
formerly the President and CEO of UOB (Thailand) who has
more than 30 years of experience in banking and financial
markets businesses.

Acknowledgements

| would like to thank the Board directors for their insight
and guidance, and our people for their dedication in doing
what is right for our Bank, our customers and our community.
To our valued customers, thank you for your continued
confidence in us.

Wee Ee Cheong
Chairman

March 2017
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Floor 3, Room 501 of Floor 5 (Actual Floor 4), Floor 13 (Actual Floor 12), Floor 15
(Actual Floor 13), Floor 16 (Actual Floor 14), Floor 17 (Actual Floor 15) and Floor 18
(Actual Floor 16), No. 116 and No. 128, Yin Cheng Road, Pudong New Area
Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: UOBChina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation
18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration of Industry and Commerce

Unified Social Credit Code
913100006694147236

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 5,500,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Supervisors
Wee Cho Yaw
Cham Tao Soon (Deputy Supervisor)

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Peter Foo Moo Tan (President and CEO)
Francis Lee Chin Yong
Christine Ip

Liu Erh Fei

Zeng Zhi Jie

Executive Committee

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Peter Foo Moo Tan

Francis Lee Chin Yong
Christine Ip

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Liu Erh Fei

Audit Committee

Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)
Francis Lee Chin Yong
Christine Ip

Liu Erh Fei

Connected Transaction Control Committee
Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman)

Francis Lee Chin Yong

Liu Erh Fei

Risk Management Committee

Francis Lee Chin Yong (Chairman)

Zeng Zhi Jie

Christine Ip

Liu Erh Fei

Auditors

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office
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Wee Cho Yaw

Supervisor

Dr Wee, 88, was appointed as Supervisor of United Overseas
Bank (China) on 30 October 2007.

Dr Wee is a veteran banker with more than 50 years’ banking
experience with the UOB Group.

He is the Chairman Emeritus and Adviser of United Overseas
Bank, Singapore having stepped down as its Chairman in
2013. He is also the Chairman Emeritus and Adviser of United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia) and Far Eastern Bank, Chairman of
United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company and President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

His other board chairmanships include United Overseas
Insurance, Haw Par Corporation, UOL Group, Pan Pacific
Hotels Group, United Industrial Corporation, Marina Centre
Holdings and Wee Foundation. He is also the Chairman of
Chung Cheng High School.

Dr Wee is the Honorary President of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Singapore Federation of
Chinese Clan Associations and Singapore Hokkien Huay Kuan.
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Dr Wee received Chinese high school education. He had
served on numerous school management committees
and the Councils of the Nanyang University and National
University of Singapore. Since 2004, he has been the Pro-
Chancellor of the Nanyang Technological University (“NTU”).
He was conferred an Honorary Degree of Doctor of Letters
by the National University of Singapore in 2008 and a second
Honorary Degree of Doctor of Letters in 2014 by NTU. Both
Honorary Degrees were conferred in recognition of his long-
standing support of education, community welfare and the
business community.

Dr Wee was named Businessman of the Year twice at the
Singapore Business Awards in 2001 and 1990. He received the
inaugural Credit Suisse-Ernst & Young Lifetime Achievement
Award in 2006 for his outstanding achievements in the
Singapore business community and The Asian Banker’s
Lifetime Achievement Award in 20009.

He received the Distinguished Service Order, Singapore’s
highest National Day Award from the President of Singapore
in 2011 for his outstanding contributions to the economic,
education, social and community development fields in
Singapore.
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Cham Tao Soon

Deputy Supervisor

Prof Cham, 77, was a non-executive and independent director
from 25 January 2008 to 26 December 2016. He was also the
Chairman of the Nominating and Remuneration and Audit
Committees, and a member of the Connected Transactions
Control and Risk Management Committees. Prof Cham
was appointed as the Deputy Supervisor of the Bank with
effective from 1 January 2017.

Prof Cham is the Chairman of NSL, Soup Restaurant and
Singapore Rail Academy, and a member of SAP (Asia Pacific
Japan) Advisory Board. He is a former director of MFS
Technology, WBL Corporation and UOB Singapore and its
subsidiary, Far Eastern Bank.

A prominent figure in the Singapore education scene,
Prof Cham is the former Chancellor of SIM University and
Chairman of its Board of Trustees, and was the founding
President of Nanyang Technological University. He is
currently the Special Advisor to the SIM Governing Council
(till 31 December 2016). For his outstanding contributions to
education, he was conferred the Distinguished Service Order,
Singapore’s highest National Day Award, in 2003.
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An engineer by training, Prof Cham holds a Bachelor of
Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the University of Malaya,
a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics (Hons) from the
University of London and a Doctor of Philosophy in Fluid
Mechanics from the University of Cambridge, UK. He is also
a Fellow of the Institution of Engineers, Singapore, Academy
of Engineering, Singapore, Royal Academy of Engineering, UK
and Institution of Mechanical Engineers, UK and a foreign
member of Royal Swedish Academy of Engineering Sciences.
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Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman

Mr Wee, 64, was appointed as Director and Chairman
of the Bank on 5 December 2007. A non-executive and
non-independent director, he is the Chairman of the
Executive Committee and a member of the Nominating and
Remuneration Committee.

A career banker with more than 35 years of banking
experience in the UOB Group, Mr Wee joined United
Overseas Bank, Singapore (“UOB Singapore”) in 1979 and has
been a director of UOB Singapore since 1990. He is currently
the Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of UOB
Singapore.

He also holds directorships in United Overseas Insurance,
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) and United Overseas
Bank (Thai) Public Company. He is the Deputy President
Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

Mr Wee is the current Chairman of The Association of
Banks in Singapore, the Vice-Chairman of The Institute of
Banking and Finance (IBF) and Chairman of the IBF Standards
Committee.
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He is a member of the Board of Governors of the Singapore-
China Foundation and Visa APCEMEA Senior Client Council
and an honorary council member of the Singapore Chinese
Chamber of Commerce & Industry. He was previously deputy
chairman of the Housing and Development Board and a
director of the Port of Singapore Authority, UOL Group, Pan
Pacific Hotels Group.

In 2013, he was awarded the Singapore Public Service Star
by the Singapore Government for his contributions to the
financial industry.

A keen art enthusiast, Mr Wee is the Patron of the Nanyang
Academy of Fine Arts. He is also a director of the Wee
Foundation.

Mr Wee holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration)

and a Master of Arts (Applied Economics) from American
University, Washington, DC.
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Peter FOO Moo Tan
President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Mr Foo Moo Tan, 54, was appointed President and CEO on
19 December 2016 and a director of the Board on 18 January
2017. An executive and non-independent director, he is a
member of the Bank’s Executive Committee.

Mr Foo joined UOB in 2011 as the Head of the Group’s
Treasury and Global Markets business for its overseas
subsidiaries and branches. He also served as President and
CEO of UOB (Thailand) from 2012. Mr Foo holds a Bachelor
of Estate Management (Hons) from the National University of
Singapore and is a Chartered Financial Analyst. He has more
than 30 years of experience in banking and financial markets.
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Francis Lee Chin Yong

Mr Lee, 63, was appointed to the Board on 25 January
2008. A non-executive and non-independent director, he
is the Chairman of Bank’s Risk Management Committee
and a member of the Bank’s Executive, Nominating and
Remuneration, Audit, Connected Transactions Control
Committees.

He joined United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) in 1980 and last
served as CEO prior to his appointment to United Overseas
Bank Singapore (“UOB Singapore”) in 2003. Between 2003
and 2008, Mr Lee was the Head of International and
spearheaded the UOB Group’s expansion in the region. He
was also responsible for UOB Singapore’s consumer banking
business in Singapore and the region. In his current portfolio
as Managing Director and Head of Group Retail at UOB
Singapore, he leads the UOB Group’s retail businesses for
consumers and small business customers.

Mr Lee is a director of several UOB Singapore subsidiaries,
including United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public Company, UOB
Property Investments, UOB Property Investments China, and
Junipa, and is a member of the Board of Commissioners of
PT Bank UOB Indonesia. He also serves as a director UOB-
Kay Hian Holdings, a UOB Singapore affiliate which is in the
stockbroking business.

He holds a Malaysia Certificate of Education and has more
than 30 years’ of banking experience.
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Christine Ip

Mrs Ip, 53, was appointed to the Board on 22 August 2011.
A non-executive and non-independent director, she is a
member of the Bank’s Executive, Audit and Risk Management
Committees.

A veteran banker with 29 years’ experience in both consumer
and corporate banking, Mrs Ip joined UOB in 2011 and was
appointed as CEO of UOB Hong Kong Branch in December
2011. Mrs. Ip was appointed as CEO for UOB Greater China
with effective from 1 July 2016, and is responsible for
developing UOB's business in Greater China.

Prior to joining UOB, Mrs Ip held several senior management
positions in product and sales management, customer
segment management and risk management in Hong Kong,
the United States, Canada, Singapore and mainland China.

She is also an independent non-executive director of
SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings.

In recognition of her achievements, Mrs Ip received the Asia
Retail Congress “Best International Retail Banker” award in
2008 and was named as one of the top 100 outstanding
Chinese businesswomen in the Greater China region in 2012
by the China Outstanding Female Entrepreneurs Association.

Mrs Ip holds a Bachelor of Arts from the University of Hong
Kong and a Master of Business Administration from the Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology.
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Zeng Zhi Jie

Mr Zeng, 48, was appointed to the Board on 18 November
2010. A non-executive and independent director, he is the
Chairman of the Audit, Nominating and Remuneration, and
Connected Transactions Control Committees, and a member
of Risk Management Committee.

Mr Zeng is currently the Senior Managing Director of
CITIC Capital Holdings and the General Manager of Kaixin
Investment.

He serves as an independent director for three listed
companies, namely, Chinasoft International, SMIT Holdings
Limited and CTS International Logistics Corporation Limited.
He is co-chairman of the China Venture Capital Association
of Investment Association of China and the Executive
Director of Asia America Multi-Technology Association China
Branch. He also serves on the Western Returned Scholars
Association Chamber of Commerce 2005 Committee.

Mr Zeng was formerly a Managing Director at Walden
International, where he was mainly responsible for venture
investments in China and Asia Pacific. He had previously
worked for CITIC Pacific Limited in Hong Kong and Mitsubishi
Corporation in Japan.

He holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the
University of Nagasaki, Japan, and a Master of Science in
Management from Stanford University.
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Liu Erh Fei

Mr Liu, 58, was appointed to the Board on 20 January 2017.
A non-executive and independent director, he is a member
of the Audit, Nominating and Remuneration, Connected
Transactions Control and Risk Management Committees.

Mr Liu is currently Co-founder of Cindat Capital Management
Limited. He also serves as an independent director for Wing
Lung Bank Limited and Fortunet e-Commerce Group Limited.

Mr Liu was formerly the Chairman of Merrill Lynch China
and Country Executive of Bank of America Merrill Lynch. He
had previously worked as head of Asia or China for Goldman
Sachs, Morgan Stanley, Smith Barney and Indosuez.

He holds a Bachelor of Arts in Economics and International
Relations from Brandeis University, and a Master of Business
Administration from Harvard Business School.



AIAEH
This page has been intentionally left blank

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016 | 25



HIALRH
Organisation Chart

HitERRS

;%3

Shareholder

Audit Committee

XEZSEHNERS

Connected Transactions

s &
% EHa Control Committee
Supervisor Board of Directors
RERFMERS
Nominating and Remuneration
_ P Committee
TREERBUTE
President and CEO
REEEERS
R Risk Management Committee
Group Compliance
PITERS
Executive Committee
TRHANE
CEO Office
[ [ [
~ =
b T Aﬁi:‘mﬁﬁ% \ Bl A RET
ersonat Financia Channels Corporate Banking
Services
wEmE dxi Brnves ey J
Wealth Management Distribution Beijing and Management BRER /G
ERFEMEIT Food and Agriculture/
WEEE R N Dongcheng fast-moving consumer goods
—I Deposits, Investment and Insurance tﬁﬁﬁ -
Shanghai RiERREE
Channels Risk and Rl /84 /B
= By, ey =
AR BT LRSS LT Assurance Technology/Media/
Secured Lending Lufthansa Centre
Chengdu Telecommunications
Th. HPEHRLSER . P
| Marketing, Digital Sales p 1T 1TXH R
and Partnership Alliance Shenyang Branch Support %;ﬁe!:ifeﬁandﬁ
— Infrastructure
MEEEREFRSEE RYIST LiBERET
— Process Management and Shenzhen Jingan
Customer Service RERREA
o Power and Energy
- — W4T e A=
W R S Guangahou LA
Busi N & Shanghai Bund
— usiness Planning and Performance BRI
Management
xaas e
— - Tianjin LiBRRKBRXIT
| [ zrsmommmrms L | et Pt fee
igital Acceleration, Project an N - N
Demand Management EiST Trade Zone
Xiamen Automotive
HUNST SRR
Hangzhou Metal and Mining
BERST -
Chonggi — AR S Ml 2 R 55l
gqing
General Manufacturing
and Services
FMST
Suzhou
RIS
am . M%&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ% . LRI T SRATE MBS Techno:f ﬁaxnifomerations
Compliance inance and Lorporate Corporate Credit Commercial Credit Retail Credit 8y P
Services (T&O)
|| TERTAMN e AR RRER S R-EE || SeRresigsEs
Retail Banking Compliance Finance Corporate Credit | Credit Policy and Retail TRO
Portfolio Management
|| HERTUSHESEE
e/ R A 2% By L1 MG Wholesale T8O
- Anti-Money Laundering/ General Services Special Asset Credit Management
Countering Financial Terrorism Management EERAT
Compliance 3T B
" N - i SRERE
0 — # | Information Security, Technology
- Property Credit Approva and Operations Assurance
RITAMMBESS
— Corporate Compliance and - o
Regulatory Affairs AR RGEEER || B RRERS
] Management of Business Technology Services
Information System
HERITEM .
Wholesale Banking Compliance HHAREE - HZEHRS
L{ Documentation and Shared Infrastructure Services
Post Approval
AHREREERMRE G 5HIE
— Compliance Review and FHEME
Management Report ] T8O Admin
Support and Finance

T&O Service Management

_I HEREERS EE

26 | KE5R{T (RE) HRAA 2016 FERE




BRIERREFEERS
Operational Risk Management
Committee

HBENHERIPERS
Consumer Rights Protection
Committee

RESHEAZERE

Risk and Capital
Committee

RERHEERS
Asset and Liability
Committee

B SRET

Commercial Banking

LHRIT

Transaction Banking

KRR
Global Markets

SR

Financial Institutions

Multinational Corporate

BEWIRIT

IR 5 R 7 Rk BT

Structured Trade and

Group Commodity Finance
J J ARMRBHER
RMB Solutions China
SATEASRIT REMAHEREN REAESHRHEER $RATRL |
—  Commercial Banking — Trade Sales and — PortfolioX Liquidity Banking Wb
(Branches) Advisory Management Banknotes
IERITE R
[ REHEREN || 5% Non-Banking
Credit Analysts Cash Sales and Advisory Market Making
o [ B EE
FEERATH BREmMATREE IR =ML Property Fund
Product Sales Specialists — Trade Product Global Markets Structure
Management
BHNEER TN IR E
——  China Foreign Direct MEF-REE Global Markets Sales
Investment — Cash Product
Management
RT3 A0 2
— —— Business Management and
f e R IR .
1 Corporate Wealth BHREREE Business Finance
Management — Deposit Product
Management
wekl SRR
— China Global ERRERINEEHE
Business Development '——  Implementation and
Client Access
W g5
Shared Support Services
AHER R EE HRSwE MEBET
Human Resources (HR) Risk Management Legal and Secretariat Internal Audit
- REGIE TS & P " .
AFSRARRE fERRREE 3 Strategic Communications M
Talent and Organisation Development Credit Risk Management Legal and Customer Advocacy General Audit
| S SEHH || RERGERREE BERLERIES
Performance and Rewards Balance Sheet Risk Management e Client Fulfillment et
Secretariat & Service Technology Audit
|| ANFERS - TIARKE SRR MR
HR Services Market Risk Management IR ER
& Product Control Wealth Governance
| AN 5 kB
HR Business Management BIERREE

Operational Risk Management

ARANAFR
Corporate HR

ST AN B RERE

Branch HR Management

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016

| 27




SEERE
2016 in Review

Al RTT

HHEERERTSNAHELE, URERNRANNEREANZRSHE
i, Sl IEmEEFE L AME R R SEKkEFIB, ®INF
RYE SRR Y THEFHEE,

RRAUAFEE, TERRZOLS RMNPRESER “E7-6e”
151, AEFUNENEZHIGCEFEANLRE, ZEEREER
fa /gl RiE R, B BIE. B, BIRKREN. EREY
. RE. EHRBBEURRSLE, BEZIHSEBEAEEPE
®i ( EZ2H “mE—F” Tl ), BNHERBHERARES 45%
BB,

BRI ERPHFEEMFRERNINE, EHENERRUEP
HERMAMIRPBRLE, RNAZFREEFUHSHBRT
ERBREEBRIVEER, BEH—HEHFRHRNRW T EENEER
EREN, RESHHAMRITRLESIE, AU EREFMER
BB FHOTBREEEST R, 2016 £, BRRZIT. HMPTR
ERSTHSERERE, WS EABEBENTI T BEEK,

“—T BT ERERMERE, BERITNEMLE. #BE - R
RIS ERE, RIMNBEAFEPEFRFTEMXPERBHESMN
RBRMRITHRRTR, Fl0, BMNA—FKKXERHEAUEEING
WM RBHAE; HNI—RXBEREEFTERDRITTRERS
Uzl ERMIAR R AERNLSER, 2016 &£, H1X
FRBIMNT KB Dl B S B 78.6%,

28 | KE5R{T (RE) ARAA 2016 FERE

Corporate Banking

Global uncertainty and China’s ongoing reforms and
restructuring have created both challenges for companies, as
well as opportunities for them to move up the value chain
and to grow their business.

In line with the Chinese government’s move to reduce
excessive industrial capacity, we sharpened our focus
on serving our clients from sectors including food and
agriculture, fast-moving consumer goods, technology
and communications, real estate, energy and electricity,
transportation and logistics, automotive, and advanced
manufacturing and services. Despite the narrowing of our
industry focus, the total number of our clients grew by 4.5
per cent in 2016.

We also capitalised on the favourable policies available
in China’s free trade zones (FTZ) and Sino-Singapore
collaboration in financial innovation to help our clients
manage their regional operations through the use of
customised banking solutions. For example, we collaborated
with other banks in China and Singapore to provide clients
with innovative cross-border solutions that include both
onshore and offshore term financing and market risk
management. Such initiatives enabled our Shanghai FTZ Sub-
branch, and Suzhou and Chonggqing Branches to double their
revenues in 2016.

In addition, we continued to strengthen our support of
clients expanding and investing in Southeast Asia as they
tapped on the business opportunities arising from the
Belt and Road initiative. These include the financing of an
overseas acquisition by a large state-owned power company,
as well as corporate finance advisory services to a large
state-owned enterprise for its private equity issuance in
Hong Kong to support their market expansion in Southeast
Asia. We helped 78.6 per cent more clients expand across the
region in 2016 than in the year before.
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Commercial Banking

We continue to support our clients in their regional
expansion by tapping on the UOB Group’s extensive network,
expertise and resources. This helped our clients to seize
opportunities arising from China’s B&R initiative.

In 2016, our Foreign Direct Investment Advisory Unit
expanded its network of partnerships. Following the
launch of Sino-Singapore Chongging Connectivity Initiative
in November 2015, we signed three Memoranda of
Understanding (MOU) to promote cross-border trade and
investment between Chongging and Southeast Asia, including
Singapore. The MOUs are with the Financial Affairs Office of
the Chongging Municipal People’s Government; Yubei District
Government and Shanghai Pudong Development Bank’s
Chongging Branch; and the China Import and Export Bank
Chongging Branch. Under the MOUs, our Chongging Branch
will work with the partners to help our regional clients and
Chongging-based companies expand into and out of China.

Through our strong partnership network, in 2016 we helped
40 per cent more Chinese clients seize opportunities
overseas than the year before.

In enhancing the support of our clients in the Pearl River
Delta (PRD) region, we continued to collaborate closely
with UOB Hong Kong and UOB Taiwan to provide cross-
border solutions that facilitate the trade and investment
flows within Greater China and between Greater China and
Southeast Asia. The number of Chinese companies from the
PRD region that expanded into Hong Kong and Southeast
Asia increased by more than 30 per cent in 2016.

We also worked closely with the Corporate Banking and
Multinational Corporates teams to offer supply chain
financing solutions to our clients and their suppliers and
distributors, which in turn helped to improve cash flow
management for all the companies in the value chain.
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Financial Institutions Group

In 2016, we expanded our team and enhanced our capabilities
to support the increasing needs of financial institutions in
China as they capitalised on business opportunities arising
from the B&R initiative.

As a result, in 2016 we grew our client base by 47 per cent.

Backed by the Group’s strong network in Southeast Asia,
our three teams, specialising in banks, non-bank financial
institutions and property funds respectively, provided our
clients with tailored and comprehensive financial solutions
to suit their cross-border needs. These financial solutions
include bilateral loans, syndicated loans, gold leasing, bond
issuance, trade finance, cash management and hedging
solutions.



ZHRIT
BMEmE X P EZFIERKME, RNNBERHTEEFRHEBRT
RURRERERE I SEE R IR 5SS 2t H R R
HHEK,

EEEN—F, RERTEARERAMRANEERE, BEHME
URSMEERmASETmNESN, EHEE, EhlMERITER
it ESINFTIRE, AREERZERGUKE L H AT TR A
W55, FRARS TR E P 2R 5 R 3T A R FF k7™ SRE 4520 T hn
o

KIETERREHREBME, RIMMHELEANEEEETPERE
BAMEFERXE: K=&, BR=A/N, REBUREHREZS
REK,

2016 &£, XHRITHMEASMB AL KBNH, EFREFEIRTIE,
2016 EHRNBERIK T WMEET Y MAE R MBI LE, FSEIAIA

MURABEMWEAY “RERSEEIMNIRIT ZTAE, RETIT
A BJIATT

Transaction Banking

Despite the economic slowdown in China, we remained
committed to providing our clients with solutions to meet
their changing needs as they managed and grew their
businesses.

During the year, we continued to invest in enhancing our
capabilities in the areas of cash management, trade finance
and financial supply chain management. We introduced
new features on our electronic banking platform, Business
Internet Banking Plus; established an electronic commercial
draft system; rolled out new liquidity management services;
and launched import and export refinancing solutions for our
financial institution clients. We also strengthened our trade
financing and deposit capabilities.

Tapping on the Group’s strong regional network, we extended
the coverage of our product specialists in China’s rapidly-
developing economic zones, including the Yangtze River
Delta and Pearl River Delta regions, Bohai Economic Rim and
the Southwest Economic Zone.

Our efforts led to a more than 60 per cent growth in our
trade finance assets in 2016. We also doubled our current
account deposit balances.

In recognition of these efforts, we were voted Best Foreign
Cash Management Bank in China for small, medium and
large-sized corporates in the Asiamoney Cash Management
Poll 20716.
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Structured Trade and Commodity Finance

In 2016, we worked closely with our colleagues in Singapore
and Hong Kong to build a diversified pool of commodity
clients in the energy, metals and agriculture sectors.

Tapping our strong local expertise, in 2016 we supported
UOB Group’s regional clients expanding their business in
China by increasing the range of our financing and structured
trade services.

For example, under our new back-to-back financing structure,
our clients are now able to obtain Letters of Credit for their
overseas procurement based on pre-sales contracts without
the need for capital guarantees. This helps to improve the
efficiency of our clients’ capital utilisation.

In view of the fluctuating RMB during the year, we also
worked with Global Markets to help our clients manage their
foreign exchange risk using appropriate hedging strategies.

Our sustained support of our clients’ trade flows across the
region enabled us to achieve strong business growth in 2016.
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Global Markets

In 2016, we continue to tap UOB Group’s extensive network
of Asian markets, our strong local market insights and
partnered client coverage teams to meet the hedging and
investment needs of our corporate clients.

We worked closely with our Commercial Banking, Corporate
Banking, and Structured Trade and Commodity Finance
teams to help our clients manage their market risks in foreign
exchange, interest rates and commodities as they expanded
their business operations. We also collaborated with these
teams to acquire new clients through the provision of
comprehensive financial solutions.

We enhanced our product capabilities to help our clients
take opportunities arising from China’s initiative of B&R,
Backed by our intimate understanding of our clients and
tapping the Group’s outstanding trading capabilities in
Asia and strong network worldwide, we offered financial
institution clients tailored structured products and solutions
that suited their risk appetites. Our Global Markets
specialists also provided cross border investment solutions
and advisory services to support financial institutions in
China in their asset optimisation and risk management.

Our customer-centric approach enabled us to achieve a 113
per cent year-on-year growth in foreign exchange trading
volume from our corporate client segment. In addition, the
overall volume of commodity products rose 74 per cent year
on year, including our expanded range of hedging solutions
such as iron ore.

During the year, we continue to be an active participant
in the local gold market and interbank foreign exchange
market. In recognition of our efforts in China’s foreign
exchange market, we were named as Best Member by CFETS
in 2016. We were also awarded the SGD/CNY Best Market
Maker for the past consecutive three years to recognise our
contribution in on shore liquidity of SGD.

We are also the trial market maker for interbank gold bilateral
market of Shanghai Gold Exchange. We broke through in the
local gold market by closing the first deal on physical gold
import and the first gold leasing transaction. These provide
an alternative financing channel for corporates and increase
the liquidity of domestic gold market as well.
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RMB Solutions

RMB internationalisation reached a milestone in 2016, with
the inclusion of the RMB in the International Monetary Fund's
Special Drawing Rights currency basket. The advancement of
the Belt and Road initiative and the expansion of free trade
zones (FTZ) in China also presented opportunities for the
growth of our cross-border RMB business.

Capitalising on UOB Group’s strong network and in-depth
understanding of Southeast Asia, we supported our clients’
regional expansion plans by providing them with a range of
RMB solutions, from cross-border settlement and foreign
exchange to risk management. As a result, our business
volume grew significantly in 2016.

In 2016, we received approval and authorisation from the
People's Bank of China (PBoC) Shanghai Head Office to
launch our Free Trade Accounting Unit (FTU) in the Shanghai
FTZ. Through the cross-border FTU-based solutions we offer,
our corporate clients can tap the initiatives on favourable
capital account liberalisation to use their onshore or offshore
surplus funding to access financial solutions at a lower cost.

To help to promote cross-border RMB, we organised several
roadshows in Singapore, Malaysia and Thailand, countries
with which China has been seeing increasing trade and
investment flows.

In March 2016, UOB sponsored the launch of Asia's first
Centre for RMB Internationalisation Studies as a main
sponsor. The centre is a partnership between China Centre
for Financial Training of the PBoC and Nanyang Business
School of the Nanyang Technological University, Singapore.
It aims to encourage cooperative research on RMB
internationalisation among financial experts from different
sectors and disciplines.
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Personal Financial Services

While financial technology startups, third-party wealth
managers and peer-to-peer lending companies continue to
disrupt the traditional banking sector with their innovative
business models, we sharpened our focus and deepened our
digitalisation efforts to enhance the customer experience in
2016.

To help our customers diversify their investment risks
and to receive stable returns amid the current market
volatility, we worked with UOB Asset Management as
the exclusive Qualified Domestic Institutional Investor
distributor to launch the United Income Focus Trust. The
fund invests globally in a diverse set of asset classes, from
the traditional (such as equities and fixed income securities)
to the alternative (such as real estate investment trusts and
currencies).

We also helped our customers to plan their finances and
to prepare for a well-rounded education for their children
through a series of development programmes held in
partnership with the Students of the Advancement of Global
Entrepreneurship (SAGE) China. In addition, we held our
inaugural summer camp in Singapore for our customers and
their children.

Recognising our customers’ increasing use of digital channels
for various lifestyle needs, we introduced a remote queue
service via our official WeChat account that enables
customers to pre-book appointment times before visiting
their preferred bank branch. This has helped to shorten the
waiting times for our customers by up to 20 per cent.
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Technology and Operations

In 2016, we continue to upgrade our technology systems
and to optimise our operational processes. These were to
enhance the customer experience, support our business
development and to ensure compliance with regulatory
requirements.

During the year, we worked with Global Markets to support
the launch of its gold leasing business.. We also worked with
the RMB Solutions Team to develop and implement the FTU
system in the Shanghai FTZ.

We also implemented our Electronic Commercial Draft
System to meet our customers’ demand for electronic
drafts. The automated system is connected directly to PBoC
and enables faster turnaround time and greater efficiency
compared with manual processing of bank drafts.

We also upgraded our regulatory reporting systems
and established a risk management system for
Telecommunications Fraud that will enhance our Bank’s
risk controls. Following China’s VAT reform nation-wide,
we launched the VAT system to provide a centralised tax
management platform and to issue the VAT invoice.

In October 2016, we successfully relocated to the Bank’s new
headquarters in Shanghai and ensure seamless provision of
service to our customers.
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Human Resources

At UOB (China), we attract, develop and retain talented
people and help them to build meaningful careers. In
nurturing our people, we also help our clients to meet their
financial needs.

In 2016, we launched a new employee training series titled
‘Beyond Ordinary’, which enhanced our existing training
programme for retail and wholesale banking, as well as
operational and general management.

During the year, more than 50 high-potential colleagues
completed courses at the UOB Leadership Academy. Further
training was provided to the academy graduates through
workshops at which senior management shared their
experiences and experts gave their insights on market trends.
These sessions enabled our people to gain exposure and to
prepare themselves for potential challenges.

We also improved our flexible employee benefits
programme, under which all full-time employees are now
able to customise the healthcare coverage for themselves
and their families. Employees can choose from a wide range
of health and wellness benefits. In addition, as part of
our commitment to promote “Healthy Employees, Active
Lifestyles”, we launched various health-related activities.
These included workshops on healthcare and classes on
yoga, aerobics and kickboxing.

To reinforce the importance of living our values —
Honourable, Enterprising, United and Committed —, we
incorporated a values component in our annual performance
assessment. The launch of our online performance
management tool, ePEAK, in 2016 enabled us to be more
efficient in our annual performance assessments.
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Our commitment to treat every employee with care and
respect was recognised when UOB (China) was named as
one of the Top 100 Best Employers in China by Zhaopin
Limited and Peking University, one of the Top 100 Employers
at China’s Employer Excellence Awards by 51Job Limited, and
the Most Valuable Case Study at the 2016 Best China Talent
Development Awards organised by the Shanghai HR Union.

Just as we care for our people, we believe in making a real
difference in our community. Through the annual UOB
Heartbeat Run/Walk, we raised funds to support the
education of students from Central Primary School of Pian
Ma Yi Minority Village and Yi Hai Central School of Mianning
Village in Sichuan Province. Donations from our colleagues
and the Bank were used to provide these students stationery,
uniforms and shoes, as well as equipment such as computers
and projectors for their classrooms. The funds also provided
scholarships for more than 50 students and seven teachers.
Our colleagues also donated winter apparel and quilts to
keep the students warm during the colder months.
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Customer Advocacy and Service Quality

To enhance our service quality and to ensure that our people
continue to act in the best interests of our customers, we
launched a series of service management programmes in
2016.

During the year, we held 33 service workshops across our
branches and sub-branches to help our frontline colleagues -
from counter employees to relationship managers - improve
their customer servicing skills and to address better our
customers’ financial needs.

We also launched a customer satisfaction survey within
branches to gain direct feedback from our customers on the
Bank’s service standards.

In addition, we organised 112 consumer rights awareness
events in all the cities in which we are operating, focusing
on topics such as the prevention of illegal fundraising and
telecommunications fraud, and raising risk awareness.

To standardise and to enhance our complaint handling
process, in January 2016 we established standard operating
procedures which provide a guide for our branch colleagues.
We also conducted simulation exercises at our Shanghai and
Beijing Branches in March and May respectively to ensure
that our colleagues are familiar with the process.

To encourage and to inspire each other toward service
excellence, UOB Group launched the Customer
Commitments Awards to recognise our people who best
demonstrate our values — Honourable, Enterprising, United
and Committed. Twelve individuals and nine teams were
named as service role models for UOB (China), from which
two individuals and a team were recognised as country
winners.
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UOB (China) is committed to upholding good corporate

governance and is guided by the following in this regard:

a) the People’s Republic of China (PRC) Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks and the Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations
on Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

The Board of Directors (Board), Board Committees, the
Supervisors and Senior Management perform their respective
duties according to the laws and regulations of the country
and the provisions in the Bank’s Articles of Association.

Board of Directors

Board membership has been refreshed following these

changes:

a) Mr Eric Lian Voon Fui and Prof Cham Tao Soon stepped
down from the Board on 30 June 2016 and 26 December 2016
respectively; and

b) Mr Peter Foo Moo Tan and Mr Liu Erh Fei were appointed
to the Board on 18 January 2017 and 20 January 2017
respectively.

The current Board comprises six members, two of whom
are independent directors. The size and composition of
the Board comply with regulatory requirements and the
provisions in the Bank’s Articles of Association. The six
Board members are:

24 %5 F# BRE KIEEH

Name Gender Age Position Current Term of Office

BN 5 64 ERK/ARPUTIENES 201659 A17H E20194E9H16H

Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive and non-independent director From 17 September 2016 to 16 September 2019

rEiEEE 5 5 HUTIERIEZ(TRKRERFHITE) 20174118 H £20194E10 A27H

Peter Foo Moo Tan Male Executive (President and CEO) and non-independent director ~ From 18 January 2017 to 27 October 2019

B3 ES 5 & FEPUTIEMIES 2016512 A27H 22019412 A26H

Francis Lee Chin Yong Male Non-executive and non-independent director From 27 December 2016 to 26 December 2019

#5155 AR % 5 EPATIEMIES 201457 A2 B E201747ANH

Christine Ip Female Non-executive and non-independent director From 12 July 2014 to 11 July 2017

X =% 5 57 W AEHITES 20174 1A20H Z2019411A15H

Liu Erh Fei Male Non-executive and independent director From 20 January 2017 to 15 November 2019
BZAREEH2016EF10A26HEHEEE, B

BZA s 48 M ERITES ERFFENREE

Zeng Zhi Jie Male Non-executive and independent director From 26 October 2016, until a new independent

director is appointed to the Board
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The main responsibilities of the Board are to:

» provide strategic directions, approve strategic business initiatives,
and approve the business plans and annual budget;

» review and monitor the financial performance of the Bank, and
approve true and fair financial statements;

» determine an appropriate capital/debt structure;

» set dividend policy and declare dividends;

e perform succession planning for the Board and Senior
Management and formulate the remuneration policy;

» putin place an effective management team;

« approve the organisational structure;

e oversee the establishment of comprehensive risk management
policies, processes and infrastructure to manage various types
of risk (including outsourcing risk);

» determine the risk profile of the Bank and approve credit
discretionary limits and investment limits;

» review and monitor the risk management, internal audit and
compliance functions and ensure that these functions are
adequately resourced;

e evaluate the performance of the President and CEO and Senior
Management;

e establish appropriate procedures and processes to avoid
situations that may give rise to improper personal gains or
conflicts of interest;

» review and approve the Bank’s system of controls relating to
connected transactions;

» set corporate culture, values and ethical standards;

e review the Bank’s information disclosure policy and be
responsible for the authenticity, accuracy and integrity of the
information disclosed;

e report to the shareholder; and

e exercise such other power as authorised by the shareholder
and perform such other functions as required by the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association.

The Board holds four scheduled meetings in a year. Additional
meetings may be held whenever required.

The Bank’s Articles of Association also provide for the Board
to make decisions by way of circular resolutions.

In 2016, the Board held four meetings which were attended by
all directors.

The procedures for convening a Board meeting, the quorum
required for constituting the meeting, the proceedings at
the meeting, and the procedures for voting and passing of
resolutions complied with the requirements of applicable PRC
laws and regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association. The
minutes of Board meetings are maintained by the Company
Secretary.

The Board passed ten resolutions by way of circulation in 2016.
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Board Committees

The Board has delegated specific functions to five Board
Committees, namely the Executive Committee (EXCO),
Connected Transactions Control Committee (CTCC),
Audit Committee (AC), Nominating and Remuneration
Committee (NRC) and Risk Management Committee
(RMQC).

(1) Executive Committee

a. The EXCO members are Mr Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman), Mr Peter
Foo Moo Tan (with effect from 18 January 2017), Mr Francis Lee
Chin Yong and Mrs Christine Ip. Mr Eric Lian Voon Fui stepped
down as an EXCO member on 30 June 2016.

b. The EXCO oversees the following matters:

» the Bank’s business operations, including formulating internal
policies and business strategies, monitoring the execution of
business plans and approving relevant credit limits; and

» all human resource matters, except for those pertaining to the
President and CEO and Deputy President.

c. The EXCO meets at least once a month and whenever required
in the discharge of its functions.

The EXCO held 16 meetings in 2016.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a. The CTCC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman), Mr Francis
Lee Chin Yong and Mr Liu Erh Fei (with effect from 20 January
2017). Prof Cham Tao Soon stepped down as a CTCC member on
26 December 2016.

b. The CTCC's main responsibilities are to:

o establish and administer the system for managing connected
transactions;

» manage connected transactions and control the risks from such
transactions;

» examine non-material connected transactions; and

e review and submit material connected transactions to the Board
for approval.

c. The CTCC met once in 2016.
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(3) Audit Committee

a.

C.

The AC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman with effect from
17 January 2017), Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong, Mrs Christine Ip and
Mr Liu Erh Fei (with effect from 20 January 2017). Prof Cham Tao
Soon stepped down from the AC and ceased to be its Chairman
on 26 December 2016.

The AC’s main responsibilities are to review/oversee all matters
relating to:

financial statements, and internal and external audit plans and
reports;

the adequacy of internal accounting controls and material
internal controls;

the scope and results of internal and external audits;

the quality of, and any significant change in, accounting policies
or practices;

the adequacy of internal audit resources;

significant findings from internal audit investigations;

the approval of external auditor’s fees; and

the nomination of the external auditor and the head of the
internal audit function.

The AC held four meetings in 2016.

(4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee

a.

The NRC members are Mr Zeng Zhi Jie (Chairman with effect
from 17 January 2017), Mr Wee Ee Cheong, Mr Francis Lee Chin
Yong and Mr Liu Erh Fei (with effect from 20 January 2017). Prof
Cham Tao Soon stepped down from the NRC and ceased to be
its Chairman on 26 December 2016.

The NRC'’s main responsibilities are to:

recommend nominees for appointment to the Board and Board
Committees;

recommend a framework for the remuneration of directors and
key senior executives (including the President and CEO and
Deputy President) for the Board’s approval; and

put in place a system for assessing the effectiveness of the
Board as a whole, the contribution of each Board Committee
and director, and the performance of the President and CEO.

The NRC met once in 2016.
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(5) Risk Management Committee

a. The RMC members are Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong (Chairman with
effect from 17 January 2017), Mr Zeng Zhi Jie, Mrs Christine Ip
and Mr Liu Erh Fei (with effect from 20 January 2017). Prof Cham
Tao Soon stepped down as an RMC member on 26 December
2016.

b. The RMC'’s main responsibilities are to:

» review and recommend risk management strategies, policies and
risk tolerance of the Bank for the Board’s approval;

» oversee the establishment and operation of a robust and
independent risk management system that is consistent with
the strategies and policies approved by the Board;

» review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the Bank’s
risk management framework (including frameworks, policies,
methodologies, human resources, processes, information,
infrastructure and systems) for identifying, measuring,
monitoring and controlling various types of risks;

« review regular management reports on risk exposures, risk
portfolio composition and the management and monitoring of
such exposures and portfolio composition; and

» report to the Board regularly and highlight any adverse risk
event or trend for the Board’s attention.

c. The RMC held four meetings in 2016.

Supervisors

The Bank has two Supervisors who were nominated by the
shareholder and appointed in accordance with regulatory
requirements and the Bank’s Articles of Association. They
are Dr Wee Cho Yaw (Supervisor) and Prof Cham Tao Soon
(Deputy Supervisor with effect from 1 January 2017).

The main responsibilities of the Supervisors include:

e inspecting the accounts and financial statements of the Bank;

e supervising the Board and Senior Management to ensure that
the Bank is run in a prudent manner, and taking corrective
actions where necessary;

» safeguarding the lawful rights and interests of the Bank, the
shareholder and other stakeholders, particularly the depositors;
and

e exercising such other power and authority pursuant to the laws,
regulations and the Bank’s Articles of Association, and as may be
authorised by the shareholder.

In 2016, the Supervisors duly discharged their responsibility
of supervising the Board and Senior Management strictly
in accordance with relevant requirements, including the
provisions under the PRC Company Law and in the Bank’s
Articles of Association. In discharging their responsibility,
the Supervisors received and reviewed regular reports on
the Bank’s operations and risk management, and conducted
supervision of the operation and financial position of the
Bank and the performance of the Directors and Senior
Management.
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Performance of Independent Directors

There were two independent directors on the Board in 2016,
namely Prof Cham Tao Soon (up to 26 December 2016) and
Mr Zeng Zhi Jie. Prof Cham Tao Soon was the Chairman of
the AC and NRC, as well as a member of the CTCC and RMC.
Mr Zeng Zhi Jie is currently the Chairman of the CTCC, AC
and NRC, as well as a member of the RMC.

For the year under review, the two independent directors
attended all four Board meetings convened in 2016 and
discharged their duties diligently and responsibly. They
contributed to the decision-making and oversight by the
Board and Board Committees and safeguarded the lawful
rights and overall interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

A new independent director, Mr Liu Erh Fei, was appointed
on 20 January 2017.

(1) Independent Directors’ Attendance at Board Meetings in 2016

Rz5 H ERFE
MITEEHZ (&) (&) (%) #iE
Name of Independent Director No. of Board Meetings No. of Board Meetings Absent with Remarks
Held Attended Apologies
EiEn
(B Z20165%12H26H ) 4 4 0 ,
Cham Tao Soon
(Up to 26 December 2016)
2 = oo
B LN 4 4 o ,
Zeng Zhi Jie
X =%
( B201751H208 & ) TiEA TiEA NiER ,
Liu Erh Fei Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

(Appointed on 20 January 2017)
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Do BERERERTERENTMUREFTERIIKRELER,
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(2) Dissent of Independent Directors
In 2016, Management did not give cause for the independent
directors to record their dissent on any matter.

Supervisors’ and Directors’ Access to Information

The Supervisors and directors have unfettered access to
information and Management, and receive timely and
comprehensive financial, risk management and operational
reports to facilitate informed discussions during meetings.
They also have access to the Company Secretary whose
responsibilities include advising the Supervisors and the
Board on regulatory changes and best practices in corporate
governance. In discharging their duties. The Supervisors
and directors may seek independent professional advice, if
necessary, at the Bank’s expense.
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Hnig E LK F
TR FRESERTE = 20164128 Bachelor of .Scier.]ce, Estéte Management
FOO Moo Tan President and CEO Male 1962 Dec 2016 National University of Singapore 28
Peter SRS HTID
Chartered Financial Analyst
BT 201557 s a
BEH Alfr i - 77 M kS TR+
YEONG Kok Leng Alternate C_ou_ntry CEO i 1969 July 2015 Bachelor of Business AdministrationNational University 23
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General Manager of Beijing Branch Aug 2010
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LIU Ke o § 1970 Master of Business Administration 21
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Jenny Nanyang Technological University
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TEH Han Yi Chief Financial Officer Female Jun 2013 Bachelor of Accountancy Nanyang Technological University
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LO Siu-Hong HeadnChanEnels Sale 1967 Jun 2014 Project Leadership, Management and Communications 23
Rodney ' Y Contracting for Project Managers
The George Washington University
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TAN Kong Weng X X § 1976 Bachelor of Business Administration, Honours 15
Chief Information Officer Male Jun 2016 ) . . .
Steven National University of Singapore
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WU Peng A RATHER X = 1975 3A Master of Business Administration 16
X Head, Corporate Banking Female Mar 2015 . ) )
Tina The Chinese University of Hong Kong
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LIM Chen Kuo Head. Commercial Bankin Mal 1975 Jun 2014 Master of Science 7
Mark ad, -ommercia’ Baniing ae . National University of Singapore
= _ 3 T RSt #é.—l.\—
in AL RS LY = 2015%10A IR IR SR RE S
LIM Pei Hong ) ) ) 1975 Bachelor of Accountancy, Honours 15
. Head, Personal Financial Services Male Oct 2015 X . .
Winston Nanyang Technological University
HmE s Ao ERAKXFEN A &ML
el R EMBEE -2 20164104 AR SRR
YANG Rui Qi Head. Global Market Mal 1973 Oct 2016 Master of Applied Finance 15
Mark cad, Hlobal Markets ae ¢ The University of Melbourne
FiF ERMNABEE B 1968 20165£4H REBTRFRAREFWML ”
YU Tao Head, Financial Institutions Group ~ Male Apr 2016 Master of Technology Economy Dalian University of Technology
#B B4 SARITEREBEE L 1958 2008498 FH=XEHFEL 35
TEH Wee Jin Head, Corporate Credit Male Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce University of Otago, New Zealand
I . e iy FESE LR
i , B SRITIE AR EE ) 20144 7R * 1%1@[@*.—; FELEME
YEOH Kian Soon ) ) 1970 Bachelor of Science 21
) Head, Commercial Credit Male Jul 2014 ) o
Benedict Carnegie Mellon University
FOE N N KRBT RZERLWEESEL
SREEE 2016512
WANG Hong Xia PAER H,EI = ) = 1971 127 Bachelor of International Business Management 23
Head, Retail Credit Female Dec 2016 ) o )
Carol East China University of Science and Technology
fd i [ SEXZTITHEEML
HONG Xiao Yan ANRBHER = 1977 20074127 Master of Business Administration 19
Head, Human Resources Female Dec 2007 . .
Amy Fudan University
K o s L7 i e EEAAMIAFHRFETHEET L
Hl 201641
ZHANG Sa WS EREE ) = 1972 Ol6#E17 Master of Corporate Finance and Accounting 23
Head, Internal Audit Female Jan 2016 . .
Sarah State University of New York at Buffalo
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WANG Yuan ) 1974 . R - 20
Eliza Head, Legal and Secretariat Female Dec 2007 Master of Business Administration Fudan University
E2AITEA EHMEE Z 1972 2013481 PRI REHE N RFEFHL
ZHAO Li Hong Head, Compliance Female Aug 2013 Master of Laws Katholieke Universiteit Leuven (Belgium)
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ZHANG Xiao Head, Multinational 1971 AR . ) 23
Male Sep 2014 Shanghai University of Finance and Economics and
Andy Corporate . ]
Webster University
REXIR EEATITK = 1973 20144E108 EEFMHEDMAFEET 2
LIM Lian Kian General Manager of Shanghai Branch ~ Male Oct 2014 Bachelor of Science University of South Alabama
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HO Ka Sing General Manager of i/\,ale 1967 Jul 2016 Master of Science in Financial Management 24
Kenneth Shenzhen Branch *01781A1BEE  University of London
HEW IS TITR 2015435 HEXHXERITEEL
HUANG Kuei Ping  General Manager of Guangzhou - 1974 Bachelor of Accounting 16
) Male Mar 2015 ) N )
Patrick Branch Chinese Culture University, Taiwan
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§ . 1972 Master of Science in International Economics Banking 22
HUANG Ying General Manager of Xiamen Branch  Female Sep 2011 ) K X .
and Finance Cardiff University, UK.
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MA Jian Qiang MBASITITR E 1971 20164 4R BHmSAZIHEEPM LT -
Gosen General Manager of Shenyang Branch  Male Apr 2016 Master of Business Administration University of Ballarat
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HU Wei General Manager of 1978 Master of Business Administration 16
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Tony Chengdu Branch Conservatoire National des Arts et Métiers
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SHI Xin Yu R riT i - - 1967 #12A Master of Economics, International Economic Institute 23
General Manager of Tianjin Branch ~ Male Dec 2014 o ]
Edward Nan Kai University
[H'*@ a == 12 Vel =} 4L =
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Beicy General Manager of Hangzhou Branch Female Feb 2012 Bachelor of Electrical Engineer Harbin Engineering University
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, General Manager of Chongqing 1972 Bachelor of Business Administration 19
GOH Tuan Chiok Male May 2014 ) . . .
Branch National University of Singapore
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CHUA Hock Yew 1972 Bachelor of Commerce, Honours 19
General Manager of Suzhou Branch  Male Feb 2015 o
Alexander University of Toronto, Canada
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) Branch Manager of Shanghai 1981 Bachelor of Commerce n
SUA Tzer Ming X Male Jul 2015 . ) - .
Pilot Free Trade Zone Sub-Branch Curtin University of Technology, Australia
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DU Yan Branch Manager of Jingan 1975 Master of Business Administration 14
Female Jun 2015 ) . .
Cherry Sub-Branch United Business Institutes
LN ITITK et g AL
R mINERGAR E: 201645 A R
) Branch Manager of Shanghai Bund 1984 ) g ) n
TANG Liang Male May 2016 Diploma Shanghai LiXin Accounting School
Sub-Branch
R EEFEHZITITR 2012454 WA BEAFTHERML
XU Jie Branch Manager of Dongcheng aale 1979 May 2012 Master of Business Administration 10
Sting Sub-Branch 4 University of Sunshine Coast, Australia
0 LR O ZATITR 2014528 BEEMERFEMFF T
GENG Wei Branch Manager of Lufthansa Centre 1981 Bachelor of Finance 14
Female Feb 2014 o ) )
Carry Sub-Branch South West University of Finance and Economics
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Internal Control and Internal Audit

Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system
that adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and
the Group’s policies and guidelines. This provides a robust
framework that enables the Bank to set strategic and
practical objectives to support its business development.

The Board assesses the Bank’s internal control system
through the review of risk management reports and analysis,
operational and budget reports, internal audit reports tabled
at regular meetings, discussions at various internal committees
and from the exchange of insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system is a result of the continuous improvement to the
internal control environment, including, but not limited
to, the strengthening of risk identification/assessment,
monitoring processes and risk mitigation techniques;
and constantly undergoing communication/feedback
mechanisms, and evaluation/correction. The internal control
system is able to provide a reasonable level of assurance on
the implementation of legal statutes and regulations.
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Internal Audit

Internal Audit is an independent function that reports
functionally to the Audit Committee (AC) and Group Audit,
and administratively to the President and CEO of UOB (China).

The primary role of Internal Audit is to assist the Board
and management to discharge their legal and executive
obligations by providing independent, objective assurance
and value-added services designed to improve the Bank’s
operations. It helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by
having a systematic and disciplined approach to provide an
independent assessment of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the Bank’s internal financial controls, operational and
compliance controls, and to improve the effectiveness of risk
management, control and governance processes.

It performs its internal audit function according to the
Internal Audit Guidelines for Financial Institutions as
governed by the China Banking Regulatory Commission and
Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing
set by the Institute of Internal Auditors. Internal Audit adopts
a risk-based prioritisation approach to develop its strategic
audit plan to determine audit frequency. This approach
also adopts a comprehensive assessment of inherent risks,
controls and regulatory hot spots. The audit scope covers all
businesses, operations and the infrastructure and applications
of systems in the headquarters and branches. The strategic
plan is reviewed annually.

All internal audit reports are provided to the AC. Significant
issues are highlighted by Internal Audit, who also monitors
closely the follow-up actions taken by the management
team on the issues raised by Internal Audit, external audit
and regulators.
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Managing risk is an integral part of our business strategy. Our
risk management approach focuses on ensuring continued
financial soundness and safeguarding the interests of our
stakeholders, while remaining nimble to seize value-creating
business opportunities in a fast changing environment. We
are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance, sound risk management principles and business
practices to achieve sustainable long-term growth. We
continuously strive towards best risk management practices
to support our strategic objectives.

2016 Highlights

Ensuring sustainable growth through informed risk decision-
making processes

We expanded our Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC)
system to include coverage of Key Risk and Control Self-
Assessments (KRCSA), Compliance Review and Regulatory
Risk Assessment, and Key Operational Risk Indicators
(KORIs). This is instrumental in helping the Bank achieve
standardisation of KRCSA and KORI for all Business Units/
Support Units across all branches.

Meeting new regulatory requirements and expectations

As a leading bank in Asia, the Bank also recognizes its role
in driving responsible and sustainable business practices to
ensure long-term financial stability. In 2016, we marked a
major milestone with the establishment of our responsible
financing policy to integrate environmental, social and
governance (ESG) considerations into risk assessment and
credit decision processes. The policy was successfully rolled
out in October, covering the 8 high risk sectors highlighted in
the Association of Banks in Singapore’s (ABS) Guidelines on
Responsible Financing. The Bank is committed to promote
responsible financing in the country and will work closely
with its customers to reduce and manage the ESG impact
of their businesses. We will also continue to engage with
our stakeholders to ensure material ESG concerns are duly
considered and adequately addressed.
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Our Approach

UOB (China)’s risk management structure, as shown in the
following diagram, aims to promote a ‘risk aware’ culture
throughout the Bank. This requires the various risk and
control oversight functions to work together with business
units to identify their risks and to facilitate their risk and
control self-assessments.

Our risk management strategy is targeted at ensuring proper
risk governance so as to facilitate ongoing effective risk
discovery and to set aside adequate capital efficiently to
cater for the risks arising from our business activities and
external factors. Risks are managed within levels established
by the senior management committees and approved by the
Board and its committees. We have put in place a framework
of policies, methodologies, tools and processes that will help
us identify, measure, monitor and manage material risks faced
by the Bank. This allows us to concentrate our efforts on the
fundamentals of banking and to create long-term value for
all our stakeholders.

The Bank’s risk governance frameworks, policies and appetite
provide the overarching principles and guidance for the
Bank’s risk management activities. They help to shape our
key decisions for capital management, strategic planning and
budgeting, and performance management to ensure that the
risk dimension is appropriately and sufficiently considered.
We also take into consideration the Bank’s Risk Appetite in
the development of risk-related Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs) for performance measurement. This serves to embed
a risk management mindset and culture throughout the
organisation.

Our risk governance frameworks, policies and appetites are
implemented through identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting processes. Risk reports are regularly submitted
to management and the Board to keep them apprised of the
Bank’s risk profile.
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Risk Governance

UOB (China)’s responsibility for risk management starts at the

top with our Board overseeing a governance structure that is

designed to ensure that the Bank’s business activities are:

» conducted in a safe and sound manner and in line with
the highest standards of professionalism;

» consistent with the Bank’s overall business strategy and
risk appetite; and

» subjected to adequate risk management and internal
controls.

In this regard, the Board is assisted by the Executive
Committee (EXCO) and Risk Management Committee (RMC).
The Board also reviews the overall risk appetite and level of
risk capital to maintain for the Bank.

The CEO has established senior management committees to
assist in making business decisions with due consideration to
risks and returns. The main senior management committees
involved in this are the Management Committee (MC),
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), In-Country Credit
Committee (ICCC), Operational Risk Management Committee
(ORMC), Consumer Rights Protection Committee (CRPC) and
the Risk and Capital Committee (RCC). These committees
also assist the Board committees in specific risk areas.

Senior management and the senior management committees
are authorised to delegate risk appetite limits by business
lines and/or broad product lines.

Risk management is also the responsibility of every employee
within the Bank. Risk awareness and accountability are
embedded in our culture through an established framework
that ensures appropriate oversight and accountability for the
effective management of risk throughout the Bank and across
risk types. This is executed through an organisation control
structure that provides three “lines-of-defence” as follows:
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First line of defence

The Risk Owner: The business and business support functions
have primary responsibility for implementing and executing
effective controls for the management of risks arising from
their business activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with approved risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and
to highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

Second line of defence

Risk Oversight: The risk and control oversight functions (such
as Risk Management and Compliance Function), the Chief
Risk Officer (CRO) and the senior management committees
provide the second line of defence.

The risk and control oversight functions support the Bank’s
strategy of balancing growth with stability by establishing risk
policies, frameworks, risk appetite and limits within which
the business functions must operate. The risk and control
oversight functions are also responsible for the independent
review and monitoring of the Bank’s risk profile and highlight
any significant vulnerabilities and risk issues to the respective
management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions
from business functions ensures the necessary checks and
balances.

Third line of defence

Independent Audit: The Bank’s internal and external auditors
conduct risk-based audits covering all aspects of the first and
second lines of defence to provide independent assurance
to the CEO, Audit Committee and the Board, on the
effectiveness of the risk management and control structure,
policies, frameworks, systems and processes.
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Risk Appetite

UOB (China) has established a risk appetite framework
to define the amount of risk we are able and willing to
take in pursuit of its business objectives. The objective of
establishing a risk appetite framework is not to limit risk-
taking but to ensure that the Bank’s risk profile remains
within well-defined and tolerable boundaries. The framework
was formulated based on the following key criteria:

e Relevance to respective stakeholders, with appropriate
levels of granularity;

e Practical, consistent and easy to understand metrics for
communication and implementation;

+ Alignment to key elements of the Bank’s business
strategy;

* Analytically substantiated and measureable metrics .

The risk appetite defines suitable thresholds and limits across
key areas including but not limited to credit risk, country
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk and reputation
risk. Our risk-taking approach is focused on businesses
which we understand and are well-equipped to manage the
risk involved. Through this approach, we aim to minimise
earnings volatility and concentration risk and ensure that
our high credit rating, strong capital and funding base remain
intact. This allows us to be a stable partner of our customers
through changing economic conditions and cycles.

UOB (China)’s risk appetite framework is updated and
approved annually by the Board/Board level committee.
Management monitors and reports the risk limits to the
Board.
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Material Risks

UOB (China)’s business strategies, products, customer
profiles and operating environment expose us to a
number of financial and non-financial risks. Identifying and
monitoring key risks are integral to the Bank’s approach to
risk management. It allows us to make proper assessment
and proactively mitigate these risks across the Bank. The key
risks which could impact the success of achieving the Bank’s
strategic objectives are as follows.
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UOB (China) has adopted the Basel Framework and observes
capital management measures on commercial banks by China
Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC). We continue to
adopt a prudent and proactive approach in navigating the
evolving regulatory landscape, with emphasis on sound risk
management principles in delivering sustainable returns.

We have adopted Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment
Process (ICAAP) to assess on an ongoing basis the amount of
capital necessary to support our activities. We review the
ICAAP periodically to ensure that the Bank remains well-
capitalised after considering all material risks. Stress testing
is conducted to determine capital adequacy under stressed
conditions.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from any failure by a
borrower or counterparty to meet its financial obligations
when such obligations are due. Credit risk is the single
largest risk that we face in our core business as a commercial
bank, arising primarily from loans and other lending-related
commitments to retail, corporate and institutional borrowers.
Treasury and capital market operations, and investments also
expose the Bank to counterparty and issuer credit risks.

Integral to the management of credit risk is a framework
that clearly defines policies and processes relating to the
measurement and management of credit risk.

Credit Risk Governance and Organisation

The Risk and Capital Committee (RCC) and In-Country Credit
Committee (ICCC) are the key oversight committee for
credit risk and support the CEO and board level committees
in managing the Bank’s overall credit risk exposures. The
committees serve as executive forum for discussions on all
credit-related issues including the credit risk management
framework, policies, processes, infrastructure, methodologies
and systems. Particularly, ICCC holds the responsibility of
approving credit facilities and exposures to borrowers and/or
counterparties of the Bank within the Risk Appetite Limit set
by the Board and the discretionary limits delegated by the
EXCO. RCC discusses and proposes credit risk management
framework for EXCO approval, and reviews and assesses the
Bank’s credit portfolios and credit risk profiles.

The Credit Risk Management Division is responsible for the
reporting, analysis and management of all elements of credit
risk. By adopting parent practice while catering for local
regulatory and business need, it develops bank-wide credit
policies and guidelines, and focuses on facilitating business
development within a prudent, consistent and efficient
credit risk management framework.
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Credit Risk Policies and Processes
We have established credit policies and processes to manage
credit risk in the following key areas:

Credit Approval Process

To maintain the independence and integrity of the credit
approval process, our credit origination and approval
functions are clearly segregated. Credit approval authority
is delegated to officers based on their experience, seniority
and track record, and credit approval is based on a risk-
adjusted scale according to a borrower’s credit rating. All
credit approval officers are guided by credit policies and
credit acceptance guidelines that are periodically reviewed
to ensure their continued relevance to the Bank’s business
strategy and the business environment.

Internal Rating System

The Bank employs internal rating models to support the
assessment of credit risk and the assignment of exposures to
rating grades or pools. Internal ratings are used pervasively
by the Bank in the areas of credit approval, credit review and
monitoring, credit stress testing, limits setting, pricing and
collections. The models are independently validated before
they are implemented to ensure they are fit for purpose.
The robustness of these rating models is monitored on an
ongoing basis, and all models are subject to annual reviews
conducted by model owners to ascertain that the chosen risk
factors and assumptions continue to remain relevant for the
respective portfolios.

Credit Concentration Risk

Credit concentration risk may arise from a single large
exposure or from multiple exposures that are closely
correlated. This is managed by setting exposure limits
on obligor groups, portfolios, borrowers, industries and
countries, generally expressed as a percentage of the Bank’s
eligible capital base. Regular assessments of emerging
risks and reviews of industry and country outlooks are
also performed to provide a forward-looking view on
developments that could impact the Bank’s portfolio.

Credit Stress Test

Credit stress-testing is an integral part of the Bank’s credit
portfolio management process. It involves identifying
possible events or future changes in economic conditions
that may have unfavourable effects on the Bank’s credit
exposures, and assessing the Bank’s ability to manage its
financial resources through adverse circumstances.
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Credit Risk Mitigation

Our potential credit losses are mitigated through a variety
of instruments such as collateral, derivatives, guarantees and
netting arrangements. As a fundamental credit principle,
the Bank generally does not grant credit facilities solely on
the basis of the collateral provided. All credit facilities are
granted based on the credit standing of the borrower, source
of repayment and debt servicing ability.

Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit
risk assumed and the value of the collateral is monitored
periodically. The frequency of valuation depends on the type,
liquidity and volatility of the collateral. The main types of
collateral taken by the Bank include cash, real estate and bank
guarantees. Appropriate haircuts are applied to the market value
of collateral, reflecting the underlying nature of the collateral,
quality, volatility and liquidity.

In extending credit facilities to small- and medium-sized
enterprises (SMEs), we also often take personal guarantees as
a form of moral support to ensure moral commitment from
the principal shareholders and directors.

Exposures arising from foreign exchange, derivatives and
securities financing transactions are typically mitigated
through agreements such as the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association (ISDA) Master Agreements, and
the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors (NAFMII) Agreement. Such agreements help to
minimise credit exposure by allowing us to offset what
we owe to a counterparty against what is due from that
counterparty in the event of a default.

Credit Monitoring and Remedial Management

The Bank regularly monitors credit exposures, portfolio
performance and emerging risks that may impact our credit
risk profile. The Board and Senior Management are updated
on credit trends through internal risk reports. An early alert
process has also been put in place whereby vulnerable
accounts are escalated by the business units to senior
management for discussion on account strategy and remedial
actions.

Delinquency Monitoring

We monitor closely the delinquency of borrowing accounts
as it is a key indicator of credit quality. An account is
considered as delinquent when payment is not received on
the due date. Any delinquent account, including a revolving
credit facility (such as an overdraft) with limit excesses,
is closely monitored and managed through a disciplined
process by officers from business units and risk management
function.
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Loan Classification, Provisioning and Write-Off

We classify our credit portfolios according to the borrower’s
ability to repay the credit facility from their normal source of
income. Any account which is delinquent (or in excess for a
revolving credit facility such as an overdraft) for more than 90
days will be categorized automatically as ‘Non-Performing’.

All borrowing accounts are categorised into ‘Pass’, ‘Special
Mention’ or ‘Non-Performing’ categories. Non-Performing
accounts are further categorised as ‘Substandard’, ‘Doubtful’
or ‘Loss’ in accordance with the guidelines of the China
Banking Regulatory Commission (CBRC). The Bank has
an independent credit review process to ensure the
appropriateness of loan grading and classification.

Upgrading and declassification of a Non-Performing account
to ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’ status must be supported by
a credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows
and financial position of the borrower. It must also be
satisfied that once the account is declassified, the account is
unlikely to be classified again in the near future.

A restructured account is categorised as Non-Performing
and placed on the appropriate classified grade based on our
assessment of the financial condition of the borrower and
the ability of the borrower to repay under the restructured
terms.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the Non-Performing account.
A classified account is written off when the prospect of a
recovery is considered poor or when all feasible avenues of
recovery have been exhausted.

Special Asset Management and Retail Credit Management
Special Asset Management (SAM) and Retail Credit
Management manage the Bank’s corporate and housing loan
non-performing portfolios respectively. Non-performing
accounts are proactively managed with the intention of
nursing such accounts back to health and transferring them
back to the respective business units or exiting the accounts
in order to maximize recovery.
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Loans by Booking Branch

i) ART (HAT) bt
Branch Outstanding (RMB'm) (%)
L iBShanghai 10,973 45%
Jt FBeijing 3,584 15%
#H M Hangzhou 2,320 9%
A #BChengdu 1,702 7%
I~ Guangzhou 1,427 6%
X i#Tianjin 1,137 4%
B TXiamen 925 4%
ixl[Shenzhen 915 4%
7L BAShenyang 793 3%
E KChongqing 415 2%
7 Suzhou 212 1%
&t Total 24,402 100%

BRI 53 2R A R BERIE R
Loans by Classification

Wi ART (BAT) mtk
Branch Outstanding (RMB'm) (%)
IE#Pass 23,925 98%
% i Special Mention 162 1%
R Z%Substandard 163 1%
A £EDoubtful 62 0%
K Loss 91 0%
&it Total 24,402 100%

(BRATUSHIERIESREITHIT M SR ERBXERLS. )

(For “Loans by Industry Distribution’, please refer to relevant note of the audited financial report.)

2016 £, ARBHAITARMIGSBEAT, ARHBHMLFIA  As at 31 December 2016, total non-performing loans
1.29%, amounted to RMB315.5 million, representing 1.29% of the
Bank’s total loans portfolio.
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Market Risk

The ALCO meets monthly to review and provide directions
on market risk matters. The Market Risk Management and
Product Control (MRPC) and Balance Sheet Risk Management
(BSRM) Divisions support the RCC and the ALCO with
independent assessment of the market risk profile of the
Bank.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk
policies, practices, and the control structure with appropriate
delegation of authority and market risk limits. We employ
valuation methodologies that are in line with sound market
practices, and we independently validate valuation and risk
models. In addition, a Product/Service Programme process
ensures that market risk issues identified are adequately
addressed prior to the launch of products and services.
We continually review and enhance our management of
derivatives risks to ensure that the complexities of the
business are appropriately controlled.

Our overall market risk appetite is balanced at the Bank
and business unit levels with targeted revenue and takes
into account the capital position of the Bank. This ensures
that the Bank remains well-capitalised, even under stress
conditions. The risk appetite is translated into risk limits
that are delegated to business units. These risk limits have
proportional returns that are commensurate with the risks
taken.

Market risk appetite is provided for all trading exposure
within the Bank as well as the Bank’s non-trading FX
exposures. The Bank is mainly exposed to market risk in its
trading portfolios that arises from changes in interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and commodity prices from the
Bank’s client-driven market making and product structuring
activities as well as trading activities.

The Bank currently adopts the Standardised Approach for the
calculation of regulatory market risk capital but uses Internal
Models Approach to measure and control trading market
risks.

The Bank estimates a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) within a 99
per cent confidence interval, using the historical simulation
method, as a control for market risk. The method assumes
that possible future changes in market rates may be implied
by observed historical market movements.
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Trading Backtesting Chart
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UOB China - Trading Backtesting Chart
(Hypothetical daily profit and loss versus VaR@ 99% confidence interval)
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As VaR is the statistical measure for potential losses, the
VaR measures are backtested against profit and loss of the
trading book to validate the robustness of the methodology.
The backtesting process analyses whether the exceptions are
due to model deficiencies or market volatility. All backtest
exceptions are tabled at the ALCO with recommended
actions and resolutions.

To complement the VaR measure, we perform stress and
scenario tests to identify the Bank’s vulnerability to event
risk. These tests serve to provide early warnings of plausible
extreme losses to facilitate proactive management of market
risk.

The Bank’s daily VaR on 31 December 2016 was CNY 2.18
million.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2016 | 63




RS & 2R
Risk Management

RATIK P R KBS
AFEARERSAR RN ENRERIERHEN L, BFRHER
BEEMHHE T REERS AR ENRITHRE TR ZRE,

FERBEERNETEZEBRREESHALNEFRED, BEBHRR
TERE. BE. RS RBNSRRIPIHMEFHRITEARNEF
NEMEK,

RITERSHIE, ERERESHHRMERESN, SAEEN
HRITHKERMERER O, B FEZGEB A RENTFRES
HHSH, BTEMETHNFIWAREFNEBELM. FIEE
REZSERENHR., MihRRSHHNENE, 185 TEHEE,
KRR A REEIF R TN ENZMERKX,

AT R RIS BN FE A= EFNMEEES N A EERHET
FEREEAMR, UBRRITERBHELESNAEAFERHX
IER BT RITE = RERAFI, RR, ZEHWR A TR
B35 T AT e & 4 = A5 ok B B B T 8 MR i SR AT TR BRI S B B0 T 37
IME TR EE A R,

BFMZE, CEMBRNMEEEERERZ S THREE D THR
M E IR 1T E IR AN R

64 | KE5R{T (RE) ARAA 2016 FERE

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

The ALCO maintains oversight of the effectiveness of the
interest rate risk management structure. The Balance Sheet
Risk Management (BSRM) Division supports the ALCO in
monitoring the interest rate risk profile of the banking book.

Our primary objective of interest rate risk management
is to protect and to enhance capital or economic net
worth through adequate, stable and reliable growth in net
interest earnings under a broad range of possible economic
conditions.

Banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified on a
monthly basis using analysis tools include repricing schedules
and sensitivity analysis. They provide indications of the
potential impact of interest rate changes on interest income
and price value through the analysis of the sensitivity of
assets and liabilities to changes in interest rates. Interest rate
sensitivity varies with different repricing periods, currencies
and embedded options. Mismatches in the longer tenor will
experience greater change in the price-value of interest rate
positions than similar positions in the shorter tenor.

We also perform stress testing regularly to determine the
adequacy of capital in meeting the impact of extreme
interest rate movements on the balance sheet. Such tests
are also performed to provide early warnings of potential
extreme losses, facilitating the proactive management of
interest rate risks in an environment of rapid financial market
changes.

The risks arising from the trading book, such as interest rates,
foreign exchange rates and equity prices are managed and
controlled under the market risk framework.
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Liquidity Risk

The bank maintains sufficient liquidity to fund our day-
to-day operations, to meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, to participate in new investments, and to
repay borrowings. Hence, liquidity is managed in a manner to
address known as well as unanticipated cash funding needs.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO. These
policies, controls and limits enable the bank to monitor and
to manage liquidity risk to ensure that sufficient sources
of funds are available over a range of market conditions.
These include minimising excessive funding concentrations
by diversifying the sources and terms of funding as well as
maintaining a portfolio of high quality and marketable debt
securities.

We take a conservative stance in the Bank’s liquidity
management by continuing to gather core deposits, ensuring
that liquidity limits are strictly adhered to and that there are
adequate liquid assets to meet cash shortfall.

The distribution of deposits is managed actively to ensure a
balance between cost effectiveness, continued accessibility
to funds and diversification of funding sources. Important
factors in ensuring liquidity are competitive pricing,
proactive management of the bank’s core deposits and the
maintenance of customer confidence.

Our liquidity risk is aligned with the regulatory liquidity risk
management framework and is measured and managed on
a projected cash flow basis. The bank is monitored under
business-as-usual and stress scenarios. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the bank’s liquidity exposure.
We also employ liquidity early warning indicators and trigger
points to signal possible contingency situations. With regard
to the regulatory requirements on Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(LCR) which are effective from 31 December 2014, the bank’s
ratio was about 165.83 per cent as at 31 December 2016 with
High Quality Liquidity Assets (“HQLA") of RMB6.22 billion
and Net Cash Outflow (“NCO”) of RMB3.75 billion.

We have contingency funding plans in place to identify
potential liquidity crises using a series of warning indicators.
Crisis management processes and various strategies including
funding and communication have been developed to
minimise the impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate
or failed internal processes, people and systems, or from
external events. Operational risk includes regulatory, legal
and reputational risks but excludes strategic risk.

Our objective is to manage operational risk at appropriate
levels relative to the markets in which the businesses
operate.

Operational Risk Governance, Framework and Tools
Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures by which business and support units properly
identify, assess, monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The
ORMC meets monthly to provide oversight of operational
risk matters.

The Operational Risk Governance structure adopts the Three
Lines of Defence Model. The businesses, as the first line of
defence, are responsible for establishing a robust control
environment as part of their day-to-day operations. Each
business is responsible for implementing the operational
risk framework and policies, embedding appropriate internal
controls into processes and maintaining business resilience
for key activities.

Operational Risk Management Division, as the second line
of defence, oversees the management of operational risk. It
exercises governance over operational risk through providing
relevant frameworks, policies, tools and systems, quality
assurance of internal controls as well as operational risk
measurement. It also monitors and reports operational risk
issues to Senior Management, the relevant management
committees and the Board.

Internal Audit acts as the third line of defence by providing
an independent and objective assessment on the overall
effectiveness of the risk governance framework and internal
control through periodic audit reviews.

A key component of the operational risk management
framework is risk identification and control self-assessments.
This is achieved through the Bank-wide implementation of a
set of operational risk tools. Several risk mitigation policies
and programmes are in place to maintain a sound operating
environment.
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We have a business continuity and crisis management
programme in place to ensure prompt recovery of critical
business functions should there be unforeseen events. Our
Senior Management provides an annual attestation to the
Board on the state of business continuity readiness of the
Bank.

We have also adopted a technology risk management
framework to enable the Bank to manage technology risks in
a systematic and consistent manner.

Regulatory risk refers to the risk of non-compliance with
laws, regulations, rules, standards and codes of conduct. We
identify, monitor and manage this risk through a structured
governance framework of Compliance policies, procedures
and guidelines maintained by the Bank. The framework
also manages the risk of regulatory breaches and sanctions
relating to Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the
Financing of Terrorism.

The Bank actively manages fraud risk and bribery risks. Tools
and policies, including a whistle-blowing programme, a
material risk notification protocol and a fraud risk awareness
training programme, have been developed to manage such
risks. All employees are guided by a Code of Conduct, which
includes anti-bribery and anti-corruption provisions.

Legal risk arises from unenforceable, unfavourable, defective
or unintended contracts, lawsuits or claims, developments in
laws and regulations, or non-compliance with applicable laws
and regulations. Business units work with the Bank’s legal
counsel and external legal counsel to ensure that legal risks
are effectively managed.

Reputational risk is the risk of adverse impact on earnings,
liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholder
perception or opinion of the Bank’s business practices,
activities and financial condition. The Bank recognises the
impact of reputational risk and we have developed adopted
a policy to identify and manage the risk across the Bank.

Our insurance programme which covers crime, property
damage, public liability, as well as directors’ and officers’
liability, etc enables us to mitigate operational losses
resulting from significant risk events.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update
Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100 per cent.

(2) There were no changes to the Bank’s registered capital,
nor any split or merger during the reporting period.

(3) None of the Bank’s directors, supervisors or top
management was penalised by the regulatory authorities
during the reporting period.

(4) Highlights during the reporting period:

In May 2016, UOB (China)’s Shanghai Xintiandi Sub-branch ceased
operations.

- In October 2016, UOB (China) relocated our headquarters and
the Shanghai Main Branch to UOB Plaza at 116, 128 Yincheng
Road, Pudong New Area.

- In October 2016, UOB (China) obtained approval from the CBRC
Yunnan Office to set up Kunming Branch, which will be the
Bank’s 17" branch in China.

Others:

In the second half of 2016, the CBRC issued the approval for
foreign banks to operate their retail RMB businesses without
cash services or ground floor premises.

Following this announcement, UOB (China)’s Shenyang Branch
and Tianjin Branch ceased their cash counter services in
September and December 2016 respectively.
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SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: www.uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Room 102, No. 116, 128 Yincheng
Road

Pudong New Area

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing'an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
1P01-02, 201-203, United Plaza
1468 Nanjing Road West, Jingan
District

Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9366

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Bund Sub-branch (Shanghai)
No.20 Zhong Shan Dong Yi Road
Huangpu District

Shanghai 200002

Tel: (86) (21) 2319 8388

Fax: (86) (21) 6323 3022

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
Sub-branch (Wholesale Banking
Only)

Room 103, No.2 Tai Zhong Nan Road
Pudong New Area

Shanghai Pilot Free Trade Zone
200131

Tel: (86) (21) 2067 2888

Fax: (86) (21) 5019 6220
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Beijing Branch

Unit 102 1/F

Unit 01-03, 05-09 25/F
Tower C Office Park

No. 5 Jing Hua South Street
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100020

Tel: (86) (10) 5879 2626

Fax: (86) (10) 8590 6725

Dongcheng Sub-branch
(Beijing)

Unit 108, Tower C

The Fifth Square

7 Chaoyangmen, North Avenue
Beijing 100010

Tel: (86) (10) 8418 3688

Fax: (86) (10) 8418 3668

Lufthansa Centre Sub-branch
(Beijing)

S104./S105 and C806,/C807
No.50 Liangmagiao Road
Chaoyang District

Beijing 100125

Tel: (86) (10) 8489 3888

Fax: (86) (10) 6461 5750

Chengdu Branch

Suite 1, First floor, Building 1and
Suite 9-9, 12th floor, Unit2, Building1
PingAn Finance Centre, No.99 Dong
Da Street Jinjiang District

Chengdu 610021

Tel: (86) (28) 68711688

Fax: (86) (28) 8653 1878

Guangzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1106 - 1114 Metro Plaza 183 - 187
Tianhe Bei Road Tianhe District
Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787

Fax: (86) (20) 8755 6661



LPRST

HBAT AR b T B 555
W E L CEECIE T2
HR4R: 110013

FEiE: (86) (24) 3128 0606
fEH: (86) (24) 3128 0628

RN IT (32055 )
R REHRHE50025
=T gt F wll Aol
13#02, 03, 05, 06 #jT
i 4s: 518008

FEiE: (86) (755) 2294 5688
fEH.: (86) (755) 8246 3326

B4
EWiEiEL 19SS
KERITKE-2E
B4R 361012

HEiE: (86) (592) 508 1601
fEH: (86) (592) 508 1605

KESFIT

RiEHEXAILEE2365 0

2385

B 4R: 300040

FH1E: (86) (22) 83211888
fEH: (86) (22) 2321 0166

BN AT

mMTERELEINS, 1815

RERAE201, 203=
#B4R: 310013

FEi%: (86) (571) 2809 0666
fEH: (86) (571) 8190 9619

BRMIT
EXTHPXRER23S
EMARAE RO EE
1BLI03 R 5F#31EARTT
BB 4R: 400010

FE1E: (86) (23) 6037 2888
fEH: (86) (23) 6037 2788

Shenyang Branch
Unit C1,1-2 Floor
Fortune Plaza Tower C
No. 55 Beizhan Road
Shenhe District
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3128 0606
Fax: (86) (24) 3128 0628

Shenzhen Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 02, 03, 05, 06 13 Floor Di Wang
Commercial Center Shun Hing
Square 5002 Shennan Road East
Shenzhen 518008

Tel: (86) (755) 2294 5688

Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor United Overseas Bank
Building 19 Hubin Bei Road
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601

Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605

Tianjin Branch

No. 236 and 238 Hebei Road
Heping District

Tianjin 300040

Tel: (86) (22) 83211888

Fax: (86) (22) 2321 0166

Hangzhou Branch

Room 201and 203, No.171 and 181
Tian Mu Shan Road, Xihu District,
Hangzhou 310013

Tel: (86) (571) 2809 0666

Fax: (86) (571) 8190 9619

Chongging Branch

L103 & 31F Unit A

HNA-POLY International Centre
No. 235 Min Sheng Road, Yu Zhong
District

Chongging 400010

Tel: (86) (23) 6037 2888

Fax: (86) (23) 6037 2788
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2105, 21065

BR4R: 650000

Suzhou Branch (Wholesale
Banking Only)

Unit 1801, Tower 1, Jinghope Square
No0.88, Huachi Street

Suzhou Industrial Park (SIP)
Suzhou 215000

Tel: (86) (512) 6298 5200

Fax: (86) (512) 8686 2006

Kunming Branch (Preparatory)
(Wholesale Banking Only)
Unit 2105 & 2106, 21/F East Tower,
MASTER

1 Chongren Street Wuhua District
Kunming 650000
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Hitik &
Auditors’ Report

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2017) Shen Zi No 60658622_BO01

To the Board of Directors of United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited, which comprise the
balance sheet as at 31 December 2016, the income statement,
the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements. This responsibility
includes: (1) preparing and fairly presenting the financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control as management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Chinese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with Code of Ethics for
Chinese Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform
the audit to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (LLP) Shanghai Office

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

74 | KESRIT (RE) HRAA 2016 FERE

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers the internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly,
in all material aspects, the financial position of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited as at 31 December 2016 and
its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises.

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yan, Sheng Wei

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Wang, Wen Yan

24 March 2017



#BERER

Balance Sheet

2016 £ 12 A 31 B 31 December 2016
( BR4FRNERRSS, ETRMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

BiEFS 2016512 A31H 20155124310

Notes 6 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
r= ASSETS
& RIFHM PR ITERIN Cash and balances with the central bank 1 6,874,732,445 3,958,117,635
=2ERE Precious metals 26,465,000 63,500,850
TR A SRR Due from banks 2 4,281,972,740 1,509907,973
RHEAEE Placements with banks and other financial institutions 3 8,952,621,562 3,048,717,591
;é;gggg%ﬂg#ﬁjﬁ)\é% Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 4 115,977,944 5,984,251,565
TTEEMA~ Derivative financial assets 5 2,401,319,415 1,293,652,048
ENBRESRE™ Reverse repurchase financial assets 6 536,900,000 -
R 2 Interest receivables 7 187,536,443 233,228,171
V) 5 &k Loans and advances to customers 8 23,887,216,059 23,252,939,788
At HESmERS Available-for-sale financial assets 9 3,757,637,920 3,498,224,643
B E R = Fixed assets 10 39,015,380 30,807,769
TR EF= Intangible assets 1 100,945,399 64,412,588
HBIEFSF R Deferred tax assets 12 57,279711 64,048,683
Hitzrs Other assets 13 166,791,818 155,105,180
BBt TOTAL ASSETS 52,386,411,836 43156,914,484
& LIABILITIES
5] ol R L & BAATLATF BRI Due to banks and other financial institutions 15 306,329,143 2,133,934,582
KANEE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 16 12,723,376,260 8,713,243,626
zgggﬁgigggﬁﬁ)\ Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 17 1,578,387,461 1,444,819,228
TEERmAR Derivative financial liabilities 5 2,647,562,285 1,219,666,113
R FER Customer deposits 18 25,185,305,751 22,456,641,544
R ATER T HrE Payroll payables 19 73,564,958 82177701
MR Tax payables 20 44,184,847 27,691,113
R AFFIR Interest payables 21 290,141,186 352,573,770
Hithta i Other liabilities 22 75,897,778 86,396,699
famat TOTAL LIABILITIES 45,724,749,669 36,517144,376
A& EQUITY
S E A Paid-up capital 23 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
BRANTR Capital reserve 24 7190,414 12,034,864
Higm Al Other comprehensive income 25 (544,152) 15,982,550
BRAR Surplus reserves 26 86,426,113 82,099,792
— AR IXURS e General reserves 27 588,421,509 564,261,213
o B NE Retained earnings 28 480,168,283 465,391,689
FrEENEAT TOTAL EQUITY 6,661,662,167 6,639,770,108
AERATAENE ST TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 52,386,411,836 43156,914,484

BT 78 TUE S 152 WM SR MIEA EM SR RMARE S

The notes on pages 78 to 152 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FliEzk
Income Statement

2016 ££ & For the year ended 31 December 2016
( BR4FRIERRSS, EFRMAHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

Bt iE 7S 20165 20155 &
Notes 6 2016 2015
—. Bl 1. OPERATING INCOME
RN Interest income 29 1,323,373,121 1,432,227,798
FMEXZH Interest expense 29 (676,131,403) (734,779,899)
IS ON Net interest income 29 647241718 697,447,899
FHHERASUAN Fee and commission income 30 163,420,162 146,154,377
FHEERASIH Fee and commission expense 30 (28,080,604) (24,084,502)
FHEBERAEEBN Net fee and commission income 30 135,339,558 122,069,875
a6 Investment income 31 178,428,951 119,054,410
NRNETIEWE Gains from changes in fair value 32 65,188,093 133,751,737
ICRRICE Rk Foreign exchange losses (82,794,568) (51,576,416)
BN &I TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 943,403,752 1,020,747,505
. Bl 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
& R Business tax and surcharges (30,493,423) (73,515,236)
&R EE R General and administrative expenses 33 (814,171,571) (788,843,323)
BERERRE Impairment losses 34 (49,703,730) (89,095,871)
Bl H AT TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (894,368,724) (951,454,430)
=, BlAE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 49,035,028 69,293,075
fn: Bl SMEN Add: Non-operating income 35 8,074,727 8,649,859
W B s Less: Non-operating expenses (292,833) (272,010)
M. FEEFIE SR 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 56,816,922 77670924
B FEHEHR Less: Income tax expense 36 (13,553,711) 2,606,465
R, EHE 5. NET PROFIT 43263211 80,277,389
N Hfttm SR S e am 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
UEHBES LHIREN Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
Hither Gl Income Statement
AEHESREFARNEED Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 25 (16,526,702) 6,293,784
+. EERERE 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 26,736,509 86,571173

BT 78 TWEE 152 TTHIM SR RMIE R KM SRR A AR EBS

The notes on pages 78 to 152 form an integral part of these financial statements.

£ 70 TTEE 152 THIMEMRAUTALEE:
The financial statements from page 70 to 152 have been signed by:

TRKFEFHNITE. EE: F%
President and CEOQ, Director: Foo Moo Tan

76 |

KERT (hE ) HRAA 2016 FERE

HEUEE: M
CFO: Teh HanYi




FiEERmENR
Statement of Changes in Equity

2016 £ E For the year ended 31 December 2016
( BR¥FAERRSS, EFAMHAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

IWHEET FBEALNR HitrGlsE BRAR —f# RSEFE &it
Paid-up Capital ~ Other com- Surplus XU & Retained Total
capital  reserves prehensive reserves General earnings
income reserves
201512 A3 H & Balance as at 31 December 2015 5500,000,000 12,034,864 15,982,550 82,099,792 564,261,213 465,391,689 6,639,770,108
RERBEN ST Movements during the year - (4,844,450) (16,526,702) 4326321 24)60,296 14,776,594 21,892,059
(—) BAWEES (i) Total comprehensive income - - (16,526,702) - - 43,263,211 26,736,509
(Z) ITEE/AM (ii) Injection of funds by and
: - (4,844,450 - - - - 4,844,450
BER distribution of funds to the investor ( ) ( )
1LRB LM NEE
i~ 1. Share-based payment - (4,844,450 - - - - 4,844,450,
e pey ( ) ( )
(=) FiEsHE (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 4326321  2460,296 (28,486,617) -
LIRIBRATR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 4,326,321 - (4,326,321) -
2RI — R UG 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - - 24160,296 (24,160,296) -
2016512 A31H &% Balance as at 31 December 2016 5,500,000,000 7190414 (544,152) 86,426,113 588,421,509 480,168,283 6,661,662,167
2015 £ & For the year ended 31 December 2015
( BR¥FAERASH, EFMAMMHAARTIT)
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)
TR E  RELR HttmglzE BRAR —f  ROEFE ait
Paid-up Capital  Other com- Surplus XU & Retained Total
capital reserves prehensive reserves General earnings
income reserves
2014512 A3 &T Balance as at 31 December 2014 3,000,000,000 7,883,799 9,688,766 74,072,053 564,261,213 393,142,039  4,049,047,870
AEERTIHETH Movements during the year 2,500,000,000 4,151,065 6,293,784 8,027,739 - 72,249,650  2,590,722,238
(—) &AW EE (i) Total comprehensive income - - 6,293,784 - - 80,277,389 86571173
(Z) EBREHEEAM (ii) Injection of funds by and
2,500,000,00 4,151,065 - - - - 2,504,151,065
BAER distribution of funds to the investor 0 0 0
1LROZAHNEE
-~ . 1. Share-based payment - 4,151,065 - - - - 4,151,065
WEM L i
2LITBEBRANER 2.Injection of funds by the investor 2,500,000,000 - - - - - 2,500,000,000
(=) ®MiEsanEe (iii) Profit appropriation - - - 8,027,739 - (8,027,739) -
LIREB AR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - - 8,027,739 - (8,027,739) -
2015512 A3 H &5 Balance as at 31 December 2015 5,500,000,000 12,034,864 15,982,550 82,099,792 564,261,213 465,391,689 6,639,770,108
T 5 78 TVEH 152 TUHI SR 3R M A AR U 5548 3R WO 4EL B BB 43
The notes on pages 78 to 152 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MERER
Statement of Cash Flows
2016 ££ & For the year ended 31 December 2016
( ER4FR1ERASN, EFRAMHIAARTIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

HE 20165 20154
Notes 6 2016 2015
—. BEBEHFENAERE 1.CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATINGT ACTIVITIES
TR A SRR AT RIS R D B Net decrease in due from the Central bank - 1,652,477,815
TR E) Ml R I 4 2D B Net decrease in due from banks 200,000,000 -
B G IRR e T E  E Net decrease in loans and advances to customers - 1,531,522,641
R S s D R !\Iet.deFrease in placements with banks and other financial ) 192154636
institutions
W e 7 e i [5) Ml Fe Ll & RAATL MO TE AR Net increase in customer deposits and due to banks and other 3713027105 )
RIS g financial institutions e
RGBS S il:iiir;:iroesze in placements from banks and other financial 3,613.933.840 .
KEHFHE, FEERASNAE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission 1,532,873,494 1,620,037380
KEEMSEEEFNEXNAE Cash received from other operating activities 356,229,846 397,792,642
ZEFDMERNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities 9,416,064,285 5,593,985,114
TER P SRR I TR U4 nER Net increase in due from the Central Bank 2,203,416,652 -
TR ) Ml BRIP4 1 hn &R Net increase in due from the banks - 300,000,000
S A R F\Iet. inc.rease in placements with banks and other financial 3913780725 )
institutions

B ST R AT S AT Net increase in loans and advances to customers 695,398,860 -
W g 7 e i ) lle e L & RAATL MO TE AR Net decrease in customer deposits and due to banks and other ) 8539447073
IR D B financial institutions e
RARSSROH ,!j]iiﬁifgiise in placements from banks and other financial . 207519801
FHHAE, FEERALSHNE Payments made for interest,service fee and commission 766,644,591 822,016,399
FHERIBRARIZFHRE Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 535,505,883 502,743,298
FHETH R Cash paid for all types of taxes 39,826,710 61,713,869
TRMEMSEEEHELANNE Cash paid for other operating activities 266,834,832 423,353,048
ZEFHMERH /DT Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities 8,421,408,253 10,856,793,488
ZEBRNTENAERE S Net cash flows from operating activities 37 994,656,032 (5,262,808,374)
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=, BREHTENAERE

2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Wr[E] 48 BRI R & Cash received from maturity of investments 10,692,628,250 25,270,030,847
SRR ER MRS Cash received from investment income 220,113,976 321,996,484
R EEERF=INEMAHE = Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term 3,078,849 3550688
BRI & assets
BEEHHERNNGT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities 10,915,821,075 25,595,578,019
BREMZANIAE Cash paid for investment 9,867308,544 20,438,008,215
ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ?’%ﬂﬁf&ﬁ%ﬁﬁi’ﬁﬁ :Sassehtspaid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term 126,831,018 36227305
BARFEHHAERE/NT Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities 9,994,139,562 20,474,235,520
BEAEIFENNERESE Net cash flows from investing activities 921,681,513 5,121,342,499
=, EREHFENHAETRRE 3. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
R W RI I & Cash received from capital injection - 2,500,000,000
ER/FTHHEFRNNT Sub-total of cash inflows from financing activities - 2,500,000,000
ERBITENINERESH Net cash flows from financing activities - 2,500,000,000
M., CEEHHMERAEENT 4. EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH AND (76733691 (47066.254)
oAl CASH EQUIVALENTS
. RERIAEEMYEL g > E‘éL:\t‘ACE‘,:\TSSE IN CASH AND CASH 37 1,839,603,854 2,311,467,871
m: EMRERMELENMERT Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 8,599,841,313 6,288,373,442
N ERRERMEEMP R 6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 38 10,439,445,167 8,599,841313

T 5 78 TUESE 152 TUHIW SRR MEEA R SRR B AR RS

The notes on pages 78 to 152 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2016 £ E For the year ended 31 December 2016

(B RIERSN, STAMHHARTI)

(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

—. RAEMERBR

KERIT (HE ) BRAF (LUTER “AA8" F “KERIT (&
H)” ) RAXERITERLT ( LUTER “KERT” ) EpE
AREME EBHRIFSNEMBERIT,

ZPERTIEEEEZAS (ITER “RES” ) T2007 £
4 A5 B, RERITIR(PEANRLMESMFRITERESI (L
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KRB Y (AR (KRB ) ) WAEXME, ELisW
ERAEBMHFMIMFMBERIT—XERIT (FE ) ARAH,
HHEHERENPRERITEEST. ERSIT. RNZIT. TN
ST BEST. BI1S1T. RS TR EEHEXRIT (UTER
“BHREXSITRZT ) BEAKXERIT (RE) HHZNA,

ERNRABEERUSMENES R IFAIE, NMWEBDA:

BO308H131000001 &, ¥}H LT IHATHEERZEMELZR 4
HEANELHER, sE—HSEHREEA: 913100006694147236, i it
Wit AHE ( i) BHBES KX REE 116 5. 128 S KER
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+HE) . +N\B (EFR+ARE) o EMEXRAART 55127,
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1. Corporate information

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (The Bank or UOB (China))
is a wholly foreign-owned bank established in Shanghai,
People’s Republic of China (PRC), by United Overseas Bank
(UOB).

In accordance with the Regulation of the PRC on the
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the Regulation),
and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of Regulation
of the PRC on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks
(the Implementation), China Banking Regulatory Committee
(CBRC) granted approval to UOB on 5 April 2007 to set up
a wholly-owned subsidiary bank, UOB (China), in Shanghai
by converting its Shanghai Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen
Branch, Guangzhou Branch, Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch,
Shenyang Branch and Jing’an sub-branch (collectively known
as the Former PRC Branches).

The Bank obtained the licence for conducting
financial transaction from the CBRC (Institution Code:
BO308H131000001), and obtained its business licence (Uniform
Social Credit Code: 913100006694147236) from Shanghai
Administration for Industry and Commerce. The registered
address is 3F, Unit 501, F13, F15, F16, F17, and F18, No.116 and 128
Yincheng Road, China (Shanghai) Pilot Free Trade Zone. The
registered capital of the Bank is RMB 5.5 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an
unlimited operating period. The main businesses of the Bank
are Renminbi and foreign currency businesses as approved
by relevant regulatory authorities. The date of business
conversion from former PRC branches to UOB (China) was on
2 January 2008.

As of 31 December 2016, besides the Head Office
incorporated in Shanghai, the Bank has set up 11 branches and
5 sub-branches respectively in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen,
Guangzhou, Chengdu, Xiamen, Shenyang, Tianjin, Hangzhou,
Chongging and Suzhou.
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2. Preparation basis of the financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and the specific standards, the implementation
guidance, interpretations and other relevant provisions issued
and revised subsequently by the Ministry of Finance of PRC
(MOF) (collectively referred to as “Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.

3. Compliance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared
in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2016 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.

4. Significant accounting policies and estimates

(1) Accounting year
The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31
December of each calendar year.

(2) Functional currency

The Bank’s functional currency is Renminbi (RMB). These
financial statements are presented in RMB and all amounts
are stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

(3) Basis of accounting and principles for measurement

The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on
an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for precious metals, derivative financial
instruments, the financial assets and financial liabilities that
are measured at fair value with changes recorded in profit
and loss, and available-for-sale financial assets. Subsequently,
if the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions should
be recognised in accordance with relevant standards.
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(4) Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
reporting currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are translated using the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction date. Subsequent
to initial recognition, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
applicable exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Exchange differences arising from the settlement of
monetary items or from translation of monetary items at
balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement.
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates ruling at
the dates of the initial transactions; Non-monetary items
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates when the fair value is determined,
the exchange difference thus resulted is recognised in the
income statement or other comprehensive income of the
current period.

(5) Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as follows: financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss; held-to-maturity investment;
loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
Financial assets are initially recognised at their fair value.
For financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, the
related transaction costs are directly charged to income
statement of the current period. Transaction costs relating
to financial assets of other categories are included in the
amount initially recognised.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
financial assets which are either classified as held for trading
or designated by the Bank as such upon initial recognition.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
meet any of the following: 1) acquired for the purpose of
sale in the short term; 2) part of a portfolio of identifiable
financial instruments that are collectively managed, and
there is objective evidence indicating that the enterprise
recently managed this portfolio for the purpose of short-term
profits; 3) derivatives unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments, they are financial guarantee contracts
or they are derivatives that linked to and must be settled by
delivery of equity instruments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured. For such kind of financial assets, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All realised
or unrealised gains or losses on these financial assets are
recognised in the income statement of the current period.



RAEHAUTESZ—, eMATHEMAGATENGITTERE
EAUARNEHERZH AR ENEMB L EMALG:

(i) ZBEEAMLUERSMERDATEMHA NS AGNITE
ERA R BT S B AXFRBER K ERASITERAA—EHNE
Blo

(i) REEEFRARBNEXPALHEHM, ZEMTRASE
NRMEAEMBTER, TMHFEXEEEARES,

(i) EE—MHSTRANTETENES TR, BRIERNTEIRR
SWBEEIENAERETEERNYE, HEMBEANITET
BHEERMHNEXRETREP IR,

(iv) B FEMFELEZERNEIEENA T RHER B HTAM
HENBAIEMNESIR,

BEEZHRRE

FAEZIHRAZ R EEE. BNEHEESTHE, BAn
RAARBEEMENFEEHNIETESHE, M TIHEEH
=, RASRARE, HRMREAHITREEITE, HLIEHRIA

EEBESMETENFFIRE, BHNSHRE, WREAAR
BERANEOFEEAPRAEARAS T EEAHERES LR
HHESMASNEH, BN TZERAEHENEF LN
FEAM, ZERBHFR KBS BLERS LN AIHHESHE,

BEASHEERUEANZEBNS T EEATEBERZEMA
AAFEERRKRE, B2, TIERRS:

() HERHES LB EFZTURFHZIH AR HRIE (021
B=MANW), UETHHHEMNTEAINZIRENLRMNE
RERERM;

(i) RIFERAENEREMNTERINERT R EZTIREILFRE
AR, BRRBSHERENE;

(i) HESESLXZHTARALEES. RPRSESRER%E
& BT IR BIATSIRE

Financial assets/liabilities are designated as fair value through
profit and loss only if they meet any of the following criteria:

(i) The designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
liabilities on a different basis.

(ii) In accordance with documented risk management or
investment strategy, this financial assets portfolio are
managed, and evaluated at fair value and reported on that
basis to key management personnel.

(iii) The financial instrument contains one or several
embedded derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives
do not significantly modify the cash flow of the mixed
instrument or it is clear that they would not be separately
recorded.

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded
instrument, which need to be separated but is unable
to be measured separately at initial recognition or
subsequent measurement at each subsequent balance
sheet dates.

Held-to-maturity Investment

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity investments when the Bank has the intention and
ability to hold the assets till maturity. After initial recognition,
held-to-maturity financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
less any allowance for impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the held-to-
maturity financial assets are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process. The Bank shall
not classify any financial assets as held-to-maturity if the
Bank has, during the current financial year or during the two
preceding financial years, sold or reclassified more than an
insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments before
maturity (more than insignificant in relation to the total
amount of held-to-maturity investments), any remaining
held-to-maturity investments are reclassified as available-
for-sale financial assets except for:

(i)  Sales or reclassifications that are so close to maturity or
the financial asset’s call date (i.e. less than three months
before maturity) that changes in the market interest rate
would not have a significant effect on the financial asset’s
fair value;

(i) Sales or reclassifications that occur after the Bank has
collected substantially all of the financial asset’s original
principal through scheduled payments or prepayments; or

(iii) Sales or reclassifications that are attributable to an
isolated event that is beyond the Bank’s control, is non-
recurring, and could not have been reasonably anticipated
by the Bank.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. After initial measurement, such financial
assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method, gains or losses arising from
derecognition, impairment or amortisation are recognised in
the income statement.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets which are designated as such or are not classified in
any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income earned during the holding
period is accrued using the effective interest rate method and
recognised to the income statement as interest rate income.
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised as other comprehensive income until the financial
asset is derecognised at which time the cumulative gains or
losses previously reported in other comprehensive income
are included in the income statement. Impairment losses and
foreign exchange gains or losses on available-for-sale financial
assets which are monetary items are recognised in the income
statement.

(6) Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired as a result of one or more events
(“impairment events”). The impairment events are referred
to those occurring after the initial recognition of the assets,
which have an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets and can be reliably estimated by the
Bank. Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the borrower or a group of borrowers are experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease
in the estimated future cash flows, such as deterioration
of the situation in arrears or sudden change of economic
conditions, which may lead to the debtors’ failing to fulfil
the responsibility of repayment.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

When an impairment loss is incurred, the amount of the
loss is measured, through use of an allowance account,
as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate, taking into account the value of any related
collaterals. Once an impairment loss is recognised, interest
income is thereafter recognised by using the rate of interest
used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables and
the related allowance accounts will be written off if there
is no probability of recovery and all collaterals have been
foreclosed or transferred to the Bank.

The Bank firstly assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment
exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is
or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are
collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the
basis of historical loss experience for assets with similar
credit risk characteristics. The historical loss experience
is adjusted on the basis of current observable data, to
reflect the effects of current conditions not affecting the
period of historical experience and to eliminate the impact
of historical conditions that do not exist currently. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating future
cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed.
Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the
reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried
at cost are impaired, the difference between the present
value discounted at the prevailing rate of return of similar
financial assets and the book value of the financial asset are
provided as an impairment loss in the income statement. The
impairment loss recognised cannot be reversed.
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Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
for available-for-sale financial assets has been incurred,
the cumulative loss, measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost (net off any recovered principals
and amortised amount) and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement, is reversed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.

Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with
impairment loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the
fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss, the previously impaired loss is reversed
through the income statement. Reversal of impairment loss
of equity instruments classified as available-for-sale is not
recognised in the income statement.

(7) Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss, or other financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as
at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition.
Gains and losses from changes in fair value are recognised in
the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value
on initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that
are not designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
they are, after initial recognition, subsequently measured
at the higher of, the amount determined in accordance
with Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises No. 13
— Contingencies, and the amount initially recognised less
the cumulative amortisation determined according to the
principles of Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises
No. 14 - Revenues.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss and financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other
financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method.
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(8) Derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets

A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i)  the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired; or

(i) the Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the assets; or has retained its rights to receive cash
flows from the assets but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; and (a) the Bank
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset; or (b) the Bank has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the financial asset, the asset is
recognised to the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement
of the financial asset. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred financial asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the guaranteed amount. The guaranteed amount is
the maximum amount of consideration that the Bank could
be required to repay.

Financial liabilities

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the
responsibilities over them have been discharged, cancelled,
or expired. If the original financial liabilities are replaced
with substantively different terms in essence by the same
creditor, or the provisions of the contract are substantively
modified in its nature, such replacement or modifications are
treated as derecognition of original liabilities and recognition
of new liabilities, with the difference recorded in the income
statement.

(9) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount presented in the balance sheet when and only
when the Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts and intends either to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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(10) Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value of the
contract date and are subsequently measured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are
treated separately as derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the hybrid instrument is not carried at
fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives
are measured at fair value with the changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement.

Certain derivative transactions, while providing effective
economic hedges under the Bank's risk management
positions, do not qualify for hedge accounting and are
therefore treated as derivatives held for trading with gains or
losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the
income statement.

(11) Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities and bills sold subject to repurchase agreements
(“Repos”) continue to be recognised, and are recorded
as financial investments. The corresponding obligation is
included in “Financial Assets Sold for Repurchase” Securities
and bills purchased under agreements to re-sell (“Reverse
repos”) are not recognised. The receivables are recorded as
“Reverse repurchase financial assets’, as appropriate.

The difference between purchase and sale price is recognised
as interest expense or interest income in the income
statement over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.

(12) Precious metal

Precious metals comprise gold. Precious metals acquired by
the Bank for trading purposes are initially measured at fair
value and subsequent changes in fair value are recorded in
the income statement.

(13) Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according
to the actual expenditure for the construction, including all
necessary expenditure and other related expenses incurred
during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets
or other long term assets when the asset is ready for its
intended use.
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(14) Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation
Recognition of fixed assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the
Bank, and the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be recognised as the cost of
fixed assets when the recognition criteria set above is met,
and the replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised.
Otherwise, such expenditure is to be charged to the income
statement in the period when it is incurred.

Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and presented at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision
for impairment. The cost of a purchased fixed asset
comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use, such as delivery and handling
costs, installation costs and other surcharge.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis. And the respective estimated useful lives, estimated
residual values and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets
are set by the Bank considering the nature and usage of fixed
assets.

ERFw itiakE=E FEIRE

Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value Annual depreciation rate

EREERY Properties and buildings 504 - 2%
DAREBNIE & Office equipment and computers 54 - 20%
EHE& Motor vehicles 54E - 20%
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Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.
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(15) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets
without physical substance owned or controlled by the
Bank. The intangible assets can be recognised only when the
economic benefits related to intangible assets are likely to
flow into the Bank, and the cost of intangible assets can be
measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and the
useful life is determined according to the economic useful
lives; those intangible assets with unforeseeable economic
lives can be classified as intangible assets with infinite useful
lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software
with a 10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation
is charged to income statement over the assets' estimated
economic lives using methods that best reflect the pattern
of economic benefits; or on a straight line basis when the
pattern of economic benefit realisation cannot be reliably
determined. For the intangible assets with infinite useful
lives, no amortisation is made.

The useful life and amortisation method for intangible
assets with finite useful lives are reviewed at each balance
sheet date, with proper adjustments made by the Bank when
necessary.

(16) Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses refer to the expenses incurred
with an amortisation period of more than one year (not
including one year), mainly including rental fee and leasehold
improvements.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract.
Other long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a
straight-line basis over the lower period of lease period or
useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged
to income statement if the expenditure does not bring
benefits to subsequent accounting periods.
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(17) Impairment of assets
The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets:

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an
asset is impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such
indication exists, the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s
recoverable amount and carries out impairment test. For
those assets with infinite useful lives, regardless of whether
the impairment indications exist, the impairment test is made
at least annually.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and the present value of estimated future
discounted cash flows, which is determined on an individual
basis.

If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in income statement and the carrying value of the asset
reduced by the amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be
reversed in a subsequent period.

(18) Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition
criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

Interest income or expense are determined using the
effective interest method, the effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.
The calculation takes into account all contractual terms of
the financial instrument and includes any fees or incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the instrument and are
an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not future
credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates
of payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is
calculated based on original effective interest rate and the
change in carrying amount is recorded as an interest income
or expense.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised when the services
are rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.
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(19) Income tax

Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax. Current
income tax and movements in deferred tax balances are
recognised in the income statement except that it relates to
items recognised directly in equity, in which case the tax is
recognised directly in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted
at the balance sheet date. The taxable income is calculated at
the accounting results for the year as adjusted in accordance
with relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current
and prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities in
accordance with relevant tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except: (i) where the deferred
tax assets arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable income or deductible loss; and; (ii) in respect
of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint arrangements,
where it is probable that the temporary difference will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
income tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set
off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.
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(20) Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by
the Bank in exchange for service rendered by employees or
for the termination of employment, including short-term
employee benefits, post-employment benefits, termination
benefits and other long-term benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short-term employee benefits are accrued in the period in
which services have been rendered by the employees of the
Bank.

Post-employment benefits (defined contribution plan)

Employees of the Bank participate in the retirement insurance
plan, and unemployment insurance plan administered by
the local government, and the contribution is recognised to
income statement of that period.

Employees of the Bank can participate in the annuity plan
established by the Bank on a voluntary basis. The Bank
contributes to the annuity at a certain percentage of
employees’ salary, and recognises the cost in the income
statement accordingly.

(21) Share-based payment
The Bank’s share-based compensation program is measured
as an equity-settled share-based payment.

The equity-settled share-based payment is measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted.
Where the equity instruments granted vest immediately, the
Bank recognises the expense in full at the fair value on grant
date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve. Where
the equity instruments granted vest upon the fulfilment
of service period or performance conditions, the Bank
makes a best estimate at the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest, at each balance sheet date of the
vesting period, based on the latest information on eligible
employees and performance conditions, and recognise the
expense pertaining to the current period at the fair value on
grant date with a corresponding increase in capital reserve.
The fair values of the equity instruments are estimated using
the Trinomial valuation methodology.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which
are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the
market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity—settled award are modified, as
a minimum, an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. An additional expense is recognised for any
modification which increases the total fair value of the share—
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.
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Where an equity—settled award is cancelled, it is treated as
if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
This includes any award where non—vesting conditions within
the control of the employees are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new compensation are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award.

(22) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise non-statutory deposits due from
central banks, amounts due from banks and other financial
institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing within
three months, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, which
have an original maturity date within three months.

(23) Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party. Parties are
also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do
not constitute related parties.

(24) Entrusted business

Where the Bank acts in an entrusted business such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with related
undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded
from the financial statements.

(25) leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as finance
leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

When the Bank is a lessee under an operating lease, rental
payments are charged to the income statement on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.

When the Bank is a lessee under a finance lease, the leased
assets are capitalised initially at the fair value of the asset or,
if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in “Other
liabilities” Finance charges are charged over the term of the
lease using an interest rate which reflects a constant rate of
return. Contingent rental payments are charged to the income
statement when incurred.
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(26) Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but disclosed
in the notes to financial statements. In case the condition
changes, which led to the outflow of economic resources is
probable, provision will be made.

(27) Accrued liability

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as accrued
liability when all of the following conditions are satisfied
(except for contingent liability recognised in a business
combination not under common control):

(i)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(i) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; and

(i) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate
of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the
risks, uncertainties and time value of money are taken into
account as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank
reviews the carrying amount of a provision at the balance
sheet date. The carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted
when there is clear evidence that the amount does not reflect
the current best estimate.

(28) Fair value measurement

At each balance sheet date, the Bank measures its derivatives,
financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, and available-for-sale financial assets at fair value. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the assumption that the orderly
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible to the Bank. The
fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumption that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

The Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure the fair value. Use of observable inputs is maximized
and unobservable inputs will only be used when observable
inputs are not available or obtaining observable inputs
becomes unpractical.
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For assets and liabilities measured and disclosed at fair value,
the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input
that is significant to the entire measurement: Level 1 inputs
are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement
date; Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

For assets and liabilities held at the end of the balance sheet
date that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Bank continues to make assessment as to whether there is
transfer between different levels of the fair value hierarchy.

(29) Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgments and made estimates and
assumptions of the effects of uncertain future events on the
financial statements. The use of judgments, estimates and
assumptions will affect the amount of income, expense, assets
and liabilities presented and disclosed. The uncertainty of
such estimates and assumptions might have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the future.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any objective
evidence that impairment losses on loans and advances have
occurred. If any such evidence exists, the Bank assesses the
amount of impairment losses. The amount of impairment losses
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Assessing the
amount of impairment losses involving significant judgement
on whether the objective evidence for impairment exists and
also significant estimates when determining the present value
of the expected future cash flows.

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to
estimate the future tax treatment of certain transactions.
The Bank carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions
in accordance with prevailing tax regulations and makes
tax provisions accordingly. In addition, deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. This requires significant
estimation on the tax treatments of certain transactions and
also significant assessment on the probability that adequate
future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax
assets to be recovered.



EHMTENARNE

MTFEEERTFENEMTE, RARMERRAFRTHERNTH
EEARME, MTFAFEBRTENEMTE, AARRXAMGE
BARBEEARMNE, GERARCESEARERFIBEZSHNE
FRIEHTHTHZ S PERMNE. SRIFEARNE G SR
TENHEARMEMAERENNES, EATHERT, GE
BARRWEERATIASH, AW, YRZTHSHN, EEREH®
BEMZ S FHERXR., TiRRzI%E. BXEEAEEL G,
XERXBEHEXS ST RN N RMES £,

BADLE

EEREFERRFNSREHERAN, FRENSILESHMEITHZ
EAERANFAHMERL, HEMRARATERAIEG TREN
7%, AURFENEFRFHITES X,

R TRZIFFIA

TeMIAEBRZGH, A REEERRRNEMEBERTIARE
WHE XK R EEIT S ST, FRBES TS RETIEE
HIM S5 Ab3E

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with
active markets are determined based on the market prices.
For financial instruments with no active markets, fair value
are established using valuation techniques such as making
reference to recent transactions or other comparable
financial instruments, discounted cash flow method and
option pricing models. To the extent practicable, valuation
technique makes maximum use of market inputs. However,
where market inputs are not available, management needs
to make estimates on areas such as credit risk (both own
and counterparty’s), volatility and correlation. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgment is required in evaluating
the classification of investments, since different classification
will result in different accounting treatments and financial
positions of the Bank. If improper judgement on the
classification of investment is noticed after the balance sheet
date, the Bank may need to reclassify the whole investment
portfolio.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The management of the Bank has assessed and made
judgments on the extent to which it retains the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial instruments for the
transferred transactions entered into, and make relevant
accounting treatments accordingly.
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(30) Change in accounting policy

According to the Circular of the Ministry of Finance on Issuing
the Provisions on the Accounting Treatment for Value-added
Tax, the Bank revised income statement line item “business
taxes and surcharges” to “taxes and surcharges” in 2016.
Stamp duty and other relevant taxes and surcharges incurred
since 1 May 2016 are included “taxes and surcharges’, while
those incurred before 1 May 2016 are included in “general and
administrative expenses” The ending debit balance of the
sub-accounts of “tax payable” such as “VAT payable’, "unpaid
VAT, “input VAT to be credited’, “input VAT to be verified”
and “remaining VAT credit balance” is presented under “other
assets” on the balance sheet. In accordance with the circular,
the comparative figures of “taxes and surcharges” and “general
and administrative expenses” are not restated to conform to
this year’s presentation. However, this change has no impact
to net profit of 2016 and 2015 of the Bank.

5. Taxation
The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the

respective tax rates for the current financial year are as
follows:

BB %ITHE LS, B20165F5A18E, BHitHELFBCAITHIEETR
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Business tax X .
tax instead of business tax.

The Bank is subjected to a business tax rate of five per cent. Since 1 May 2016, the Bank is subjected to value-added
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Value-added tax

The Bank is subjected to a value-added tax rate of six per cent and pays value-added tax by the net amount after
offsetting deductible input tax of the same period.

WP IR

City construction tax

RE RN R R 7% T 5o

The Bank is subjected to a city construction tax rate of seven per cent on turnover tax.

BE &M

Educational surcharge

BRI R T AI3% T .

The Bank is subjected to an educational surcharge rate of three per cent on turnover tax.

Ak EriSH

Corporate income tax

R NFL SRR 25% 148

The Bank is subjected to a corporate tax rate of 25 per cent.

RIMHAN NEBH
Withholding Individual

Income tax

ARBRXMERANETFE, HAXTRBERDENAFEH,
In accordance with the laws in the PRC, the Bank is required to withhold individual income tax on salaries paid to
its employees.
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N MERREZTEMIE
1. & RAF I R RIRITHIR

6. Notes to financial statements

(1) Cash and balances with the Central Bank

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
EiENm4E Cash on hand 15,195,504 21,540,936
FHHRRIBITEEHEEZS - ART  Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - RMB 3,404,331,250 2,871,922,969
EHhRRITEEES S -5 Statutory deposit reserve with the Central Bank - foreign currency 133,805,607 101,434,305
FEMRRBITINCREEEE Foreign exchange risk reserve with the Central Bank 1,809,709,137 171,072,068
FR SR 1T RY H b X In Other deposits with the Central Bank 1,511,690,947 792,147,357
&it Total 6,874,732,445 3,958,117,635

RE\EHPEARBRITHEENME, AQBBAE—ELRYFERA
FE£THEAREIT. F206 E12 A3 H, AATAARTRIIT
FREE ST B4 51515% (20154812 A 31 B: 15.5% ) % 5% (2015
F£12A31H: 5%)

M 2015 £ 10 AiEE, RIE\EPEARBRITHERNE, STRAHM

SNCRBE#EEE, SRR EARBELEHEM 20% HiFsMNCRE
HEEE, AERTHEARRIT—F.

2. T i [E) Ml FR 15

The Bank places statutory deposit reserves with the People’s
Bank of China (PBOC) in accordance with relevant regulations
issued by it. As at 31 December 2016, statutory deposit
reserves placed with the PBOC were calculated at 15 per cent
(31 December 2015: 15.5 per cent) and 5 per cent (31 December
2015: 5 per cent) of qualified RMB deposits and foreign
currency deposits from customers respectively.

The Bank places foreign exchange risk reserve with the
PBOC monthly in accordance with relevant regulations since
October 2015. The foreign exchange risk reserve is calculated
at 20 per cent of the contractual amount of forward sales of
exchanges in the preceding month and will be reserved in the
Central Bank for one year.

(2) Due from banks

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
FEHRERNERITEIL Due from domestic banks 4,057,714,343 327,572,458
TEHIESMNRITE Due from foreign banks 225,323,700 188,319,647
INT Sub-total 4,283,038,043 1,515,892,105
B FEHREMREES (1) Less: Impairment provisions for due from banks (Note 1) (1,065,303) (5984,132)
FERE A &% Net amount of due from banks 4,281,972,740 1,509,907,973

E: EHELBEEEARATREBEREL [2010] 45 S (FERKSX
FEHE RITUSRINAEINKEERES] > FEN Y B E W ITRNE 3
KRR B & o

Notel: Impairment provisions for due from banks represented the country risk
reserve provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 "Circular of the China
Banking Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for
Country Risk Management of the Banking Financial Institutions” issued by CBRC.
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.IfHES (3) Placements with banks and other financial institutions
31-12-2016 31-12-2015
I REHERTEIL R EMEEMM  Placements with banks and other financial institutions 8,955,157,152 3,052,676,151
Bl IREEAREES (F1) Less: Impairment provisions for placements (Note 1) (2,535,590) (3,958,560)
IFHEE ST Net amount of placement with banks and other financial institutions 8,952,621,562 3,048,717,591

1 IRHEMCREEEARATRRIERER 201045 5 (FERMSXT
% (Tl EENMERNRKEEEES ) MEMN) MREMITHRHNERIR
MREES,

4 UARMHETEREEFIT NS PRmN S MBI~

Notel: Impairment provisions for placements represented the country risk reserve
provided according to Yin Jian Fa [2010] No. 45 "Circular of the China Banking
Regulatory Commission on Printing and Distributing the Guidelines for Country
Risk Management of the Banking Financial Institutions” issued by CBRC.

(4) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31-12-2016 31-12-2015

ZH MR Held-for-trading financial assets
RERE: Bond investments:

hRRITEREEE Central bank bills and government bonds - 500,356,750

HBRMHRITESE Bonds issued by policy banks 60,538,500 543,663,700
it Subtotal 60,538,500 1,044,020450
EN&e::] Negotiable certificates of deposit 1,055,439,444 546,635,068
BEUARMET
EBETITANY Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit or loss
- E R et g
ER AR E Due from and placements with banks and other financial institutions - 4,393,596,047
Nt Subtotal - 4,393,596,047
ait Total 115,977,944 5,984,251,565

S.{TEERMTE

TEEMTREE—fer~m, ENMEBURTERKMES— “B
it SR mENSEMTENNE, BEXLE “BME”
BERE. ARHEm. GEHH. BETNSCERMES, &

RIERANITESMTRGETHGY. EHRE,

TEEMTRENE eI EET IR BBl B =M E RN E,
FRAFRHERAREZENDS . ZERNERRTSIHRERR
AARMITE SR TRAREHOMIER 2 NE.

100 X587 (hE ) ARAF 2016 £ERE

(5) Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which
is derived from the value of another “underlying” financial
instrument, an index or some other variables. Typically, an
“underlying” financial instrument is a share, commodity or
bond price, an index value or an exchange or interest rate.
The Bank uses derivative instruments such as forwards,
futures, swaps and options.

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount
of underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative
is based. It indicates the unsettled volume of business
transaction at the balance sheet date. The amount of
underlying asset reflects the risk exposure of derivative at
the end of accounting period other than fair value.



ARREAEPRREBNTHIEEANER TANMTEEMTR,

AARTEFAGERBMFENTESMTRNT:

The Bank has no derivative designated as hedging

instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative

instruments are as follows:

31-12-2016
NRMNE
Fair Value
BNEE "= L

Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SMCITAETA: Foreign exchange contracts:
EHEY Forwards 2977512,974 27123758 81,246,219
HEHREH Swaps 106,167,533,463 1,640,380,280 1,632,516,609
&Y Options 39104,037,011 191,865,101 365,296,022
Nt Sub-total 148,249,083,448 1,859,369,139 2,079,058,850
FIRATETA: Interest rate contracts:
EHEA Swaps 80,289,427,531 452,215,754 448,253,907
Nt Sub-total 80,289,427,531 452,215,754 448,253,907
BmNBERTE: Commodity contracts:
EHEA Swaps 3914,728,528 77,588,502 76,098,431
HWEY Options - - -
Nt Sub-total 3914,728,528 77,588,502 76,098,431
BENEEHITA: Equity contracts:
HEEY Swaps 165,599,968 222,496 4364437
BIEs Options 1,082,560,749 6,240,389 1,072,708
N Sub-total 1,24860,717 6,462,885 5437145
mEBRTETERE Precious metal derivatives 3,289,604,544 5,683,135 38,713,952
&3t Total 236,991,004,768 2,401,319,415 2,647,562,285

e
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31-12-2015

NRME
Fair Value
EAVE ] "= ffk

Notional Amount Assets Liabilities
SMCITAETR: Foreign exchange contracts:
TS Forwards 4,656,283,696 56,489,845 106,611,864
HEEY Swaps 69,258,215,027 653,430,055 552,493,411
HEY Options 100,735,384,916 77,080,189 89,502,678
it Sub-total 174,649,883,639 787,000,089 748,607953
FIERGTETR: Interest rate contracts:
HEEY Swaps 90,745,275,660 403,908,439 363,701,582
/Nt Sub-total 90,745,275,660 403,908,439 363,701,582
BmNBERTE: Commodity contracts:
HHEY Swaps 1,850,072,349 19,846,584 19,020,714
&Y Options 12,662,520 171,608 171,608
Nt Sub-total 1,862,734,869 21,018192 20,192,322
BREMBIEHRITE: Equity contracts:
HEEY Swaps 479749220 115791 9537708
HIEY Options 200,188,043 1,222,655 1373,547
it Sub-total 679937,263 2,380,566 10,911,255
BE&BHT&ETR Precious metal derivatives 2,121192,007 79,344,762 76,253,001
&it Total 270,059,023,438 1,293,652,048 1,219,666,113
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6. INIRESRE~ (6) Reverse repurchase financial assets
31-12-2016 31-12-2015
BRZBMFHE: Classified by counter-party:
SRATRE Ak Banks 536,900,000 -
BEEBERSE: Classified by type of pledged assets:
&% Bonds 536,900,000 -
7. R F 2 (7) Interest receivables
EIRE AEIHR AEUE FERRE
20165 & 2016 Opening balance Accrued Received  Closing balance
WEMIH B Interest receivable on loans 123,342,549 1,006,547,312 (1,031,355,156) 98,534,705
EERENER B Interest receivable on bonds 94,526,291 148,747,446 (177,547.927) 65,725,810
5] Ml iz U ) 2 Interest receivable from banks 15,359,331 307,443,439 (299,893,289) 22,909,481
FINIREEESNMFIE  Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bonds - 9,382,370 (9,015,923) 366,447
&it Total 233,228,171 1,472,120,567 (1,517,812,295) 187,536,443
FEHFREM REIHR REYE FERRA
20155 & 2015 Opening balance Accrued Received Closing balance
WEMH B Interest receivable on loans 141,356,006 149,570,646 (1167,584,103) 123,342,549
BHEEENFE Interest receivable on bonds 112,675,856 237,072,158 (255,221,723) 94,526,291
3 Ml 57 5 F) B Interest receivable from banks 31,799,730 262,971,325 (279411,724) 15,359,331
INREBENMKFIE Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bonds 7,201,349 19,685,827 (26,887,176) -
it Total 293,032,941 1,669,299,956 (1,729104,726) 233,228,171
8. Kt shfni (8) Loans and advances to customers
81PN 5% (81) Distribution of loans and advances by individual and corporate
31-12-2016 31-12-2015
DMANGERINE Individual loans and advances:
FEi%E Mortgages 6,302,047,03 5,395,650,459
Hih Others 3,839,340 22,044,984
Nt Sub-total 6,305,886,443 5,417,695,443
Al BRI Corporate loans and advances:
Bw= Loans 14,799,214,194 16,031,080,106
MEER Discounted bills 444182,510 824,494,101
BREmAE Trade finance 2,852,039986 1,432,564,425
INT Sub-total 18,095,436,690 18,288,138,632
BHRMBRBE Total 24,401323133 23,705,834,075
B WERKRES Less: Loan impairment provision (514,107,074) (452,894,287)
R R WENME Net value of loans and advances to customers 23,887,216,059 23,252,939,788
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8.2 T o7 (8.2) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by industry

31-12-2016
TKE R EN L (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
e PRHE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 204,962,270 1
Sl Manufacturing 5,093,913,199 21
B, #h. MR EKEFFER Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 215,603,897 1
ZHl Construction 330,185,584 1
RiBiTH . CIEFERELLY Transportation, storage and post 651,132,209 3

=t E AR B AR Telecommunication, software and information 563,824,662 )

management service

#H#tEMTBEA Wholesale and retail 438,053,489 17
1EF &l Accommodation and catering 1,957,586,311 8
Bt =l Real estates 4,553,699,014 19
HEMESRS L Leasing and commercial services 369,347,257 1
RER RO ARS Scientific research and technical services 4,228,797 -

Water conservancy, environment and public facilities

KF IMEFRA LR EEE administration 8,400,000 -
BERRS. BEMEMARS L Residents services, repair and other services 4,500,000 -
MANELE Personal credit 6,305,886,444 26
BERANE R B Total amount of loans and advances 24,401323133 100
W WEIRREE Less: Loan impairment provision (514,107,074)
AR W ENME Net value of loans and advances 23,887,216,059
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31-12-2015

T TET R &0 EEfil (%)
Amount Percentage( %)
Rk Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 308,925,695 1
& e Manufacturing 5,479,444,439 23
B, #h., MR RKEFEER Electricity, heat, gas and water supply 173,811,686 1
gl Construction 528,136,386 2
Fi@icH . CIEFERELL Transportation, storage and post 217986,138 1
(B A B R AR IR Telecommunicatiqn, software and information 257507694 1
management service
ftEZFFE Wholesale and retail 400,200,972 7
FEMEmR Accommodation and catering 1,513,480,852 7
BBt =l Real estates 5,374,595,20 23
HEMESRS L Leasing and commercial services 298,693,620 1
MERA R ARRSE Scientific research and technical services 16,820,947 -
AL EREEFIL G HEATE L ;/Zarl:r:izgr;;e;/ancy, environment and public facilities 9945,000 )
BRIRE. BEMEMRE L Residents services, repair and other services 8,590,083 -
INEN Personal credit 5,417,695,443 23
BRI REER Total amount of loans and advances 23,705,834,075 100
B BRRRKRER Less: Loan impairment provision (452,894,287)
RN M E A Net value of loans and advances 23,252,939,788
83 IMX ot (8.3) Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region
31-12-2016 31-12-2015
Fit North-east 291,511,483 566,964,112
%®xR East 14,446,410,948 12,663,415,083
14 North 5,029946,477 5,599,275,709
e Central 227,609,000 275,677,517
] South 2,155,951,857 2,105,486,703
id):7 South-west 2,043,541,085 2,262,738,302
mde North-west 109,976,948 232,276,649
St X Overseas 96,375,335 -
FERRFI R Total amount of loans and advances 24,401,323133 23,705,834,075
Bl: RERKES Less: Loan impairment provision (514,007,074) (452,894,287)
REfREMEmNE Net value of loans and advances 23,887,216,059 23,252,939,788
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84 IHBRFRSH (8.4) Loans and advances to customers by type of collateral or
guarantee
31-12-2016 31-12-2015
IB:EER Unsecured loans 5,045,246,347 3,073,143,046
RIESEX Guaranteed loans 2,571,771928 354,982,799
MR R BT R Loans with collaterals 16,784,304,858 17,477,708,230
Hen: Of which:
Y =0 Secured by mortgages 13,463,871,181 13,417178,002
BT Secured by pledges 3320433677 4,060,530,228
NI SR Total amount of loans and advances 24,401,323]133 23,705,834,075
B WERIRKES Less: Loan impairment provision (514,107,074) (452,894,287)
FrE B K ENME Net value of loans and advances 23,887,216,059 23,252,939,788
8.5 EIHA Y FX (8.5) Overdue Loan
31-12-2016
wimxzsox 0 ARERE gmenr  an
Overdue1day to Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1year to  Overdue 3 years
90 days 1 year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above Total
IB:EER Unsecured loans - - 4,286,845 - 4,286,845
RIELEFR Guaranteed loans - - - 3,553,872 3,553,872
[HEERET I RSENN Loans with collaterals 369,707 45,798,906 243,481,088 18,352,302 308,002,003
Hep: Of which:
IR Secured by mortgages 369,707 45,798,906 164,989,798 18,352,302 229,510,713
RGN Secured by pledges - - 78,491,290 - 78,491,290
&it Total 369,707 45,798,906 247767933 21906,174 315,842,720
31-12-2015
wimxzsox e WREEE gmenr  an
Overduel1day to Overdue 91 days to Overdue 1year to  Overdue 3 years
90 days 1year (inclusive) 3 years(inclusive) above Total
RIELER Guaranteed loans - - 3,450,954 - 3450954
MtE R TN Loans with collaterals 102,540,476 135,497,590 57,617,312 4,620,755 300,276,133
Hep: Of which:
IR Secured by mortgages 100,382,699 54,017,200 57,617,312 4,620,755 216,637,966
FRIREEER Secured by pledges 257,777 81,480,390 - - 83638167
&it Total 102,540,476 135,497,590 61,068,266 4,620,755 303,727,087

WEATTK 2T

REFI S3EHEA 1 RS E TR

Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related interests are overdue for one day or above.
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6 tyRRk R (MEER, 14)

(8.6) Loan impairment provision(Note 6.14)

2016 £ &
2016

Iy HE &it
Individual Collective Total
EMET Opening balance 99,273,351 353,620,936 452,894,287
REHR Charge during the year 65,620,007 (10,558,295) 55,061,712
U [E] A B £E FE 1% SH 8 Recovery of loans and advances previously written off 90,198 - 90,198
CRER Exchange rate difference 462,926 5,597,951 6,060,877
FEREE Closing balance 165,446,482 348,660,592 514,107,074

2015 &

2015

Iy HE &it
Individual Collective Total
EMRT Opening balance 43,014,053 323149791 366,163,844
AREITR Charge during the year 56,243,857 25,976,425 82,220,282
CRER Exchange rate difference 15,441 4,494720 4,510,161
EREH Closing balance 99,273,351 353,620,936 452,894,287

9. At HESRA (9) Available-for-sale financial assets
31-12-2016 31-12-2015

BHEERE: Bond investments:

hRRITEREEE Central Bank bills and government bonds 2,977,840,723 2178165733
SRITEM R Bonds issued by banks - 100,037,400
RS Corporate bonds - 100,474,700
BURMRITIRS Bonds issued by policy banks 201,090,040 119,546,810
Nt Sub-total 378,930,763 3,498,224,643
FEfFE Negotiable certificate of deposits 578,707157 -
&it Total 3,757,637920 3,498,224,643
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10. EIEHFE

(10) Fixed assets

BERERY IEHE & DR EBRE & &it
2016 R 2016 P'OPGLUSIZ;;? Motor vehicles O eq“f;”ﬁ;ﬁ?jﬂ Total
R Cost:
206 &E£1HA1H At 1January 2016 - 2,508,008 95,034,816 97,542,824
AEEIE N Additions 5,793,690 - 11,812,783 17,606,473
T%gf\lgﬁ)\ Z,L?(sefeér' 1]‘;02? construction in progress i i 5 635,524 5,635,524
RELE Disposals - - (1,019,156) (1,019,156)
2016 £ 12 A 31 H At 31 December 2016 5,793,690 2,508,008 111,463,967 119,765,665
Fit#rIa: Accumulated depreciation:
2061 HA1H At 1January 2016 - 1,270,524 65,464,531 66,735,055
AEITR Additions 1,796,047 400,630 12,730,749 14,927,426
EELRE Disposals - - (912,196) (912,196)
206 £ 12 A31H At 31 December 2016 1,796,047 1,671,154 77,283,084 80,750,285
BE&R = R EREER Net book value and net carrying amount
2016 £ 12 A31H At 31 December 2016 3,997,643 836,854 34,180,883 39,015,380
F2016 £12 A31 H, BEEREFUWARARBMBBANNDARE,
As at 31 December 2016, the properties and buildings represent the office capitalized under finance lease.

BEREGY EHEE AR B E &it
2015 4E B 2015 P“’petr)fjﬁ;;'; Motor vehicles <€ eqmg:;;z:i Total
FEr: Cost:
2064 1H1H At 1)January 2015 2,812,689 2,449383 88,939,545 94,201,617
ZANEEIE A0 Additions - 388,625 7,457,431 7,846,056
ZI(KEMFHEE‘IE?))\ Z'Ii,aorlsefeér' E;ozr;w construction in progress i i 1399577 1399577
RERE Disposals (2,812,689) (330,000) (2,761737)  (5904,426)
205 £ 12 A 31H At 31 December 2015 - 2,508,008 95,034,816 97,542,824
Fit#fIA: Accumulated depreciation:
2064 1H1H At 1)January 2015 1,051,259 1159474 53,282,541 55,493,274
AEITR Additions 19,517 441,050 14,810,437 15,271,004
EERE Disposals (1,070,776) (330,000) (2,628/447)  (4,029,223)
205 £ 12 A31H At 31 December 2015 - 1,270,524 65,464,531 66,735,055
Bl E & = S E R S5 Net book value and net carrying amount
205F 12 A31H At 31 December 2015 - 1,237,484 29,570,285 30,807,769
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N. THREF~

(1) Intangible assets

2016 & 2015 S /&
2016 2015
REEE Software
=0T Cost or valuation:
FEHIRER Opening balance 15,757,776 104,191,473
AEME Additions 4,063,505 6,707,967
FERTEEAN (HHEA. 13.2) ;Z;S‘r‘;e;(ﬁgefq?;d'on n 45911,807 6,011,581
Hit Others - (1153,245)
ERRE Closing balance 165,733,088 115,757,776
RITEE Accumulated amortisation:
FHKESEN Opening balance 51,345,188 40,190,727
AETR Additions 13,442,501 11,154,461
FERRE Closing balance 64,787,689 51,345,188
AR =R ER G Net carrying amount
FERREN Closing balance 100,945,399 64,412,588
12. JBIERTISHE (12) Deferred tax assets
2016 4 2016
BB IE PTG R Deferred tax assets EMEm AENIRZE zt;%ggg ERLE
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing
balance to income statement to equity balance
WK ER Loan impairment provision 54,616,162 (2,597,061) - 52,019,101
HFrmEtEs Bad debt allowance for other assets - 351,475 - 351,475
AT SRR =k St TR %:ri:ll:?i;:ggf :gsle"tis onavailable- 5375 - 5508901 181384
FTEESMTENRMEZENIRZE Changes in fair value of derivatives (552,582) (21,913,074) - (22,465,656)
FRANES N RNMETE E:ﬁ; e in fair value of gold from - (6:333.243) (6333243)
PRI IHRES Payroll payables 3,008,716 (1,21713) - 1797603
! o o
AA AT e ot o (5353649 - a0
iR A Accrued liabilities 12,559,236 (10,172,890) - 2386346
GG Deductible tax losses - 22,178,187 - 22178787
Hty Others 5,098,314 (2,314,899) - 2,783,415
&it Total 64,048,683 (12,277,873) 5,508,901 57,279,711
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2015 £ E 2015

B FTIS R R = Deferred tax assets FEEE AEFNRZE ZKEEE&LVI-L\ ERAT

EiE&ENE
Opening Credited/(Charged) Credited/(Charged) Closing
balance to income statement to equity balance
WK ESR Loan impairment provision 32,751,234 21,864,928 - 54,616,162

o S Unrealised profit or loss on available-
mi Bih % SEHRES -

WHEHESBMATRTIRE o a e (3,229,589) (2,097928)  (5327517)
TEEMIEARMETEREE  Changes in fair value of derivatives 9,412,607 (9965,189) - (552,582)
FTURMI T AR R & Payroll payables 18,785,540 (15,776,824) - 3008716

RN E TR Changes in fair value of structured i
NRMETEHRR deposits embedded with options 16,634,097 (21,987,743) (5:353,646)
iE#E A Accrued liabilities - 12,559,236 - 12,559,236
Hi Others 367,827 4,730,487 - 5,098,314
ait Total 74,721,716 (8,575,105) (2,097928) 64,048,683

F 2016 F12 A31H, AATRREFEXIAFHBFITRM, URATEE

BARRINTRASHENREEARABTARBIANSART
88,712,748 SLRAI KIS X HIE EFTBH E = A AR T 22,178,187
Jt, AEMSHP ART 4405385 REI I H A 209 &, AR
63,414,341 K9 EIHA H 25 2020 &£, AR 20,893,022 K ZEIHI A A4 2021 £,

13. At ¥ =

As at 31 December 2016, based on the profit forecast and
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unused tax loesses can
be utilised, the Bank recognised deferred tax asset of RMB
22,178,187 arising from unused tax losses of RMB 88,712,718,
among which RMB 4,405,385 will expire in Year 2019, RMB
63,414,341 will expire in Year 2020 and RMB 20,893,022 will
expire in Year 2021.

(13) Other assets

BitiE
Notes 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
KHSEMER Long-term deferred expenses 131 72,168,358 35,342,793
EEIRE Construction in process 13.2 33,196,977 34,464,264
H b 57 =k Other receivables 133 58,415,962 85,298,123
FINE TR A0 Input VAT to be verified 3,010,521 -
&it Total 166,791,818 155,105,180
1B1ESEME A (13.1) Long-term deferred expenses
SR%H AANEERFYRIH HES &it
2016 £F 2016 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
FEHRE Opening balance 116,068 32,267,805 2,958,920 35,342,793
AN Additions - 17901,344 - 17901,344
REEZETIREEN  Transfer from construction in ) i
( BtiEZS. 13.2) progress (Note 6.13.2) 38,691,221 38,691,221
RELE Disposal - (188,594) (2,958,920) (3147,514)
REDEH Amortisation (4,037) (16,615,449) - (16,619,486)
FREE Closing balance 112,031 72,056,327 - 72,168,358
no| K&EH|T (hE ) FRAT 2016 FERE



SR#H HAANEERTHRZH HEH ait
2015 & 2015 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
FEHEE Opening balance 119,784 43,790,305 3,095,486 47,005,575
AN Additions - 3,894,223 - 3,894,223
-ty i it : :
AR Amortisation (3,716) (17,654,013) (136,566) (17.794,295)
FEREE Closing balance 116,068 32,267,805 2,958,920 35,342,793
B2HERTRE (13.2) Construction in progress
2016 & 2015 E B
2016 2015
FEVIRE Opening balance 34,464,264 17,464,765
AN Additions 88,971,265 28,928,053
ENEEEF (MiE. 10) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 6.10) (5,635,524) (1,399,577)
BANLEEFE (MiEN. 1) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 6. 11) (45,911,807) (6,01,581)
ENKHSMER (ME. 131)  Transfer to long-term deferred expenses (Note 6.13.) (38,691,221) (2,237,290)
H g D> Other decreases - (2,280,106)
FEREE Net closing balance 33,196,977 34,464,264
13.3 H i pr e =h (13.3) Other receivables
¢ Ageing 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
1EH Within 1year 33,115,615 24,413,991
1-2 £ 1-2 years 10,172,118 5,193,681
2-3 4 2-3 years 4,711,648 701,041
3EME More than 3 years 1,822,482 48,589,410
IMT Sub-total 59,821,863 85,298,123
B SRR Less: Bad debt allowance (1,405,901) -
&it Total 58,415,962 85,298,123
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4. BB EES

(14) Provision for impairment losses

A AEHR / Y = AR . o
2016 2016 FEn Al L& £KEn
Opening Accrual/ Recovgry of Exchange rate Closing
assets previously .
balance (Reversal) written-off difference balance
EHEBEES Impairment provision for due from banks
AN 5,984,132 4,918,82 - - 1,065,303
( BHEA. 2) (Note 6.2) 8 (4,918,829) 065,30
IR ENREES Impairment provision for placements with
( MHEA. 3) banks (Note 6.3) 3958560 (1422970) 2,535,590
WK ER Impairment provision for loans
( BiEA. 86) (Note 6. 8.6) 452,894,287 55,061,712 90,198 6,060,877 514,107,074
Hi Ui Bad debt allowance for other assets (Note
e - 1,405,901 - - 1,405,901
(M. 13) 6133) 0590 0590
Hh Others 422,084 (422,084) - - -
&it Total 463,259,063 49,703,730 90,198 6,060,877 519,113,868
iy 27 ] qﬂ[@uﬁﬁ N 2R
2015 £ 2015 EMRE  AETHRE pageerbie CEER ERRE
I5Z.
Opening Recovgry of Exchange rate Closing
assets previously .
balance Accrual written-off difference balance
ErEREESE Impairment provision for due from banks
A 1,152,709 4,831,423 - - 5,984,132
( BfFiES. 2) (Note 6.2)
IR EES Impairment provision for placements with . )
( BiFEA. 3) banks (Note 6.3) 2336478 1622,082 3,958,560
REIREESR Impairment provision for loans
BIFIm p p
A 366,163,844 82,220,282 B 4,510,161 452,894,287
( HfEFS. 86) (Note 6. 8.6)
Hih Others - 422,084 - - 422,084
&it Total 369,653,031 89,095,871 - 4,510,161 463,259,063

15. [E) Mk Rz E fih & BN TE AT

(15) Due to banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
BRRITEM R E & RVAER Due to domestic banks and other financial institutions 2,150,006,266 102,353
BESMRITERTER Due to overseas banks 956,322,877 233,832,229
&it Total 306,329,143 2,133,934,582
16. FNEE (16) Placements from banks and other financial institutions

31-12-2016 3112-2015
BRRITEMIFNREN Placements from domestic banks 138,740,000 670,000,000
ESMRITEIME RN BN Placements from overseas banks 12,584,636,260 8,043,243,626
&it Total 12,723,376,260 8,713,243,626
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7. UM ETTEBEZESIT N SBREN SR 55

(17) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

2016-12-31 2015-12-31
EBEUAAMEITEEHTE) Financial liabilities designated as at fair
T\ HEAREE 0 & Bh S {5 value through profit or loss
ENIE N Placements from banks 1,578,387,461 1,444,819,228
ait Total 1,578,387,461 1,444,819,228
18. T 1E=h (18) Customer deposits

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
EHIER Current deposits
UNGES=! Corporate customers 7,253,209184 5,609,169,505
MAERA Individual customers 603,464,398 454,464,511
Nt Sub-total 7,856,673,582 6,063,634,016
EHER Time deposits
UNGIES=! Corporate customers 15,057,807,624 15,074,460,718
MAERA Individual customers 2,270,824,545 1,318,546,810
Nt Sub-total 17,328,632,169 16,393,007,528
ait Total 25,185,305,751 22,456,641,544

F2016&E12A31H, REFHHFEENEHETERRTAART
3,746,790,268 T (2015 &£ 12 A 31 H: AR 4,238,096,893 5T ), Hh
BMAMITESRMTE, TEAHMN. RENEEHEHRE RN
EHEA%E, FIREMEERHAHRANTESRTIAEEIAEARS
TEREEZER, Hh AR 126,344,436 J¢ (2015 £ 12 A 31 H:
AR 3,434,084,416 7T ) MEMMEFREBEEEUAL R METE,
Fls AR 2,620,445,832 5T (2015 412 A 31 H: AR 804,012,477 7T)
KEHEE, AATELEEFHRARITESRITAESERSR,
HARMECHANTEERIAREF,

As at 31 December 2016, customer deposits include structured
deposits amounting to RMB3,746,790,268 (RMB4,238,096,893 as
at 31 December 2015). These structured deposits are embedded
with derivatives which are mainly options, equity swaps and
commodity swaps, and are considered not closely related to
the host contract. RMB1,126,344,436 (RMB3,434,084,416 as at 31
December 2015) of these structured deposits are designated
as at fair value through profit or loss as a whole while the rest
RMB2,620,445,832 (RMB804,012,477 as at 31 December 2015)
are not designated. Consequently, the derivatives instruments
embedded therein are separated and the fair value is recorded in
derivative assets or liabilities.
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19. Rz fYER T#rEA

(19) Payroll payables

RTEE Amount unpaid 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
T&., #&., EMEFEMY Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 58,571,559 70,252,086
HERER Social insurance 4,206,593 4,262,451
ISREBENMRIHFRE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 43977 43146
B ERTEFITRI Defined contribution plan 10,742,829 7,620,018
Hep: EXFEREE Of which: Pension fund 5,515,068 3,759,774
S &3 Annuity 5,227.761 3,860,244
&it Total 73,564,958 82,177,701
YA £l Amount payable 2016 &£& 2015 £ &
2016 2015
TIH&. &&. EMGFLMY Salary, bonus, subsidy and allowance 416,295,183 418,081,321
HEREH Social insurance 22,728,438 22,878,472
EBEATRS Housing fund 18,430,280 16,383,044
ILRENMPIHERE Labour union expenditure and staff education fee 6,638,998 2,168,041
& EREFITRI Defined contribution plan 40,587,624 37,639,616
Hrp: ERFEERKE Of which: Pension fund 34,587,286 31,854,639
ol & &40 % Annuity 6,000,338 5,784,977
HME5RITHEXHER Other staff related expenses 17,368,167 22,568,873
&it Total 522,048,690 519,719,367
20. NI X FE 2R (20) Tax payable
31-12-2016 31-12-2015
R Business tax - 14,159,549
HER Value added tax 13,819,505 -
gkl Tax surcharges 1,858,543 2,487,593
Ml Fri5FL Corporate income tax - (24,365,762)
Hith Others 28,506,799 35,409,733
&it Total 4484,847 27,691,113
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21. ffFFIE

(21) Interest payables

FRE KEITR KEZN ERRE
2016 &£ & 2016 Opening balance Accrued Paid Closing balance
FRMAR R Interest payable to depositors 298,966,683 543,857,535 (625,325,464) 217,498,754
— Interest payable to
5 V{IFEBERE
&) Ml Rz {537 2 R Ho At banks and others 53,607,087 132,273,868 (113,238,523) 72,642,432
&it Total 352,573,770 676,131,403 (738,563,987) 290,141,186
FEVIRE KEITR KEZM FERRH
2015 £ & 2015 Opening balance Accrued Paid Closing balance
FRMNAAFE Interest payable to depositors 393,268,690 587,731,295 (682,033,302) 298,966,683
— Interest payable to
=] N A< FI B h=
&)l iz 4 71 2 R EoAth banks and others 22,457,078 147,048,604 (115,898,595) 53,607,087
&it Total 415,725,768 734,779,899 (797931,897) 352,573,770
22. Hthfafi (22) Other liabilities
31-12-2016 31-12-2015
FEERFEH Settlement and clearing 3,144,681 4,436,335
RAfHIT 2GRS #E IT system service fee 15,499,404 47,554,908
IR Renovation payable 7990192 198,743
Hito Others 49,263,501 34,206,713
&it Total 75,897,778 86,396,699
23, SRR AR (23) Paid-up capital
MR SEW R A Paid-up capital
2016 2015
EEART % EEART %
KERITERAR United Overseas Bank Limited RMB equivalent RMB equivalent

5,500,000,000 100

5,500,000,000

100
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24, JANFR (24) Capital reserve

BANHREANAASNE TRS, SHEURASMAITHT, iz In exchange for employee service, the Bank runs a share-
SRR TR NS A AR, based compensation program which is equity settled with a
corresponding charge to the capital reserve.

(25) Other comprehensive income

25. Hfttgz &l Accumulated balance of other comprehensive income in the
BrEfERPEMESHRERRR: balance sheet:
1-1-2016 R Eh 31-12-2016
1-1-2016 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2016
AHHESRETARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 15,982,550 (16,526,702) (544,152)
1-1-2015 1R 2T Eh 31-12-2015
1-1-2015 Increase/(decrease) 31-12-2015
HHESMEFARMETE Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets 9,688,766 6,293,784 15,982,550
AR EMEESWESALER: Other comprehensive income in the income statement:

e BT

2016 £ 5 2016 BRATE Hibzz Gl B BTEH  BEEE
ELiLE PNk
Before tax Lgss: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
WMEBESEKH*R Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
BHEMESKEE income statement
AHHESRA Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial i
NRMETH assets (22,035,603) 5,508,901 (16,526,702)
bR ) AN
2015 £ 2015 BRI &% Hftiz W m: s BEE#
EEGE PN
Before tax Lgss: Transfer to the Less: Tax After tax
income statement
WEBES LR Items that may be reclassified subsequently to the
BHEMEE R income statement
At HE S RE T Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial
A nbdin o 19,834,909 (443197)  (2,097928) 6,293,784
26. BRNTR (26) Surplus reserves
2016 2015 F &
2016 2015
FEHREN Openning balance 82,099,792 74,072,053
AREIEN Increase 4326321 8,027,739
FREE Closing balance 86,426,113 82,099,792
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RIBABIEMAARERIME, F2207 £3 A 24 BERSRIY,
AR AR EFER 0% REEERRARE . FEBRARBITEH
EAREMZIA 50% ML ER), ATARBR,

ARAERBEERRAREE, TRRESERARE, E4tH,

EERRARETATRIUNEESRIILMRE. RIBFAARE
SEWHRIY, FEEFRBESERARE.

27. — R LB HE &

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Bank’s
Articles of Association, accompanied with resolution passed
by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2017, the Bank has
appropriated 10 per cent of its profit to the statutory surplus
reserves. The Bank should appropriate until the reserve balance
reaches 50 per cent of its registered capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserves are appropriated,
the Bank may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves.
Discretionary surplus reserves can be used to compensate
for the accumulated losses of previous years or convert to
capital upon approval. It has been determined by the Board of
Directors of the Bank that no discretionary surplus reserves are
to be appropriated this year.

(27) General reserves

2016 fE /& 2015 S &

2016 2015

EHRER Openning balance 564,261,213 564,261,213
i oy Increase 24160,296 -
FEREREN Closing balance 588,421,509 564,261,213

AN FMRERI & [2012120 B3 ( & RAM R & SITHREE M) B
B, WBLSHIE R E N AR TR 5 =15k R0 15% ROLLBIiHR
— R A, (AR AR, AATRYE 2017 43 A 24 AR
EFESRIY, REE—BREEEIT ART 24,160,296 T,

28. KA ELFE

According to the regulation Caijin [2012] No. 20 “Financial
institution provision measurement Guideline”, the Bank is
required to set aside general reserves of at least 1.5 per cent
of its total risk assets at year end from net profit. The Bank
appropriated general reserve amounting to RMB 24,160,296
according to the resolution passed by the Board of Directors
on 24 March 2017.

(28) Retained earnings

2016 £ 2015 £

2016 2015

EXIR S BEFE Retained earnings brought forward 465,391,689 393,142,039
T Net profit for the year 43,263,211 80,277,389
B BBUEEREAR Less: Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves (4,326,321) (8,027.739)
REN—RIXE = Less: Appropriation to general reserves (24,160,296) -
FERKRSEFE Closing balance of retained earnings 480,168,283 465,391,689

RIBCHEARLFEAREIRAARNARER, KARFEE()
WREAABRSSHE (2)5RMINEESH; 3 )REERERARE;
(4) REL—RR#EE; (5) REESRKARERE, TUMNES
BRXSEERE. —MRARESERERESHRRLLAIERSEX
ERBERT, HAARERRRE,

SEFEHREAFARNEEIRE, HSEEEER, USKAR
HitrFXpEEMERE,

According to the Company Law of the PRC and the Articles
of Association of the Bank, the profit of the Bank can only
be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all tax
responsibilities; (2) compensating any accumulated losses; (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves; (4) making
appropriation to the general reserves; (5) making appropriation
to discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios
of the general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by
the Bank's Board of Directors in compliance with relevant
regulations.

The profit appropriation is decided by the Board of Directors
of the Bank, with reference to the operating performance,
financial positions, and other relevant factors.
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29. P2 HIEN

(29) Net interest income

2016 £ & 2015 £
2016 2015

RN : Interest income:
E R IR AR Al Due from banks and placement with banks and other financial institutions 244,158,381 192,404,375
Erh R sRT Due from the Central Bank 61,538,855 68,792,076
R0 Loans and advances to customers 1,006,547,312 1,149,570,646
FINIREES Reverse repurchase financial assets-bonds 9,382,370 19,685,827
Hih Others 1,746,203 1,774,874
Nt Sub-total 1,323,373,121 1,432,227,798
FELZH: Interest expense:
[k B EH fh & B A TR Due to banks and other financial institutions 10,704,636 3,000,614
sl Customer deposits 543,857,535 587,731,295
IRANEERHM Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 121,569,232 144,047.990
it Sub-total 676,131,403 734,779,899
ERIESRE 2 ON Net interest income 647241718 697,447,899
30. FEHBEBAEESEERAN (30) Net fees and commission income

2016 & 2015 £ &

2016 2015

FHBRRAEBN: Fees and commission income:
HEEEEFER Settlement and clearing fees 22,650,549 24,092,290
RIBAEZF5%H Agency brokerage fees 6,334,285 7,596,628
BERREFER Credit commitment fees 30,265,687 15,989,521
EEEAXRIEAN Credit related income 85,092,838 81,411,373
Hib Others 19,076,803 17,064,565
INT Sub-total 163,420,162 146,154,377
FEHERAEIH: Fees and commission expense:
FEHETH Fee expenses 28,080,604 24,084,502
1IN Sub-total 28,080,604 24,084,502
FHEHERMEEEN Net fees and commission income 135,339,558 122,069,875

118 | X547 (hE ) ARAF 2016 £ERE



3. FEW TR

(31) Investment income

2016 £ & 2015 £ &
2016 2015
AXBMBEENESIRES RS Gain on disposal of held-for-trading bond investments 1,175,032 19,399,653
fﬁ %ié%g%g%gg%%g)\ Gain on financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 6,832,225 10,417,995
TESMIECIMAIRTE Net realised gain / (loss) on derivatives 21,674,248 (165,488,068)
AtHEEERHMIREHESKZE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale bonds and other investments - 17,652,672
RERFF BB Bond interest income 148,747,446 237,072,158
&it Total 178,428,951 119,054,410
2. pRNMET S (32) Gains from changes in fair values
2016 £ 2015 £
2016 2015
UN RN ETENEE~ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (7,715,585) 4123479
iTEemIA Derivative financial instruments 35,973,686 85,614,057
wANES Gold borrowing 25,332,973 -
SRR HAo Structured deposits and others 11,597,019 44,014,201
&it Total 65,188,093 133,751,737
3B B REER (33) General and administrative expenses
2016 & 2015 £ &
2016 2015
RI%EA Staff costs 522,048,690 519,719,367
EnlI=E: Depreciation 14927426 15,271,004
B E Amortisation 30,061987 28,948,756
A &5# R Other operating expenses 247]133,468 224,904,196
ait Total 814,171,571 788,843,323
34, B BRI (34) Impairment losses
2016 £ 2015
2016 2015
FHEMR{ER K Impairment losses for due from banks (4,918,829) 4,831,423
AN NER R ES Impairment losses for placements with banks (1,422,970) 1,622,082
BB ER K Impairment losses for loans 55,061,712 82,220,282
H b 57 W SRl (B $5 5k Impairment losses for other receivables 1,405,901 -
Hitr Others (422,084) 422,084
&it Total 49,703,730 89,095,871
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35. Bl SMIEN

(35) Non-operating income

2016 £ 2015 £ 7

2016 2015

BEE~LHEFF Gain from disposal of fixed assets 18,575 1,812,703

e NI PN Fiscal subsidy 7,860,096 6,625,416

Hits Others 196,056 211,740

it Total 8,074,727 8,649,859
36. fFi5Fi 2 A (36) Income tax expenses

2016 £ 2015

2016 2015

it LB A B B T A 1 B Adjustment in respect of prior periods (577,058) (1,046,305)

BIEFFS R Deferred income tax expenses 14,130,769 (1,560,160)

&it Total 13,553,711 (2,606,465)

S % A SFiE SN X RTITOT:

The reconciliation of income tax expenses to profit before tax

is as follows:

2016 B 2015 £/

2016 2015

FLaTFIE Profit before tax 56,816,922 77,670,924
HOEEM R 25% T EHF I Tax charge on a tax rate at 25 per cent 14,204,231 19,417,731
ot LA BT HA 18] %5 I5 14 B Adjustment in respect of prior periods (577,058) (1,046,305)
EFNEER RN Interest income of government bonds (18,580,496) (23,685,728)
NI 3 Non-deductible items 2,729111 2,111,093
REANTRINE I ZRAIEME  Unrecognised deductible temporary differences 15,777,923 596,744
Fri5Ri 2R A Income tax expenses 13,553,711 (2,606,465)
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37, MeRBRITAR

(37) Supplementary information for the statement of cash

flows
2016 £ 2015 4E
2016 2015
1. BEFEBATAZERINIAERE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities:
HFE Net profit 43,263,211 80,277,389
BIEBERK Impairment losses 49,703,730 89,095,871
EE &= IH Fixed assets depreciation 14,927,426 15,271,004
b o8 i3] Amortisation expenses for intangible assets 13,442,501 11,154,461
JCHAfEE I 2R PR S Amortisation for long-term deferred expenses 16,619,486 17,794,295
%%?ﬁfg)/ Rt RAR (Gains)/losses on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets 175,625 (1,675,485)
N RMET BRI S Gains from changes in fair value (65,188,093) (133,751,737)
KR Investment income (211934,008)  (284,542,478)
TR GE S Foreign exchange losses 82,794,568 51,576,416
HBIERT SR Changes in deferred tax assets/liabilities 12,277,873 8,575,105
ZEEMNIEIRBHE (&m) /B> (Increase)/ decrease in operating receivables (6,219,272,649)  3,708,012,452
ZEMNIERIEM / (B ) Increase/(decrease) in operating payables 7257,846,362 (8,824,595,667)
ZREENFENNETRESE Net cash flows from operating activities 994,656,032 (5,262,808,374)
2, BERMEENYETHER: 2. Net change in cash and cash equivalents:

MERFERET Cash on hand at end of year 15,195,504 21,540,936
Bl: MEHEVRE Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year 21,540,936 18,650,958
mn: MEENYHERKT Add: Cash equivalents at end of year 10,424,249,663  8,578,300,377
B REEMMBNESTR Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,578300,377  6,269722,484
& RIMEZE NSt ingn Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,839,603,854 2,311,467,871
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38. MERMEEMY

(38) Cash and cash equivalent

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
mE Cash 15,195,504 21,540,936
MEEN: Cash equivalents:
FEIRE=NAIAE With original maturity less than three months
— TR R R -Due from banks 483,038,043 1515892105
-ifHESE -Placements with banks and other financial institutions 2,996,451,871  1,202,559,595
-EEUARMEITENEMET -Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 3,898,456,300
- INRESHA -Reverse repurchase financial assets 536,900,000 -
E=ERE (NWEBZHE=AARNZIE) Bond investments (tenor within three months from purchase date) 1196,168,802 169,244,520
TEM R RIRITE RN Other deposits with the Central Bank 1,511,690,947 792147357
N Sub-total 10,424,249,663  8,578,300,377
&it Total 10,439,445167  8,599,841,313

39. R4

A BRI RE 19 S A R B 5 PR o 1 AR R i X 0 AR EE Y AU
tEl. HEITKIS RAOBRBIRKRERITHRM. F20165E12A
31 B & 1775 BR 1 AR ZE R i % B9 B A AL S 178,350 144, 4T4R
MEAZTHT, FREEHRECEAT1ZEIFE; F2016F12 A3
B AT A BR (AL A 125,297 4, RIS A REHEIRA 3 &£,
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(39) Share-based compensation plans

Share-based compensation plans of the Bank comprise the
Restricted Share Plan and the Share Appreciation Rights Plan.
All shares involved are the shares of UOB. As at 31 December
2016, the number of outstanding grants of Restricted Shares
was 178,350, with an exercise price of zero Singapore dollar
and the remaining contractual period of 1-3 years. As at 31
December 2016, the number of outstanding grants of Share
Appreciation Rights was 125,297 and the remaining contractual
period was 3 years.



t. FEbIRE

AARRBNMAREH ., EEERRNEREHEFRE TR
TSR, FERTUS S, FREMUZSHEREMLFZER
RABBB L 4 MRED . B MESTBHEMALESE, B
BAFWF=RIFTE, AAREEERSERHEARNES M S
FRURERDERERIE., TS,

ARRRESRBHEZLZINT:

AASRIT AL 5553 5B
EEXEIMRHEREER. BHME. FRRS. HEEHE, N
IEREEEMARS

FERTUSZHE
ANABZERREEEMARR. ERRS. RITFRS.
MRS FICRERS

AN NIBTF

782 N S
BEFRITETSHHTERS W SEXHENIFERS. AMZS.
EETRERE, URMNLEREET M. FRTEFSRHIZS.

H ol 55 K A 43 BL Tt H 53 8B
EAREZAR LRENIBHARESESEIFES. Ak WA
REXH,

ATERENSBRLSGREERERE, ARREBEESEHH
FHREF&ESBHES. Ak, KA. BRAREERR, ZLEEEH
WEIERIMT

SWMHAFETEZARABRTESBNIMEMAS, ARHAT, I
HAFEMEMKBES, SBAGEREAETESBNEmNEmMmAfE,
BREENER. FARE. ETEAHRE,

SEWMEEMREREZTNTTHTENBEN ( BEXIZHEANRSE
BHZHBN), MBI SHBRENEEER (EREARTES
BRHFRERNITIEFME ) . RIBEZREMNH SRR H EHEE R
URBFREHRRK. SHMZERNNEBRENMRRS MRS
GEDN O S/

7. Segment Information

The Bank is organised into four different operating segments,
namely institutional banking, retail banking, global markets,
and others based on internal organisational structure,
management requirement and internal reporting system.
Every segment provides different products and services.
Management periodically reviews the financial information
of the segments to determine resource allocation and
performance assessment.

The main businesses of the segments are as follows:

Wholesale Banking

The wholesale banking segment provides products and
services such as corporate loans, trade financing, deposit-
taking activities, fund management, foreign exchange
services, etc.

Retail Banking

The retail banking segment provides products and services
such as retail loans, deposit-taking activities, bank cards,
wealth management and remittance services, etc.

Global Markets (GM)

The GM segment is responsible for conducting inter-bank
placements, repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
and bond investments in the inter-bank market, and dealing
foreign exchanges, interest rate and precious metal related
derivatives, etc.

Others and unallocated

This segment represents the assets, liabilities, income
and expenses that are not directly attributable or cannot
be allocated on a reasonable basis to any of the above
segments.

In order to assess the performance of the segments and
allocate resources, management will periodically review the
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and operating results
of the segments, and such information is prepared on the
following basis:

Segment assets mainly include financial assets, tangible
assets, intangible assets and other long-term assets which are
attributable to the segments, while segment liabilities mainly
include deposits, borrowings and other payables which are
attributable to the segments.

Segment operating results refer to income generated
by each segment (including external and inter-segment
income), deducted by direct cost (including depreciation
and amortisation pertaining to the assets allocated to the
segments), indirect cost allocated based on occupation of
resources and asset impairment losses. Transactions between
segments are priced at similar terms as external transactions.
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(1) Segment profit and loss, assets and liabilities

2016 £
2016
4 FE IER HAl &Rk A
WS  RTLS £RL%E  AREHE aul
Wholesale Retail GM Others and Total
Banking Banking unallocated
—. Bl 1. Operating income 669,325,597 108,756,169 24,183,706 141,138,280 943,403,752
EURSE DN Net interest income 458,490,249 85,659,757 (38,556,889) 141,648,601 647241718
Her: 34MFIEEIIN  Of which: External interest income 30207856 184,624,438 159,434,426 1,074,998 647,241,718
S EBEF 2N Internal interest income 156,382,393 (98,964,681) (197991315) 140,573,603 -
FHEHERESREN Net fee and commission income 142,097,216 18,276,246 (23911144) (1122,760) 135,339,558
HAth&ugN Other net income 68738132 4,820,166 86,651,739 612,439 160,822,476
. Bl H 2. Operating expenses (426,852,882) (241,560,232) (66,211,526)  (159,744,084)  (894,368,724)
Her: BFEpELES Of which: Impairment losses (95,254,096)  (6,377,588) - 51927954  (49703,730)
=, EESNE S 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (13) (188,448) 10,649 7959706 7781,894
M., BEETFNE 4. Profit before tax 242,472,702 (132,992,51) (42,017171)  (10,646,098) 56,816,922
&, HIBEMHEER 5. Depreciation and amortisation 2,753,056 870,080 1,637,595 32,428,682 44,989,413
N, BAEALTH 6. Capital expenditure 23345520 6,468,600 2,210,692 96517775 128,542,587
31-12-2016
£, BFEREH 7. Total assets 24709284382 6271140792  20,760,558,788  645427,874 52,386,411,836
I\ RREE 8.Total liabilities 24,487,222,520 2,886,203,562 17,607133,756 744,189,831 45724,749,669
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2015 £ FE

2015
wrks  meus PRERESTUSEE e
Wholesale Retail GM  Others and Total

Banking Banking unallocated
—. BN 1. Operating income 695,930,353 112,083,748 52220913 160,512,491  1,020,747,505
RSN Net interest income 494,451,078 87722494 (46,296,869) 161571196 697,447,899
Her: 34MFIEEIIN  Of which: External interest income 269291946 140,301,132 287122373 732,448  697447,899
S EBEF SN Internal interest income 225159132 (52,578,638) (333,419242) 160,838,748 -
FEHRAESEBN Net fee and commission income 121,758,546 18165375 (16,702,237) (1151,809) 122,069,875
HAthUgN Other net income 79,720,729 6,195,879 115,220,019 93104  201,229731
Z. Bl H 2. Operating expenses (355,350,135)  (257,924,962) (58156,026) (280,023,307)  (951,454,430)
Hr. BropiEse® Of which: Impairment losses (24,634978)  (5303,821) 4764323  (63921395)  (89,095,871)
=, HEWSMEE 3. Net non-operating income/(expenses) (751) 268 (73947) 8,452,279 8,377,849
PO, BEETRNE 4. Profit before tax 340,579,467 (145,840,946) (6,009,060)  (111,058,537) 77670924
A, HIHEMEEA 5. Depreciation and amortisation 1728123 7928432 1,521,806 33,041,399 44,219,760
N, BALH 6. Capital expenditure 16,923,851 4,971,612 5,047,788 16,999,697 43942948

31-12-2015

t. BEET 7. Total assets 20,296,503,388 5,388,850,192 17211131,064 260,429,840 43]156,914,484
I\, AR 8. Total liabilities 20,712,546978 1785292,255  13,522,420380 496,884,763 36517144376

Hpfz 2

() HIEEE

ITSNE N RIRBEAREMAEMOSBEZEHENYERSHKX,
AAFRERAFEMRIIRAEXRBREBHIXIMELEN 7 (ZH ) 6
BT

(2) Other information

(1) External operation income by geography

External operation income is distributed to respective
countries and regions by their geography locations. The
external operation income/(expense) which divided by
different geography locations is shown as follows:

HMEAEN / (324 )

External operation income/(expense)

BA Domestic
BE5h Overseas
&it Total

2016 £ & 2015 S &
2016 2015
765,198,097 1,051,585,577
178,205,655 (30,838,072)
943,403,752 1,020,747,505

FHREAGRE, ARRRAEPERIMITERIES.

2 EEEFRER

ERRARBETFERTARRERPHFHNEBEUANAART 12612
(205 E: ARM1351Z5T ), GALFGERFEWNE 12% ( 2015
FE: 12%) o

The Bank does not have any non-current asset held outside
Mainland China as at the balance sheet date.

(2) Major customers information

Interest income of the Bank amounting to RMB 126 million
comes from top 10 largest loan customers (2015: RMB 135
million), which contributed 12 per cent of the total interest
income for the year (2015: 12 per cent).
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8. Commitments and contingent liabilities

(1) Commitments

RAME S HAE Capital commitments

2016-12-31 2015-12-31
oH#tEEREY Approved but not contracted 1,317,502 1,033,728
SZ A KL T Contracted but not provided for 3,565,625 4,263,307
&it Total 4,883,127 5,297,035
SZEMHEERE Operating lease commitments

ERREAFRBEAFEHBERAET TEEMEENATHHEEE R
HEAR. TEAFHGERE, AQARAARUTHEHFHRK

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease
arrangements. The total future minimum payments in respect

e R of non-cancellable operating leases at the balance sheet date
are as follows:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
—FEURH (E—F) Within 1year 96,752,298 94,995,069
—EPEZFEMR (EZF) 1to 2 years 81197,424 79,016,473
ZENEEENR (E=4F) 2to 3 years 71170136 67,321,413
=FME After 3 years 13,084,682 82,030,159
ait Total 262,204,540 323363114
2 S5E&RIE (2) Credit commitments

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
MEBRER: Financial guarantee contracts:
RITHRRICE Banker's acceptance 331,306,732 214,971,319
1R 2R 2RI Letter of guarantee 248,326,663 141,554,885
#ABHRIE Standby letter of credit 4,544,298,639 2,798119,779
FrH BN EA{E FIE Letter of credit, at sight 55,002,005 2,829,549
FrH I HAE RIE Letter of credit, usance 124,569,783 107,980,260
Nt Sub-total 5,303,503,822 3,265,455,792
ATHAI S Y B I - Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
FEEHE 1 EH U E More than one year 2,387,968 ,475 1963147418
Nt Sub-total 2,387,968,475 1963147418
&it Total 7,691,472,297 5,228,603,210
ERFKIENERKE NN SR Weighted credit risk of credit commitments 2,576,033,768 1,947,926,700

126 X547 (hE ) ARAF 2016 £ERE



MEIEREEEFERER, —BERPRRESZHAEITHEEIE
EESHBITAELSH, RITRBEITERSE T,

BRRERIEA R RAMEHITER A T FIRBAEL T RAIKIE,
BRRE— RN ARSI &R, THRERSHIATET, 85
RIAERERUKE B ETH A —ERRARNTPAAERH,

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfil the customers’
responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to
repay the contracted amount or fail to fulfil their obligations.

Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the
Bank to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the
future. Loan commitments are normally attached with an
effective date or termination clause, and it is possible that
the Bank may not need to fulfil such commitment on the
maturity date. Hence, the amount of the loan commitments
does not necessarily represent the future expected cash
outflow.

(3) Entrusted Business

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
EREE Entrusted deposits 1,808,697987 700,711,371
FREHE Entrusted loans 1,808,697.987 700,711,371

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
FEREVESE Entrusted fund 975,216,615 618,766,385
FHEEMAF Entrusted asset 975,216,615 618,766,385

ZRAERIEEXEFTERRANET, XATEEXEEENE=
FEHERZ A, WFIAXNERRKERERIENKE,

ZREVIZRIEANRAZEREEAEEAENRAITRIFAR, U
BEAXMHAESHITRENATEE, REKHRARRAKE,
RIBAE F LR TR E T P el %,

4. HHIE

FBEEEEN, F 2016 £]K, AATBRME/N., 2 FRKIEHENN
BREN, HEHMBERE,

. BAEE

AR TR R BB S E A A R EE W 55 i BB KU B 7 A E 1
%, FEXNTARNEBEHSHEELRNER, FAREREERNE
FRTHERELSRHERZS, ELRRFEBRESENALT
REMERFNHERAL . WFEFREHTAFEIGE R FHE,
RATRBRRIRIHE T ARG,

Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third
parties designated by them. The credit risk remains with the
depositors.

Entrusted wealth management business is the investment
product according to the agreed investing plan with the
clients. The investment principal is paid by the customers,
which would be managed by the Bank. The Bank would
receive the investment profit on behalf of the customers
and pay the profit to the customers based on the agreed
conditions.

(4) Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2016, according to the management there
was no other contingent liabilities except for those that have
been disclosed in Note 8.2.

9. Capital Management

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method
to mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities
on capital management. The Bank also targets to maintain
sufficient capital adequacy ratio for operations and
optimising shareholders’ value. The Bank may adjust its
capital structure actively to adapt with the change of
economic environment and related risk characteristics.
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ENTRE (FIRITEAEEDE (R1T) ) HNE, #ITEARE
REBEREEEIEHFEEEEEEENS, RUESERELRITZ
IV—RERRBEREBRT 5%, —RAKRFTEEERERT 6%, AR
FERERFRT 8%, IMERAERUKS X FIE (HURITER
FEME (R1T) ) TEHLHEAERNNENNAE, mlRITE
2018 R AIRLAZIRE R 2.5% HIEEAAREK,

AR SER R X B AT B HATE R D — RAREREIWE R,
RERARATANIS . HtbESREITTAES . BRAR, —KK
MEEMADEFNE; AAREEM—RHALX;, —RFREXTEZCHRE
HGTRREES,

EATIRE (EARITEREEDZE (IR1T) ) BNE, HTEHNES
REEFRANT:

The Bank calculates and discloses capital adequacy ratio
according to “Regulations Governing Capital of Commercial
Banks (Provisional)” CBRC requires that a commercial bank’s
core tier-one capital adequacy ratio, tier-one capital
adequacy ratio and capital adequacy ratio should not be
lower than five per cent, six per cent, and eight per cent
respectively. In addition, according to the transitional
arrangement of implementing the “Regulations Governing

Capital of Commercial Banks (Provisional)’, a commercial
banks reserve capital ratio should reach 2.5 per cent by the end of 2018.

The Finance Department is responsible for managing
the capital of the Bank. Core tier-one capital includes
paid-up capital, qualified capital reserve, qualified other
comprehensive income, surplus reserves, general reserves and
retained earnings. The Bank has no other tier-one capital. Tier-two
capital mainly includes surplus provision for loan impairment.

The captial adequacy ratios calculated by the Bank in
accordance with "Regulations Governing Capital of

Commercial Banks(Provisional)" are as follows:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
Zi— R Core tier-one capital 6,661,662,167 6,639,770,108
SRYE A Paid-up capital 5,500,000,000 5,500,000,000
BRARNFARHNER S Qualified capital reserve 7190,414 12,034,864
Hithgm S vt N &5 Qualified other comprehensive income (544,152) 15,982,550
BENTR Surplus reserves 86,426,113 82,099,792
— GRS General reserves 588,421,509 564,261,213
R4 ELFE Retained earnings 480,168,283 465,391,689
Zbh—RAFRBRIE Core tier-one capital deductions 123,123,586 64,412,588
Hib LR E~ Other intangible assets 100,945,399 64,412,588
RIARBFAPIREE S Deferred tax assets arising from tax losses that rely on - i
5| R B S R future profitability 178,
LI — B A EE Net core tier-one capital 6,538,538,581 6,575,357,520
— R AEE Net tier-one capital 6,538,538,581 6,575,357,520
ZR/ENR Tier-two capital 202,234,954 168,441,400
BRSO AR Surplus provision for loan impairment 202,234,954 168,441,400
BB A ET Net capital 6,740,773,535 6,743,798,920
JXUBE InA A 7= Risk-weighted assets 35,967,238,233 28,745,956,236
Hep: FHARBINEF= Of which: Credit risk-weighted assets 30,068,630,248 24,380,411,635
T35 XU A4S 7= Market risk-weighted assets 4,068,195,422 2,579,598726
BRAER B I E = Operational risk- weighted assets 1,830,412,562 1,785,945,875
ZIh—RBRARFTERE Core tier-one capital adequacy ratio 18.2% 229%
—RARRTRER Tier-one capital adequacy ratio 18.2% 229%
RERREE Capital adequacy ratio 187% 23.5%
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ARANBEARFE R RRBRBFER URPESITHEMNRRBEEM S
MFRABEMBITIHEN, KEE, AARETFTHEED INENHEE
2K,

L5, AR TRBERERESTAG N CEARITIIAEREEME) (R
BeSINEE IS IHEHHEITFRER Bk 2016 £ 12 A31H,
EATRIATHFFEA 103%, FARIR 4% BFENER, HXEENT:

The capital adequacy ratios and related components of
the Bank are calculated based on the statutory financial
statements prepared under the Chinese Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises. During the period, the
Bank has complied with the capital requirements imposed by
the regulator.

In addition, the Bank calculates and discloses leverage ratio
according to “Regulations Governing Leverage Ratio of
Commercial Banks”(CBRC Ordinance [2011] No. 3). As at 31
December 2016, the Bank’s leverage ratio was 10.3 per cent
which was higher than the minimum regulatory requirement
of four per cent. The relevant information is as follows:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
ZID—RER Core tier-one capital 6,661,662,167 6,639,770,108
B B —RHERINBRITE Less: Core tier-one capital deductions (123,123,586) (64,412,588)
I — R A EER Net core tier-one capital 6,538,538,581 6,575,357,520
BEERNETLRA Adjusted on balance sheet items 49956,473,200 42162,180,600
REEGRINTB REN Adjusted off balance sheet items 8,162,762,115 6,358,981,020
PEERNIMNEF=RT Adjusted on and off balance sheet items in total 58119,235,315 48,521161,620
ATFF = Leverage ratio 10.3% 127%

+. ERREEE

1. 15 A XU

11 E AR EE

FRARKEEESARNZZNFEANRE, EEHERITOERARR
S F AR B ER N EITEX SREET R, AAFNIE
AR EERA TRMERAMBR, ROMDMENEAKBEEERET
FHERIE, STHE RTINS RIKIE

FRARBHEREE: S—EHENTPEHITHERNEZEEN,
- THERERMEGE FRETIERRUNEFHFEEERITEN
RN S ZRIE —EFFTURZE, FRARNBHNEPEERBTRIT
W Bt R — 4 E 1T E IR AL B R BRI

AR F PSR AR R B A, R AL S AN ST R Y ERERFN_E IR
HIEROE R TEARK . ARREHNEFHEERRHIT
BE, NERREBHITANH R BHERRKERE,

10.Financial Risk Management

(1) Credit risk

(11) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a borrower’s or
counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as and when
they fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly arises
from loans and advances to customers. Credit risk of off
balance sheet items mainly arises from the letters of credit/
guarantees issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk concentration refers to the situation whereby
there is a concentration of customers in the same business
activities, geographical location, or industry sector with
similar economic characteristics such that their repayment
ability would be affected by the same economic fluctuations.
Credit risk concentration reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s
performance to such customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit
risk. The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval,
credit monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews
the borrowers’ business operations periodically, analyses the
quality of credit portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss
provisions.
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12 REBEMBERY R E IS RIS RE R XS AR O
FHRFERERE, FEREMERYREMIEREEEENRXER
R O ENT

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments
is similar with that from loans and advances to customers.
Hence, the Bank adopts the same policies and procedures
for managing credit contingencies which cover application,
follow-up monitoring and collateral requirements, etc.

(1.2) Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and
credit risk mitigation is set out below:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
Fr R T IN Balances with the Central Bank 6,859,536,941 3,936,576,699
TR E L TR Due from banks 4,281972,740 1509907973
FHES Placements with banks and other financial institutions 8,952,621,562 3,048,717,591
ﬁﬁig%g%g%%;ﬂ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1115977944 5,984,251,565
TEEEF Derivative financial assets 2,401,319415 1,293,652,048
INBREEHEF Reverse repurchase financial assets 536,900,000 -
o2 8 E ik Loans and advances to customers 23,887,216,059 23,252,939,788
AEHESRE~ Available-for-sale financial assets 3,757,637920 3,498,224,643
Ht = Other assets 241,572,926 308,937,616
&it Total 52,034,755,507 42,833,207,923
ERRIEERARNEMO ( FBE/N, 2)  Credit commitments (Note 8.2) 7,691,472,297 5228,603,210
=XRERREEDO Maximum credit risk exposure 59,726,227,804 48,061,811133
13REERE (13) Risk concentration

WESMFEPTFE-TUHME, IHAREERELEFHE, HiE
AREEESHEMRS, i, FERITUFSKNEFEREEEM
FRRE R, B ARRERTIL R0 XS R RXBE TR AEE

AAREEZAENEFRBEEREMFERER, KARREEMN
BRETUEFEFRE, ESEMER. 8

14 18R
KARRBERZSXFHIERAREITGREMENERYESAR L,
KRR EZHRWESL THXEIERE, SEERYITEREET
FATEIE R

130 XE5R4T (hE ) ARAF 2016 £ERE

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar
economic characteristics would tend to pose higher credit
risk to the Bank. On the other hand, the level of credit risk
may be varied from each industry or geographical location in
view of their unique economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/
guarantees to domestic customers. Analysis on industry
sector concentration for the Bank’s loans and advances can
be found at Note 6. 8.

(1.4) Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would
depend on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties
as assessed by the Bank. The Bank has established a guideline
on taking collateral including the frequency of collateral
valuation.



IR EZF AT JLFHZEER

- FREdER, HRUMEZEAUERER. FITHER. B/~
MHIZE;

- FFMARK, HRUABRES,

B R R S XA SRR IAN B RIBERXHILER
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15 fERRE
ARFEEMERE (KRMBRELES ) HERRESTOT:

The main types of collateral include:

- For corporate and commercial loans, main collaterals taken
include cash deposits, bank guarantee, properties and
machinery; and

- For personal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential
properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor
the market value of the collaterals and follow up with the
borrowers/counterparties to top up collaterals in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the loan agreement. The
change in market value of the collateral would also be taken
into consideration when reviewing the adequacy of loan loss
provisions.

(1.5) Credit quality
The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding
provisions) is analysed as follows:

BREHERBE CEferEE 2RE Ait
3r12-2016 Neither overdue nor  Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
EE = Due from banks 4,283,038,043 - - 4,283,038,043
Placements with banks and other financial
B4 - -
FHEE institutions 8,955,157152 8,955,157152
MARMETEBRBETEIIN  Financial assets at fair value through profit
s e o S 1115977944 - - 1,115,977944
LIRS EREr~ or loss
INBRESREF Reverse repurchase financial assets 536,900,000 - 536,900,000
MK F R Interest receivable 187,536,443 - - 187,536,443
RN Loans and advances to customers 24,085,480,413 369707  315473,013  24,401323133
AHHESRHE Available-for-sale financial assets 3,757,637,920 - - 3757637920
ait Total 42,921,727915 369,707 315,473,013 43,237,570,635
BREHERRE CEferEE 2iR{E &it
3112-2015 Neither overdue nor ~ Overdue but not Impaired Total
impaired impaired
TFHE AL FRIR Due from banks 1,515,892,105 - - 1515,892,105
Placements with banks and other financial
B4 - -
FHEE institutions 3,052,676,151 3,052,676,151
MARMETEBRETEIIN  Financial assets at fair value through profit
s A 4o Sk o S 5,984,251,565 - - 5984,251,565
LIRS EREr~ or loss
R F 2 Interest receivable 233228171 - - 233,228171
RN Loans and advances to customers 23,401,286,988 9729,680 294,817,407 23,705,834,075
AHHESRE Available-for-sale financial assets 3,498,224,643 - - 3,498224,643
&it Total 37,685,559,623 9,729,680  294,817407 37990,106,710
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Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor impaired
The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor
impaired by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
[SEGER Unsecured loans 5,040,959,502 3,073,143,046
RIELERX Loans secured by guarantees 2,568,218,056 3,151,531,845
LR BT =X Loans secured by mortgage 13,234,360,469 13,199,720,036
FRIREEER Loans secured by pledges 3,241942,386 3,976,892,061
&it Total 24,085,480,413 23,401,286,988

EEHAERBENLBEREER
FHREAGERA, SERERRENR M ERR BRSO T:

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired
Ageing analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as
at the balance sheet date is as follows:

31-12-2016
1MBR 14MH812498 24 H2I34A8 3IPMARE Fit REERULARME
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals

Loans and advances
4 LT _ _ _

R R B t0 customers 369,707 369,707 286,889,299

31-12-2015
1MAA 11MAZ 248 241 H23A4A 3INMARE Fit IREERULARME
Within 1 month 1to 2 months 2 to 3 months More than 3 months Total  Fair value of collaterals
sy O3NS and advances 6,289,680 3,440,000 - - 9729680 171766,600

to customers

ER{ER &R B TR B
MRAENEERPE IR RBRRENEHAEE - IR ST R
EEREZE, BZBEAXMNERIITRRAEREFTHIME %ML
AEMfIT, MNZEBERARBRFEAARSRERHR. XLEERS
WIEEA “REK” . AR H “RK” %K

THFRGERE, AARFARNRERZNKENEREZRER
FHHERMP R RN ETIRIT

Impaired loans and advances

Where there are objective evidences that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of
the loans and the impact from the events on the expected
future cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant
loans should be recognised as impaired loans. These loans
are classified as “Substandard’, “Doubtful” or “Loss”.

As at the balance sheet date, the carry amount of impaired
loans and the fair value of collateral of impaired loans held
by the Bank are as follows:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015
VERERAEN Impaired loans
- R -Substandard 162,628,137 217,552,025
— AI %% -Doubtful 61,580,962 73,814,428
LS -Loss 91,263,914 3,450,954
ait Total 315,473,013 294,817,407
RIE B R The collateral value of impaired loans 294,860,960 283,812,300
132 A%MT (PE) HRAF 2016 FERE
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FHFHHERB, SEANAHERRERKEMETTWOT:

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined
from the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment
made after considering the Bank’s own experience in
collateral disposal as well as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies
to renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order
to maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to
manage customer relationships.

The carrying amount of restructured loans and advances is as
follows:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015

- RE

Restructured loans and advances

- Not impaired

- 41,724,380

2. FRENE RS
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(2) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the Asset Liability
Committee and the Executive Committee. The Asset Liability
Committee formulates key strategies on liquidity risk
management and reviews the Bank's asset liability structure
and liquidity risk profile on a monthly basis. Day-to-day
management of the Bank’s liquidity is undertaken by Global
Markets while Balance Sheet Risk Management Department
independently monitors and reports liquidity risk exposures
against control limits to the Asset Liability Committee and
the Risk Management Committee.

The Bank’s liquidity risk management covers the whole
process of strategy development and planning, risk
assessment and measurement, monitoring and review as well
as contingency planning. The Bank measures and manages
liquidity risk mainly by analysing contractual cash flows
of maturing assets and liabilities. The Bank also employs
liquidity early warning indicators, including indicators
imposed by regulators, and control limits to monitor liquidity
risk on a daily basis. Liquidity early warning indicators are
further classified to signal different level of contingency
situations for appropriate actions.
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(3) Market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign
exchange rate and interest rate related products arising from
trading as well as non-trading businesses. The objective of
market risk management is to minimise the negative impact
of volatility of financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings
and equity.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market
risk exposure and formulates market risk policies for
approval by the Asset Liability Committee and the Executive
Committee. Risk profile reports are submitted to the Asset
Liability Committee and Risk Management Committee on a
regular basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include
sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing
etc. In addition, the market risk associated with any new
product/business is required to be identified and addressed
prior to launch.

(3.1) Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency
mismatches of assets and liabilities as well as foreign
exchange trading business whereby the open positions are
subject to exchange rate fluctuations.



F2016F12 A3 H, ARFAMNEXESRAFETHIIROT:

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2016
ET AR Hith &it
usb RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
A Assets:
MERIFMPIEBITERIN Cash and balances with the Central Bank 1,946,063,024 4,926,208,628 2,460,793 6,874,732,445
=B Precious metals - 26,465,000 - 26,465,000
EHRELRIFHES ?ﬁf;g;ﬂ:gif:ﬁ?em with banks and other 6103173,084 7,004,800,009 126621209 13234594302
iiﬁgggg%g%;g Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 115,977944 - 115977944
FTEERE" Derivative financial assets 64,328,823  2,336,990,592 - 2,401,319/415
INBEEEREF Reverse repurchase financial assets - 536,900,000 - 536,900,000
AR Loans and advances to customers 4,063,101,681 18,928,148,625 895,965,753 23,887,216,059
AEHESRE™” Available-for-sale financial assets - 3757637920 - 3,757,637,920
Hthgz = Other assets 25341406 522,465,190 3,762,155 551,568,751
REE Total assets 12,202,008,018  39,155,593,908 1,028,809,910 52,386,411,836
fafk: Liabilities:
RLEHRFEAGSE  Cue toand placement from banks and other 11442040759 3573853419 813811225 15829705403
financial institutions
#ﬁgg%g%g%;g Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,578,387,461 - - 1,578,387,461
TESmAE Derivative financial liabilities 117,246,430  2,530,315,855 - 2,647,562,285
R 1F=k Customer deposits 2,033,422,335 22,569,772,412 582,111,004 25,185,305,751
Hifalk Other liabilities 28,093,092 449,201,736 6,493,941 483,788,769
fEA Total liabilities 15]199190,077  29]123]143,422 1,402,416,170 45,724,749,669
BrEfEs~T Net position (2,997182,059) 10,032,450,486 (373,606,260) 6,661,662,167
FTESHMTIAZNEH ms::g;i}ni:m”ts of derivative financial 1,049978]42 124375588372 1565438254  236,991,004,768
SR&IE Commitments 1,727,804979 4,956,284,949 1,007,382,369 7,691,472,297
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As at 31 December 2015, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is as follows:

31-12-2015
ET AR Hitb ait
usbD RMB Others Total
(RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent) (RMB equivalent)
A Assets:
WERIFEMHRREBITERI Cash and balances with the Central Bank 272,825,403  3,677,857166 7435,066 3,958117,635
=24 Precious metals - 63,500,850 - 63,500,850
EREVRFHES E:aentgmsntiftlfgs:“em with banks and other 2573692707 1106,848,284 878084573 4558625564
iiﬁgg%g%g%;g Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,253,733,421  4,730,518,144 - 5,984,251,565
TSRS~ Derivative financial assets 146,700,504 146,375,085 576,459 1,293,652,048
K ERFn Loans and advances to customers 5,470,977208  16,853,111,089 928,851,491 23,252,939,788
tHESMER Available-for-sale financial assets - 3,498,224,643 . 3,498,224,643
Higr= Other assets 50,713,033 491,034,281 5,855,077 547,602,391
#FEEI Total assets 9768,642,276  31,567469,542 1,820,802,666  43156,914,484
fafk: Liabilities:
RlfERAAS v toandplacement from banks and other 7594,833092  2,750,482,421 501,862,695 10847178208
financial institutions
tiﬁgg%g%g%;g Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 1,444,819,228 - - 1,444,819,228
TEEMAE Derivative financial liabilities 170,899,528  1,048,766,585 - 1,219,666,113
g Customer deposits 1970,791,614  19410,737123 1,075112,807 22,456,641,544
Hib g Other liabilities 26,363,497  480,487424 41,988,362 548,839,283
n&EEIt Total liabilities 11,207,706,959 23,690,473,553 1,618,963,864 36,517,144,376
BrEfESESST Net position (1,439,064,683)  7,876,995989 201,838,802 6,639,770,108
TEEMTALNEH msttrijrr;aelni:‘oums of derivative financial 157414195919 109752222187 2,892,605332  270,059,023,438
= RARIE Commitments 1,024,323125  3,507,183,420 697,096,665 5,228,603,210

138| XKE5RT (hE ) ARAF 2016 £ERE
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Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a
change in foreign exchange rates on profit before tax of the
Bank is as follows:

31-12-2016 31-12-2015

= e . ' X FE HF 220 Xt 5t 5 ) 22 0
aaEar

ERZH Change in Foreign Exchange Rate Impact on profit Impact on profit

ARG A 1% -1% change against RMB 33,707,883 12,372,259

SFAAL THFHE 1% +1% change against RMB (33,707,883) (12,372,259)

U ESRESHETEMAGREEHSNICERNKEENY, EitE
THEMEARATR, SHHARTICENSIER T ATF
TE R

BAXRHDHETUTRIE:
() CEHRERIEEHHMART THRE B LHREE (REfh)iC
REIHER SN 1% ISR R IR ;

() EHMICEEHIIEEHHNARTICERERER@EZ;
(B) ZLEREHAREER~RERRME,

HFETLRRE, CEEUSBARRIC SRS H R ERE
WTEE S BRE S TS RARE,

3.2 PR X
TR R IETE TRITHES. REMRIMLTHRAEARE (5
BEEFEMS ) REHEN (MFENDFIEMS ) HERERERE,

AARRIFI R B GERMEE, HHEEMERREEERRE,
EHEAFARERSTIRREEZASRERERR,

R ERBARANE = RGN ZEREN N FEH BLEILEN
HHENEEBTRGEMNRERENROBE. BTEFRBAN
#E. ERRERERENMNKASPRE, KITEFRGEEXNEF
BT TE R 0 1A B4 ) 2R RUBR i o

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It
shows the impact of a change in other currency rates against
RMB on the Bank’s profit before tax, given other variables
remain constant.

The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses
caused by one per cent change of the closing rate (mid
rate) of the different foreign currencies against RMB as at
the balance sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against
RMB in the same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of
exchange rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ
from above sensitivity analysis.

(3.2) Interest rate risk

The Bank’s interest rate risk arises mainly from maturity
mismatches (for fixed rate) or re-pricing mismatches (for
floating rate) of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance
sheet items.

The Risk Management Division monitors interest rate risk
exposure, formulates related policies and procedures and
provides regular report on interest rate risk profile to the
Asset Liability Committee and Risk Management Committee.

Risk Management Division is responsible for analysing the
mismatch of assets/liabilities re-pricing, assessing the
potential impact of interest rate change on profit and
monitoring interest rate risk exposure by formulating a
structured interest rate risk management toolkit, including
the interest rate re-pricing report, static net interest income
report, basis point PV report and stress testing duration
report.
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As at 31 December 2016, the Bank’s assets/liabilities re-pricing

AERBEESINET: profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing
date) is as follows:
31-12-2016
3INMBRZNAETE 1ESHESHEYE AitE it
Within 3 3months Tto5years 5years Non interest Total
months to 1year bearing
BiE. Assets:
mgwm¢%%ﬁmgﬂm%mmwmm@ma 4916,022197 - - 1958710248 6,874732,445
=22E Precious metals - - - 26,465,000 26,465,000
= 5 Due from and placement with banks

R EFHES and other financial institutions 10,972,912,671  2,261,681,631 - - 13,234,594,302
A (& B B H T 501 Financial assets at fair value through
DNET:E b s profit or loss 497,897,562 557,541,882 60,538,500 1115977944
THELEREF~ Derivative financial assets - - - 2401319415  2,401,319415
INRESRET Reverse repurchase financial assets 536,900,000 - - - 536,900,000
KR Ehfnih s Loans and advances to customers 20,049,248,890 3,326,547795 511,419,374 - 23,887,216,059
A HESRNE T Available-for-sale financial assets 1,909,391,370 689,299120 158,947,430 - 3,757,637920
HtEr= Other assets - - - 551,568,751 551,568,751
AFEEIT Total assets 38,882,372,690 6,835,070,4281,730,905,304 4,938,063,414 52,386,411,836
fafk: Liabilities:
B EHRIENES Due to and placement from banks and 5 355 03¢ c3 5 495 869750 - - 15,829705,403

WA s M E I E B E TS Financial liabilities at fair value

DL b o
TEEmMAGR

UL EEEA

Hfthfa

afEATt

FEREERO

other financial institutions

through profit or loss 15578,387461

Derivatives financial liabilities -
Customer deposits 18,338,230,668

Other liabilities -

4,828952,864 2,018,122,219

- 1578387461

2,647,562,285 2,647562,285

- 25]185,305,751

483,788,769 483,788,769

Total liabilities 33,250,453,782

7324,822,614 2,018,122,219

3,131,351,054 45,724,749,669

Net position 5,631,918,908

(489,752,186) (287,216,915)

1,806,712,360  6,661,662,167
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As at 31 December 2015, the Bank’s assets/liabilities re-pricing

AEBREESTUT: profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and re-pricing
date) is as follows:
31-12-2015
3INMARZNAZETE 1ESHESEME RitE it
Within 3 3months Tto5years 5years Non interest Total
months to 1year above bearing
BPE. Assets:
W4 BT R SR T SR ;“;: and balances with the Central 5 () 17 374 - - 294047309 3958117635
=22E Precious metals 63,500,850 - - - - 63,500,850
EHRELRFHES Due from and placement with banks 3 (1) 135337 916 490227 - - - 4558625564
o and other financial institutions e e anastens
A & B B EH T B0 Financial assets at fair value through
DNE:E e s profit or loss 5,262,477545 247,422,089 473,598,600 753331 5984,251,565
TEESREF Derivative financial assets - - - - 1,293,652,048 1,293,652,048
N Loans and advances to customers 18,947,582,041 4241662334  63,695413 - - 23,252,939,788
AHHESMA Available-for-sale financial assets 1,540,107911 981,164,642 976,952,090 - - 3,498,224,643
Hipzr= Other assets - - - - 547,602,391 547,602,391
#Eat Total assets 33119,874,010 6,386,739,292 1514,246]103 - 2]136,055079 43156914484
AL Liabilities:
B ERRIENES Due to and placement from banks and o 00733704 1 017444 414 - - - 10,847178,208
¥ - other financial institutions et ey o
A EHE B E T it Financial liabilities at fair value through
N HRIRE S B A profit or loss 1,444,819,228 1,444,819,228
THEEmMAE Derivatives financial liabilities - - - - 1219666113 1,219,666,113
S eEy Customer deposits 15,783,057,303  5,150,910,6351,522,673,606 - - 22,456,641544
Htfafk Other liabilities - - - - 548839283 548839283
fEE Total liabilities 27,057,610,325  6,168,355,049 1,522,673,606 - 1768505396 36,517144,376
R RO Net position 6,062,263,685 218384243  (8,427,503) - 367549683 6,639,770]08
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FETESMAFSRITEEMARMNEENER.

UTREEMEEATHERLT, FMERTRRENSETIHNHR

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities
based on maturity date for fixed rate items or re-pricing date
for floating rate items.

3% He AR SR e E NS A E N, Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s net profit, other comprehensive
income after tax and equity is as follows:

31-12-2016
T=3TE Change in interest rate PRkt WEMGESRENFRESTHNEN  NEAEENENZMm
Impact on net profit  Impact on other comprehensive income after tax Impact on equity
FIZEEHN 100 N E S +100 basis points 35,582,040 (16,126,982) 19,455,058
FIZF A 100 & A - 100 basis points (35,582,040) 16,126,982 (19,455,058)
31-12-2015
TETH Change in interest rate Xof i 5 2 ) 2 MEMESWENFREEMEZE  NAEENERRMm
Impact on net profit  Impact on other comprehensive income after tax Impact on equity
FIZ A0 100 MRS +100 basis points 40,397,811 (14,946,970) 25,450,841
FZE D 100 MES - 100 basis points (40,397,81) 14,946,970 (25,450,841

U EHRESHETHEMAGREHSNHAEREEE, FXH
STNEE—ENNETL, RBRA—FAEARNENRENE
HEMXEABRELTENSBNNZNE, BETUTRIE:

() FMEE=NAAR=NRABRE—FRNERENH IR E =
ARHERIEERXH B EERENSEIH;

(2) WrsEEe & REF E T UM FITHR;
(3) AFEMARESHTEMETN;
(4) EFEREHATESHE~RERFIRB,

HTFETLRRE, FIREHSBEAQRRSEBNHIAHERE
WTEE S BRAE ST ERARRE,

H R AW SRR ST s gUR S TR E T 5% H & REF

EEHMEBHRE, EFEEFNEREH—ET S LXIHRAHY
ERFRAALNMERTERGEFHE,
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The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure.
It reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the
Bank’s net interest income over a one-year period. The key
assumptions are as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than
three months or between three months and one year are
assumed to be re-priced in the middle of the respective
time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts in parallel with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes;
and

(4) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of net
interest income from interest rate movement may differ from
above sensitivity analysis.

The impact on other comprehensive income after tax is
estimated from the change in market value of "Available-or-
sale” portfolio caused by a parallel shift of yield curve arising
from interest rate change.



4. RRNME

ARME, RETHSEEETEBRENARFZSS, HE—W
B SERR AR EXMHNE. EXSERZT
% (GULARHESZ BT ) TENEET, TREMIAARNM
BEZREIER, AW, ZARAFERETZHBIEMBE~RASR
HETM. Bitt, HFZBIETNARZEMTE, NWTAE
ZHESEMEHATEEEXANE. BR, ERAKEFERTZ
NMESZEXRRASTRELG, HEERE, URAIRAZHA
R

FARRBzZ A ERBRIZEINT:

(i) ManMETTERREZHITASHRIHEMES / SHMHAG
(BRITESMAS / eMAR) ISETHERZTHITE
HEHRnME, MEMHSRZTN, WEHASREMAGEL
AMEHSRESHAHRMNBELARNE, ARNEETI
EWEZ WKHEEE;

(i) FR2ARNEPMZEMERMBTEMARETHREE, B
HKENMES 2 RN ERS;

(i) NESWHBLHMERTRURRZTHMESH, HanMh
BEUSRTHARTEEE, TRAGHERREZTUER
EBARMENAFER, EAEEREZ MG BMmERDS
ik, NKEERASMERIOR;

(iv) ERERDEARRMERBESEFHFE, FHERRTE
ERBHZHEERFREEE BRBANAESTH LR NME,
AEEHRZFRNALMEUARSRENNEGE, HUE
2 51z E HATE R TR HA R X R AT TR ROR 2R

KRRHEARMER TR IFLE R AT FHH .

(i) TE: TR RERMIHAREERENTIHRMN;

(i) fAEIT: T RERBERAREITHE.

(4) Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Subject to the existence of an active market, such as an
authorised securities exchange, the market value is the best
reflection of the fair value of financial instruments. As there
is no available market value for some of the financial assets
and liabilities held and issued by the Bank, the discounted
cash flow method or other valuation methods described
below are adopted to determine the fair value of these
assets and liabilities. However, the value determined by such
methods would depend on the amount of future cash flows,
time period assumption and discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in
estimating fair values:

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(including derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair
value by reference to the quoted market prices when
available. If quoted market prices are not available, the
fair value is estimated using discounted cash flows or
quoted price from the counter parties. The carrying
amounts of these items reflect the fair value as at the
balance sheet date;

(i) The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities
maturing within 12 months are assumed to be equal to
their carrying amounts in view of their short maturity;

(iii) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate
at the time the loans are extended shall be determined
using prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes
in the credit quality of loans within the portfolio are
not taken into account in determining the fair values
as the impact of credit risk is recognised separately as
impairment provision which shall be deducted from the
carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or
floating rate depending on the product type. The fair
value of demand deposits and saving deposits without
specific maturity date is determined based on the amount
payable on demand. The fair value of fixed deposits are
estimated using discounted cash flows method with the
prevailing deposit rate for the remaining tenor of the
fixed deposit as the discount rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i)  Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Mark to Model — where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.
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HERBEAZAARNEN - BEAN, ERREFEEIERL,
MEBMIEHITRBUHRA RN ERNEHE, ARARBENMGE
REAZEZEIAEHER, FINIZNEGERENREGER
B, ImRITNHAERR,

ARBEILT HEEHNFRBRL LN ENSENE, WRRAE
BXflE, REPHRENERABLELARI ML ERNANE]
WiE, Mesh, MEGHMNIE, BASH, RNGERELTERS
ZARINEE, HtWGERFHIZEEERMSTEERS,

KATBHEIETARMERENSRIRIS H = BR:

F—BR: AFTIHNIE

X EERARERBERAFNRENERTHRNEGHEEST
WAMLER A EHmREEHPREGBEILEEARARSEAR
HHHNEE RS

ERR: HERASHEANELITENEERHNEERAR
EFEEAXRETREERHE, MAANNEZSHHMEETIS
FEENR, IHRARGEAESRITAST. BANENEBN—L
THS5ELBERAMBZZIHRR, WANZNBERHEM&=RE
BEANNCIZM, SMCEH, ReREH / EREEEXZNITER
(A EEH, SNCHR) , HEBRARNEAZSXFRENE
R (BB ERER ) o

FZRER: SEESYIEEENRGIMNRANMGERA
X EHEERARERASETHRIINEM ERNEZRTNZSH,
BRIAAREREEXNEM™ RN ANEXNER.

U EBBRREFTEDNARRADEFZRAGEZZ AN ERE—B 2T

EEMN, AT, BTEMNEANSERTRZATERRKRIE, S/
MRz 2 MERGTEEEF A,
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Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value
process that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure
correct fair value representation. In making appropriate
valuation adjustments, the Bank follows the methodologies
that consider factors such as bid-offer spread valuation
adjustment and model valuation adjustment.

The Bank has established internal control procedures
over the valuation process to provide assurance over the
appropriateness of the fair values applied. If fair value is
determined by valuation models, the assumptions and
techniques within the models are independently validated
by a specialist group. In addition, price and parameter inputs,
assumptions and valuation adjustments are subject to
verification and review processes. Other valuation control
includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to
the following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted
prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets
where the price represents actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. Financial
instruments included in this class are bonds with the marked-
to-market prices actively made available and announced by
China Central Depository and Clearing Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments
where the prices are derived from standard valuation
models, and significant inputs to these models are directly
observable. The valuation techniques include the use of
discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques widely used and accepted by
market participants. The financial instruments included
in this category are mainly Foreign Exchange Forward and
Foreign Exchange Swaps, Noble Metals Forward and Swaps,
and OTC derivatives (such as interest rate swap, FX Option)
and financial instruments with fair value derived from
counterparty (for structured products arranged on back-to-
back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one
significant input is not observable and reliance is placed on
reasonable assumptions made on market conditions. There is
currently no financial instrument being classified under such
category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide
a consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the
Bank’s assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may
use different assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair
values disclosed by different financial institutions may not be
entirely comparable.



TRIIFTURRNETENERIENL2RNERR:

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy of
financial instruments measured in fair value:

ARNETEERBBNE

Inputs in fair value measurement

ERWHRN EXAURANE EEFTUZREBANE ait
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
. (B—ER) (B=E%) (E=ER)
3112-2016 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
WA MEITEBETS)  Financial assets at fair value through i i
HN KRS S R profit or loss 1115977944 1115977944
T &R ™ Derivative financial assets - 2/401,319415 - 2401319415
AtHESREFT Available-for-sale financial assets 3,757,637920 - - 3,757,637920
ERMATEIT Total financial assets 4,873,615,864 2,401,319,415 - 7,274,935,279
FNES Gold borrowing - 529,767,027 - 529,767,027

U aEitE BT
TN Y HI R B & Bl f

Financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss

1,578,387,461

1,578,387,461

TEEmMmaE Derivative financial liabilities - 2,647.562,285 - 2,647562,285
R R MET BIES Depgmts designated at fair value through ) 1126 344.436 ) 1126344.436
profit or loss
sHARET Total financial liabilities - 5,882,061,209 - 5882061209
rrMETEERNBNE
Inputs in fair value measurement
ERTHRN EEZAWRANE EEARTURENE &it
Active market Significant Significant non-
quotes  observable inputs observable inputs Total
1 (B—BR) (BEZEX) (F=EXR)
31-12-2015 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
UARMETEBRBETE  Financial assets at fair value through
s L A 4o e ot by ) 1,590,655,518 4,393,596,047 - 5,984,251,565
NSRBI ERBES  profit or loss
TESRMES” Derivative financial assets - 1,293,652,048 - 1,293,652,048
AiEHEEREAE Available-for-sale financial assets 3,498,224,643 - - 3,498224,643
ERAFEIT Total financial assets 5,088,880,161 5,687,248,095 - 10,776,128,256
MARMEITEEETS)  Financial liability at fair value through
H\ SRR & Bl £ fE profit or loss 1,444,819,228 1,444,819,228
TEEmMAE Derivative financial liabilities - 1,219,666,113 - 1,219,666,113
JEE A RIMET B TES Depgmts designated at fair value through ) 3390950780 - 3390950780
profit or loss
sHARET Total financial liabilities - 6,055,436,121 - 6,055436,121

KEE, ARARREURLNEHENE -—BRNEZRREM
B ERz B,

BERINA, TER, FARANEMEMBI~MEMAGRNARN
BESHEENKANEFLTEXER

During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1
and level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and
liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between
the fair value and the carrying amount of the other financial
assets and financial liabilities is not material as at the balance
sheet date.
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1. REXABIINERR

TAHREE, THEFHEBERRRREKT:

(1) RN R REMEA MBI E T ;

QFATANXBEEARURSEXRZTNRERR;

11. Related party transactions

(1) Criteria of identifying related parties
Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2016 are as
follows:

(1)  Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;

(2) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close
family members;

() ARAMXBEEARSSEXREVRIREN RIEH. HEE
FISEMER A E bl ;

(@) AR I L EEESE,

2. KARERH

(3) Enterprises under control, jointly control or significant
influence of the key management personnel of the Bank
or the close family members;

(4)  Annuity established by the Bank.

(2) Parent company of the Bank

B A S5 R AR R BN B
Name Business Nature Registered Address Share Capital Shareholding
KERITHRR A RITR &R 55 Frhnig 6351 BAFM 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore SGD 6,351 Million 100%

3. TRENERARBEXRKZZNEMKEKT

(3) The related parties which the Bank had transactions
during the year are as follows

EEZSFNZEE A

Company under the common control of parent company

B A 1% R =g i EMRA EERERA
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
KERIT ( BEAIL ) FRAR RITRERMRS ORI HER DRBETHES 20 27T HEWR

United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd.

Banking and Financial Service

Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wong Kim Choong

RERIT (RE ) ARAF

United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public

Company Limited

RITR RS

Banking and Financial Service

REES
Bangkok Thailand

Tan Choon Hin
Tan Choon Hin

=¥k 24857 12T
Baht 24.857 Billion

P 2% B TR B AR T &
X (L&) EEREERAT A&, BRRE FE kg 100 AT Richard Goh Chou Eng
UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. IT related technical development, Shanghai China SGD 1 Million Richard Goh Chou Eng
consulting and service
; FEHR. 2E, BENE ; —
EiBEHELARAH R% ﬂ:}’“ %Z%d Il HEAER @ b AR 2259 27T Lee Wai Fai
UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. eal estate development, Shanghai China RMB 2,259 Million Lee Wai Fai
operating, leasing and management
SEAREAZMAE
Company under the significant influence of the parent company
B e S5t B Mt EMRA EEREAN
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
BEFRITRBBERRE RITR SRS HE EHE ARM 169127 EEL
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited Banking and Financial Service Yantai China RMB 1.69 Billion Cai Guo Hua
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ZARNDEEHXEEEARERHMALE

Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

BIR A 5t B EA EMEE EERRA
Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
i\l (E17) BEARAR ZEEREE HE Ei] 27T 3700 AT RIRE
Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 37 Million Neo Soon Hup
RBENFEEMTFRERAA B E hE RiE AR 103000 Tt #AE
Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd.  Real estate development Tianjin China RMB 1.03 Billion Liam Wee Sin
0N M 3 INE] oL ot it
'gf'olzgg\;igeiﬁ‘cfegl\;?na(gfnfn?c (ﬁﬁ;j) Co g)ﬁu&ljﬁgﬁ;i%vestment E Ly ST 1555 73 7 Bt
N Shanghai China USD 15.55 Million Seah Kian Wee
Ltd. management
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. ERAF EXE A4y £JT 650 AT Rayson Li Kin Hung
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. Holding company New York USA USD 6.5 Million Rayson Li Kin Hung
3 Y INF] Pt Yy
Eﬁgéng(LJezi )(Sﬁnﬁéfiii)%ﬁgirﬁeanjt ﬁ;ﬁu&ltﬁgﬁiﬁfvestment E L XL 650 TI 7T B
Shanghai China USD 6.5 Million Wee Ee Chao
Management Co., Ltd management
A - |3EFNSEE E 257 & . = — -
B TEARELERAR TAJ;;Utgffure[fﬁle“of Chinese  FEEIT %5T 820 T RERE
Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. Xiamen China USD 8.2 Million Goh Bee Leong

pharmaceutical products

EHEWHRAH RFER Frinig W 251,359,000 5T EHIEME
Haw Par Corporation Limited Investment holding Singapore SGD 251,359,000 Wee Cho Yaw
o 0 28 7 N Q—é%s = . —_ o s
FEES (HH) gRARAT oo R BE HRRER g £5% 400 A HIHE
Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. ) P ' oP & Chengdu China USD 24 Million Ng Seng Tat
leasing and management
BEEEEA, SlEREY,
. N = BBEHE. BRAREA
1% P 3 N
EAFSENE (L) BRAT Business information consulting; hE kil ET8ATT wmAE

UOL Business Consulting
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Corporate management consulting;
Investment advice; Construction plan
advice

Shanghai China

USD 80 Thousand

Liam Wee Sin

LiEmmELFRAR BHFERE hE Lt ARM 231Z5T Lim Beng Teong
Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development Shanghai China RMB 2.3 Billion Lim Beng Teong
MBEEHMBER, S5, N8B
IE. BAORERHE. EE. 1
fEER (XiE) EERBRAT Manufacturing of new construction tE X AR 24060 At  #4ELW
UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. materials, sale, lease and management  Tianjin China RMB 240.6 Million Lim Hock San
of office buildings, apartment hotel,
commercial facilities
LERREVERAT B FE hE LiF ARM 714zt Lim Beng Teong
Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co., Ltd. Real estate development Shanghai China RMB 710 Million Lim Beng Teong
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4 KRFAEXBRAZEERS

(4) Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

KRR Fnih s Loans and advances to customers 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
RE GEIEXGREALLG] RE HREEXZSREALLG]

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

R (X2 ) ZRERAT UICinTravel (Tianjin) Co,, Ltd. 62,000,000 0.25 -
iR E W HRAF Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 371,090,894 152 203,004,744 0.86
Ait Total 433,090,894 177 203,004,744 0.86
TER R 3/ BRI Due from and placement with banks 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
RE HEEZZRELLG RE HREIEZZREALLG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 58,003,243 0.44 836,369,324 933
KERTIT ( B3RAT ) HFR/AF United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd 657,879 - 295,245 -
&it Total 58,661,122 0.44 836,664,569 933
TFENRIFNTIN Due to and placements from banks 31-12-206 31-12-2015
RE HRIEXZZREALLG RE HREEZZREALLG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 15,112,898,228 86.82 11,620,993,312 94.54
*ERT (R ) HIRAT L OYEess k(A Puble 404,661 . 713735 001
BEERITRIDAERAF Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited - - 17 -
&it Total 15,113,302,889 86.82 1,621,707,064 94.55
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S A

Customer deposits

31-12-2016

31-12-2015

RE AEEZSRELG KB LGEEZSRELLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
LiBEHFENHFRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 252,349]131 100 45469,602 2.02
EHAFRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 66,565,541 0.26 355,672,385 1.59
REBRAEE (L5 ) BRAR gSBL\t/j”t“re Management (Shanghai) 1, 42703 098 253,486,755 13
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. - - 52,048,464 0.23

s N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment

3 Nt at AN

KEE (bif) RAFEERAT anagement Co,, Ltd. 8,829,689 0.04 14,661,840 0.06
T\ (E]) BIEERAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 3,626,282 0.02 15,209,497 0.07
FEEM (B ) RRERAT ?:'gglftr:jd (Chengdu) Development 24,723,066 010 6093614 0.03
k(i) EEREERAS BSBBF Information Technology Pte 2623410 001 3740,017 0.02
EIEREHEFRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co.,, Ltd. 8,546,296 0.03 2,340,162 0.01
R R B R A ERAT I;anln UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., 654798 ) 1,630,289 001
EERER (L) BRAS gc()DLLE;smess Consulting (Shanghai) 857319 ) 1001576 )
EiEER (R ) ERBERAT  UICJinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 5,678,450 0.02 - -
LB E W ERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 645,654,990 257 36,650 -
&it Total 1,267,540,675 5.03 160,090,851 517
R F) 2 Interest receivables 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
£E HEEZZRELG £E HEAEZZRELG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KEESRITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited - - 348,573 015
LR EERAR Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 592,457 032 324103 014
HEER (X ) KBARAT  UICJinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 593,684 0.32 - -
&it Total 1,186,141 0.64 672,676 0.29
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Interest payables

31-12-2016

31-12-2015

RE HRIEZBRELLG

R SRIEZZH RIS

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITHERAH United Overseas Bank Limited 14,033,057 484 53614564 15.21
B FRAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 94,322 0.03 445988 01
IR AEE ( 1) BRAS g(CD)BL\t/jnture Management (Shanghai) 575429 020 437826 o3
FigtEHEWBRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd 1,786,317 0.62 220,057 0.06
N N —  Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment
5 0t it AN .
KBE ( £if ) RBEEARAT Management Co, Ltd. 19970 0.01 15,109
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. - - 10,627 -
FEEM () BRERAT i}frégland (Chengdu) Development Co., 8475 ) 2450 )
X (EiB) EEREERATE  UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 287 - 400 -
BlIEFREHERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 304 - 301 -
T (E) BEEERAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 702 - 2,860 -
HEER ( XiE) KBERATE UICJin Travel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 30,837 0.01 - -
KB FBEEM =L HR/AT Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 70 - 219 -
R EN (L) BRAD tJt(d)L Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., 9] ) 108 )
4= = United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
4 I\ B _
KERIT (RE ) BRAF Company Limited 16 71
iR E W ERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co.,, Ltd. 64,044 0.02 4 -
&it Total 16,613,921 573 54,750,584 15.53
R — H MR IER  Receivables- other Receivables 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
R HEEZFRELLG) RE HREEZZREALLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 2,838,109 474 2,887,679 3.39
i EWAHR/AT  UOB Property China Co., Ltd. 12,892,048 21.55 - -
X (EiF) 58RI,  UOBBF Information Technology Pte 14818 002 i i
BIRAF Ltd. : .
&it Total 15,744,975 26.31 2,887,679 339
BRI — Efth B {FE  Payables - other payables 31-12-2016 31-12-2015
RE SREEXZZREALLG RE HEEZZRELLG
Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)
KERITARAH United Overseas Bank Limited 8,422,067 110 44,237,346 5120
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FIISU 9N Interest income 2016 2015

&8 SHREEZZEEELG) &8 SHEEZHEHELG)
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
i B BR/AR  Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 16,534,822 125 9,272,617 0.65
KEERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 3,542,990 027 3,714,386 0.26
g%’f\%ﬁ (RR)ER i jinTravel (Tianjin) Co., Ltd. 1,344,432 010 - -
1BEERITRMNAERAT  Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited - - 59,240 -
&it Total 21,422,244 1.62 13,046,243 091
FIEZH Interest expense 2016 2015
&8 SHEEZZEELLF) &8  LEEZZSEELL
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited 116,970,363 1730 136,265,583 18.55
LiBEHENERAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd 4,806,575 071 15,522,708 21
5 s N UOB Venture Management
i JL for 3 JAS—
MEEIREE ( Lig) BRAR (shanghai) Co, Ltd. 4,360,606 0.65 5,336,383 0.73
EHWERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 2,993,616 0.44 4,827971 0.66
N N = Kheng Leong (Shanghai)
3 L0 A )\
K (b ) RRERFRAT Investment Management Co., Ltd. 78,558 0.01 658,618 0.09
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 159,424 0.02 163,134 0.02
FEEH (HH) ZRERAE ?gglf;d (Chengdu) Development 201110 0.03 64,566 001
g\ (E]) BIEERAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 65,224 0.01 60,456 0.01
Rt BB EMEF A G RAT lenjt?dUOL Xiwang Real Estate 3131 ) 32787 )
Bl ERELERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co.,, Ltd. 16,620 - 18,604 -
ek (Fifg) BEEREERAS Et(jBLlicFi Information Technology 12,463 ) 17068 )
s N UOL Business Consulting
1% &2 E INE] _ _
AEEEE ( LiF) BRARE (shanghai) Co, Ltd. 3,364 4,414
- United Overseas Bank (Thai)
1R - INT] _ .
RERIT (RE) BRAF Public Company Limited 6,386 1848
LiERBELERAT Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co., Ltd. 507,655 0.08 226 -
BFERITRIROBIRAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 32,308 - - -
&it Total 130,217,403 1925 162,974,366 2218
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FHHERASUN Fee and commission income 2016 2015
€M HEEXSEHILG] €M HREEXZZEHLLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIESRITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 2,276,625 139 4,703,532 3.22
LiERBELERA Shanghai Jin Peng Realty Co.,, Ltd. 2,475932 152 82,407 0.06
®i\ (E]) BIEERAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 16,575 0.01 24772 0.02
EHLWERAT Haw Par Corporation Limited 4108 - 14,960 0.01
Bl EREHERAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 17324 0.01 13,386 0.01
R F BB F A BHRZ A Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. 2,739 - 5995 -
*eReT (FE) BRAT  Je OV benk(Thal Publc 7935 16 :
EEEHELTRAT UOB Property China Co., Ltd 2,064 - 939 -
HEEM () KBEBRAT  Singland (Chengdu) Development Co., Ltd. 4,001 - 494 -
i (i) SAEmAmRAT (ot eons Sranera) vestment : - 200 :
TS ER ( i) BRAT tJtiL Business Consulting (Shanghai) Co., 24 ) 55 )
X (Lig) EERFEBRAT  UOBBF Information Technology Pte Ltd. 189 - 53 -
EER (X)) RRERAT  UIC JinTravel (Tianjin) Co,, Ltd. 571 - - -
UOB HOLDINGS (USA) INC. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 1,061 - - -
REGRRASE (135 ) ARAT EtiB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., 177 ) 17 )
At Total 4,809,325 293 4,849985 332
FEHERALSTH Fee and commission expense 2016 2015
€8 HEEZZEEALLH) €8 HEEZZEHLLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
KIERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 87392 0.31 - -
&R EIRSE General and administrative expenses 2016 2015
€M HSREXSEHLG] €M SREXZEHLLG
Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)
BEBARZFE IT support

- KEBITHERAT -United Overseas Bank Limited 29,380,179 3.61 26,400,280 3.35

BEEESRREH Rental and service fee
- b EWARAT -UOB Property China Co,, Ltd. 17,047,550 2.09 - -
- KERITERAR -United Overseas Bank Limited 869,842 om 841,861 010
—fe\l (BT ) iBIEBR/AT -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 115,874 0.01 163,281 0.02
&it Total 47,413,445 5.82 27,405,422 347
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F R Software development 2016 2015

£8 LHREEZZEHLG 8 HEXEZHEEILGI

Amount Contribution (%) Amount Contribution (%)

KERITERAT United Overseas Bank Limited 20,111,755 28.54 21,454,740 42.61

ZHEA Fiduciary activities 31-12-2016 31-12-2015

FEREE LHEEZSREULG] FREE LHEXZSHRETLG)

Entrusted deposits Contribution (%) Entrusted deposits Contribution (%)

BIIEMREHAAFRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co,, Ltd. 11,040,000 0.61 11,040,000 1.58

AT By e ki Irrevocable loan commitments 31-12-2016 31-12-2015

£E HREEZSETLG] KA LERZSRELLG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

ﬁﬂ/ﬁ_\_,_iﬁﬁ (Xi#) &EEUICJin Travel (Tianjin) Co.,Ltd 28,000,000 117 - -
PR ]

iR B AHR/AT  Shanghai Jin Jun Realty Co,, Ltd. 275,000,000 11.52 - -

&it Total 303,000,000 12.69 - -

TEEMIASY Derivatives 31-12-2016 31-12-2015

RE LHREXEZSHRELG] RE HERZZREALLG

Balance Contribution (%) Balance Contribution (%)

KERITERA T United Overseas Bank Limited 15,902,422,599 6.71 57,231,369,615 2119

BEERITRRNDBIR/AT  Evergrowing Bank Co,, Limited 1,562,133,899 0.66 35,391,406,255 131

&it Total 17,464,556,498 737 92,622,775,870 3430
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KEERN, FARMEAZERERBARN LEEFTEVHRLFE
ANDARE, REEME+T—. 4 ARHLEREEREIN, HX
f+ EiBEHmENHRARKEHEEERE AN RT 17545635 7T,
INABANBEER BRI H,

ARE S ERXEAFHITHZ HRBEZHRE RS ZMGHT, U
—REZBMEAENEM, FREBWSEFHET,

ARRAEXBEEARERENZHHERMNT:
XBEEARBBEAAANES. BERSREEAR,

KBREEARHFESEINNT:

Other transactions:

In 2016, apart from the general and administrative expense
disclosed in Note 114, the Bank as a leasee under an office
operating lease agreement with UOB Property China Co.,
Ltd., paid UOB Property China Co., Ltd. rental amounting to
RMB17,545,635 during the renovation period and the amount
was capitalized as leasehold improvement.

Transactions between the Bank and related parties
mentioned above are carried out in normal course of
business and commercial terms and market price.

Transactions between the Bank and key management
personnel are as follows:

Key management personnel include directors, supervisor and
senior management.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as
follows:

2016 £ & 2015 5 &
2016 2015
BRIFEREMEHER  Employee salaries and other short-term benefits 59,010,469 58,403,069

5XRFAESHHNZHBERMOT:

ARFSHRERIHEWFEESHREZTHHRIW S, KERR
EHMXEKZ 5o

+=. BFEAGEREEEN

HEAMSHEAMERH B, ZARREEMEMFEREL
BHEARSAGERERE,

=, B
EFURBENETERAN, UWFAREEZIRER,
T, MERERZHHE

AMESMENMZRARNEES T 2017 £3 A 24 HRUE#E,
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Transactions between the Bank and the annuity are as
follows:

No transactions other than normal contribution to the

annuity were conducted between the Bank and the annuity
established by the Bank.

12. Post balance sheet events

As at the date on which the financial statements are
approved, there is no material post balance sheet event that
needs to be disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

13. Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform
with the current year's presentation.

14. Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 24 March 2017.
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